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Financial Highlights
MERE

Amounts expressed in RMB millions (except for Share data and items specifically stated)

UANREEETIIT (BRROEHKSFZIHEEBI)

For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
HE 0235 BHE02F
12A31H 12A31H
LFE HEE
OPERATING RESULTS REXE
Revenue ] 69,031 53491 +29.1%
EBIT s RGBS RHIE) 2,845 2251 +26.4%
EBITDA RMGAE - B EREHE T 3,448 3006 +147%
Profit for the year AEERF 1,766 1,407 +255%
Profit attributable to owners of the Company ARRIRERE ARG ER 1,069 827 +29.3%
FINANCIAL POSITION BE AR R
Net cash from operating activities REEBMEHREFE 2,476 5,148 -51.9%
Cash position* iﬁ@ﬂﬁ‘)ﬂ* 12,575 12,407 +1.4%
Borrowings E 15315 15,257 +0.4%
Equity attributable to owners of the Company $ RIRERAARGER 18,139 17,867 +1.5%
Working capital EEED 11,249 10899 +3.2%
Bills receivables JE U ZE 1,769 1,990 -111%
Trade receivables [EYE 55008 9,698 8,066 +20.2%
Inventories BE 9,894 8,947 +106%
KEY RATIOS IEH:$
Gross profit margin (%) EME(BAL) 140 153 -13pp
EBIT margin (%) R (ﬂﬂﬁ%ﬂ ERBIR)(BAL) 41 42 -01pp
EBITDA margin () EHD BREE BB TER
%ﬁﬁzfﬁﬁﬂ E(FHL) 5.0 56 -06pp
Profit margin (%) MRE(EA) 26 26 -
ROE (%) ZiN/N Tﬂxﬁéhﬁ AERE(BEALL) 59 46 +1.3pp
Debt to equity (%** BEEREL X (L) 67.3 697 -24pp
Current ratio (times) e & (15) 13 13 -
Trade receivables turnaver period (days)*+* JEUE 55/ IE A ER (H &) o 57 76 -25.0%
Inventories turnover period (days)* FEREH(AE)» 60 71 -15.5%
DATA PER SHARE SRER
Earnings per share — Basic (RMB cents) FRAEF —ER(AREWL) 4315 3197 +35.0%
Earnings per share — Diluted (RMB cents) SRAERN —#8(AREW) 4315 3195 +35.1%
Dividend per share (HK cents) FRERE (BIL) 8.0 30 +166.7%
Book value per share (RMB cents) SEEEEAREWL) 945.98 846.89 +117%
SHARE INFORMATION AT FINANCIAL YEAR END RUBEEBERHER
Skyworth Group Limited (Shares are listed in BlEEBAR R A (RAHR
Hong Kong, stock code: 00751) BB LT - BRMHHR - 00751)
Number of Shares in issue (million) BETERH(EE) 2,406 2,585 -6.9%
Market capitalisation (HKS million) mE(BEEET) 7,169 8660 -17.2%
Skyworth Digital Co, Ltd. (shares are listed in E‘J%’E%(%fo BRAR(RHR
Shenzhen, stock code: 000810) YN £ - B R5E ¢ ooos0)
Number of shares in issue (million) = %ﬁﬂﬁ%l (B8) 1,150 1,150 =
Market capitalisation (RMB million) mEANREBEET) 18,070 16,034 +12.7%
* Cash position refers to pledged and restricted bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents * REMRIEEERRZRRITFR BekBALEE

ik Borrowings/total equity

tetd Calculation based on average inventory; average sum of bills receivables and trade

receivables
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Dear shareholders, partners and investors of
Skyworth Group,

In 2023, the world underwent rapid changes and industries experienced
tumultuous ups and downs. Despite the domestic economy was gradually
recovering after three years of epidemic, there was an obvious trend of overall
consumption downgrading. The international situation remained complicated
with the ongoing and spreading Russia-Ukraine War, the Israeli-Palestinian
conflict and the Red Sea situation while the global economy struggled to find a
way out of its challenging recovery.

Under the challenging and highly uncertain political and economic
environment, facing unfavourable circumstances, such as hindered exports,
technological competition and intensified market involution, Skyworth has
maintained its strategic determination and taken solid steps towards sector
linkage, business collaboration and reform promotion. The annual operating
income hit a record high. The revenue reached RMB69.031 billion with a year-
on-year growth of 29.1%; the net profit reached RMB1.766 billion with a year-on-
year growth of 25.5%, and the net profit attributable to the owners of the
Company recorded a year-on-year growth of 29.3%, which basically achieved
the goals set at the beginning of the year. Furthermore, considering several
key financial indicators, the Group has enhanced and improved its overall
operational quality, and is steadily improving its sustainable operating
capabilities.

04 SKYWORTH GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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In 2023, taking into account its existing industrial development and planning
layout, the Group has integrated the former multimedia business segment and
smart appliances business segment into a new smart household appliances
business segment. Also, the business scope of the new energy segment was
further clarified by integrating the businesses of companies in relation to the
distributed photovoltaic and industrial and commercial photovoltaic sectors.
From a sub-segment perspective, each business segment had its highlights
and breakthroughs, delivering recognisable and noteworthy performance.

Firstly, the fundamentals of the smart household appliances business
maintained stable growth. Throughout the year of 2023, the entire household
appliances market did not usher in the expected high-growth compensatory
recovery, but instead faced more severe challenges and experienced four
fluctuating phases of "downturn-recovery-pullback-rebound”. Each business
line of the Group's smart household appliances segment grasped the nettle
and quickly adjusted their strategies in the face of adversity, ultimately
achieving outperformance.

First, the TV business adhered to the product line as its main focus, and
conducted a comprehensive review and optimisation of domestic and
overseas businesses, as well as original equipment manufacturing (OEM)
business, achieving a remarkable growth in overall scale and revenue against
the trend. The new generation of Wallpaper TV featuring “ultra-thin flush wall
mounting and dynamic artistic screen” achieved a sales volume of over
150,000 units throughout the year. Second, the refrigerator and washing
machine business adhered to the principle of “priority on product, success
through marketing”, while vigorously expanding new product varieties and
diversifying into new product categories. Through synergistic efforts across
multiple channels, it achieved a historic breakthrough with sales volume
exceeding 4.5 million units and revenue surpassing RMB4.5 billion. Third, the air
conditioner business deeply tapped its own potential and achieved breakeven
for the first time. The kitchen appliances business continued to strengthen the
fundamental performance of its products with focus on large kitchen
appliances, resulting in a significant increase in revenue. Fourth, under the
strict regulatory environment enforced by industry regulatory authorities,
Coocaa Company has proactively sought changes to promote digital
transformation. The content production and recommendation technology of
its self-developed Artificial Intelligence Generated Content (AIGC) has been
highly recognised by the industry. Fifth, the revenue of smart equipment and
optoelectronic commercial display businesses both experienced significant
growth. The personal care household appliances business has carefully
created new popular products for content e-commerce platforms. The annual
sales volume of Yuan Shi Shaver is close to 5.5 million units, with impressive
online sales performance.
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Chairman’s Statement
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Secondly, the new energy business has reached new heights and became
the “second curve” of the Group's growth. In 2023, with the support of carbon
peak and carbon neutrality (“Double Carbon”) policy, the new energy market
has shown considerable improvement. The new energy segment of the Group
has achieved the most impressive results. The Photovoltaic Company nearly
doubled the growth of its residential photovoltaic business, ranking among the
top three in the industry, and was successfully selected as one of the “Fourth
Batch of Intelligent Photovoltaic Pilot Demonstration Enterprises by the Ministry
of Industry and Information Technology of the People's Republic of China" (4
RT3 MBL % g8 S R B R & 1 %). The six series of
comprehensively upgraded products, including “Xiao Yang Lou” (/)N F5 1),
“Golden House Pro” (4 2% B Pro), “ Xiang Yang Yuan” (815 F% ), “Zero Carbon
Garden" (Z X [&), “Yue Yang Ting” (1} 5 =), and “Rainbow House Pro” (L
fZ Pro), have been well received and favoured by customers. In addition, the
Company has also actively deployed business units in energy storage,
inverters and photovoltaic modules and started venturing into overseas
markets.

Thirdly, although the smart systems technology business continued to face
pressure, its profitability remained stable, further consolidating its industry
position. In 2023, the Digital Company calmly tackled the challenges brought by
the transformation of the industry and continuously increased investment in
high-potential businesses such as automabile electronic displays, resulting in
a three-fold surge in revenue, and has currently supplied integration systems
for automabile human-machine interaction display, automotive smart display
systems and other products to over 10 domestic automobile manufacturers.
In addition, the Digital Company has achieved notable innovation in cutting-
edge technologies. The Al intelligent somatosensory game console was
recognised as the “Best Invention of 2023" by the TIME Magazine in the United
States. The integration and coexistence technology of 56 and WiFi6 wireless
transmission has reached the international leading level. Innovative products,
such as super dark cameras, Al smart screen cameras and desktop cloud
computers with information technology application innovation, have been
successively introduced to the market.
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Fourthly, the modern services business has shown overall stability and
demonstrated strong resilience. The Science and Technology Parks
Corporation has focused on cost reduction and expense control, withstanding
the pressure of declining unit prices and increasing vacancies in the property
leasing market. It has taken the lead in initiating investment promotion efforts
for the Qianhai Skyworth Overseas Development Tower (B8 8l 48 9 3%
A JZ) and the Ningbo Skyworth Innovation Valley Park (Z& 5 &l 4 Al ¥ A B
[ ). The Construction Company has actively created conditions to complete
the delivery of the Ningbo project, and achieved good sales for the Hohhot
project. The Venture Capital Company has successfully facilitated the
establishment of the Anhui Chuangwei Qihang Industrial Investment Equity
Investment Fund* (22 181 &l 4 R fin 2= 12 iR 1% B & ©) with a total scale of
RMBL1 billion. The invested companies, namely United Nova and Grand Kangxi,
were subsequently listed in the stock market. Anyserves has also achieved
significant growth in revenue generation through its service offerings.

Looking back to 2023, Skyworth has achieved rapid growth. Together, we have
experienced market challenges and industry transformations. Despite the
continuous difficulties and challenges, the entire Skyworth team did not
hesitate. We faced the challenges with fearless courage, proving the strength
and wisdom of Skyworth team with our actions.

What's past is prologue. A new journey for Skyworth in 2024 is already on its
way. It is foreseeable that the domestic and international market environment
we are facing will remain complex. The household appliances industry in which
we operate will still face greater pressure for demand growth, and the market
competition in the photovoltaic industry will become more intense. However,
our goals remain clear and steadfast. We will also focus on the following three
areas.
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http://data.eastmoney.com/zlsj/
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The first is to persist in the partnership mechanism and deepen the
shareholding reform. This is the cornerstone and treasure that have brought
Skyworth to where it is today. We will maintain the independence of business
units, remain committed to our self-development and ignite our self-
motivation to safeguard the essence of business units.

The second is to strengthen the mutual empowerment among the
operations within the Group. We will bring together each independent entity
with self-motivation and leverage the organisational strength of the Group. We
aim to foster individual development while promoting collective growth, as it is
only through the combination of both that Skyworth will have the opportunity
to expand and strengthen its position.

The third is to improve human efficiency. Efficiency is the lifeline of an
enterprise. Without high per capita output, it is impossible to gain a foothold in
the industry. Human efficiency indicators can guide Skyworth towards
becoming a healthier and more profitable outstanding enterprise.
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Next stop, Skyworth, 100 billion! This is not a slogan, nor an unattainable goal,
but our solemn commitment. In 2024, Skyworth will pursue “rapid growth with
higher quality”, and we have also set new and challenging annual goals for this
purpose. Keeping pace with global technological trends, each business unit will
focus on mainstream products and actively expand market shares in core
industries. We will continue to adhere to the development principles of
innovation, quality and service, and endeavor to build an internationally
competitive brand in smart household appliances and Double Carbon ecology.
We will embrace changes, continuously expand into new business areas, and
make relentless efforts to achieve sustainable growth. We will integrate group
resources to form synergies and mutual empowerment. We will approach
issues more objectively and do the right thing in the right way.

Finally, on behalf of the board of directors and the executive team of Skyworth
Group, | would like to express my heartfelt thanks to all Skyworth colleagues for
their dedication and efforts in the past year! At the same time, | would like to
express my sincere gratitude to all shareholders, investors, global customers
and partners for their long-term trust and support!

In 2024, we will unite our hearts and powers, be pragmatic and aggressive and
scale greater heights! | hereby share these words as mutual encouragement
forus all.

Lin Jin
Chairman of the Board
26 March 2024
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Simplified Corporate Structure

GEEESE Y

Skyworth Group Limited
REEEERAR

Skyworth Holdings
Limited

422 AR A BR 4 =)

Skyworth Investment
(Holdings) Limited
AIBERE (ZER)BRAR

# 100%

Skyworth Overseas
Development Limited

RS BRRERAF

Skyworth Digital
Co., Ltd.**
RIERFRDAERD R

SR B4 B 5 1
g BRAR

RIAER S 31
CRIN BRAF

‘ 100%

Skyworth TV
Holdings Limited

AESRERERA A

Skyworth Financial
Management Company Limited

AlEMEEEERAR

R 3| Bl #-RoB B T
BRATF

i3I o I B A A ) Bk
ROERAF

R B4 SR
BEERAF

R Bl 4 58 R B 1l
AR AR

R4S B R %
BRAF

RIEREERAR

i 100%

kyworth Enterprises
Limited

RAIEERERA A

100%

Skyworth Electronic
Appliance Limited
RIEERERA A

RIAEE R R D
BRAF

RIERERRRRE

BRAT

100%*

Rl ae

(R BRAT

*k

Effective Interest of Skyworth Group Limited (the “Company”)

Bl B AR A ([KRA) BB

Shares are listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 000810.
FHNEFLZZH LT - RGBS - 000810 »

The effective interest held by the Company included 0.01% equity interest held under
treasury shares of a subsidiary of the Company

AR EFFE.Z Bl B EIER AR Al — KB R AR A 001%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERE WD

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Reporting Year”), the Group's overall
revenue amounted to RMB69,031 million, compared with an overall revenue of
RMB53,491 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Previous Year").

China's economy is gradually recovering following the post-epidemic
reopening. Nevertheless, with the energy crisis caused by the ongoing Russia-
Ukraine War and the interest rate hike cycle sustained throughout the year due
to the fluctuating economic data from the Federal Reserve, all of which have
brought more uncertainties to the global economy and corporate operations.
Also, the global asset prices continued to fluctuate, to a certain extent,
restrained the economic rebound in terms of strength and speed. In the face
of the ever-changing market, the Group will continue to drive industrial
transformation and innovative development in its business strategies while
paying close attention to the latest market development. Besides actively
optimising organisational structure, enhancing production efficiency and
reducing corporate costs, the Group is committed to promoting digital
innovation of smart home appliances and using the new energy industry as an
engine of green development to achieve the carbon peak and carbon
neutrality (“Double Carbon”) goal. The Group also attaches great importance to
the innovation of self-developed technology and the high-quality development
of the industry. Through forward-looking layout, the Group has been led to
expand its business horizontally and vertically, making a step-by-step progress
and achievement of the global development strategy and digital innovation by
adopting diversified and multi-channel strategies.

During the year, Skyworth further expedited the green development of the
Double Carbon strategy and facilitated the innovative, healthy and sustainable
development of the global ultra-high-definition video industry, as well as
created synergy and a win-win situation in various aspects such as
technological innovation, quality requirements and users-first philosophy. The
Group strived to develop new channels with full speed. The increasing number
of the scale of new energy business and installed capacities of additional
photovoltaic power stations drove a double-digit growth of the overall revenue
of the Group. The Group's overall revenue recorded RMB69,031 million,
representing an increase of 29.1% compared to the Previous Year, further
optimising the market profile and market share. However, geopolitical tensions,
rising capitalisation costs due to increased bank borrowing costs following the
interest rate at relatively high level, rising raw material prices in general for
home appliances as a result of supply chain disruptions, also, the continuous
rapid growth of the photovoltaic business with lower gross profit margin
during the year, all of these factors have been squeezing corporate profit
margins and dilutive gross profit margin. The overall gross profit margin of the
Group for the Reporting Year was 14.0%, representing a decrease of 1.3
percentage points as compared to the Previous Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

For the below analysis, other business tax for the Reporting Year was RMB149
million (the Previous Year: RMB99 million) was not deducted from the revenue
by geographical segment and revenue by business sectors.

(a)

Business Review by Geographical Segment

The Group's operations have been expanded worldwide, including
mainland China and other regions in Asia, Africa, Europe and Americas,
with mainland China being the primary market.

Mainland China Market

For the year ended 31 December 2023, revenue from the mainland China
market amounted to RMB53,826 million, representing an increase of
RMB17,163 million or 46.8% compared with RMB36,663 million for the
Previous Year.

During the Reporting Year, the Group's smart household appliances
business, smart systems technology business and new energy business,
each accounted for 37.1% (the Previous Year: 44.0%), 11.2% (the Previous
Year: 18.3%) and 43.4% (the Previous Year: 32.6%) of its revenue from the
mainland China market, while the modern services business and others
attributed the remaining 8.3% (the Previous Year: 5.1%).

Overseas Markets

For the year ended 31 December 2023, revenue from overseas markets
amounted to RMB15,354 million, equivalent to 22.2% of the Group's
overall revenue, representing a decrease of RMB1,573 million or 9.3%
compared with RMB16,927 million recorded in the Previous Year. This
was mainly due to the cumulative and lagged effects of interest rate
hikes putting pressure on foreign economy, intensified inflationary
pressure resulting from escalating geopolitical conflicts, as well as
dampened global consumer sentiment, which led to sluggish consumer
demand. The Group continued to optimise its sales channels in overseas
markets, diversify its distribution and explore new retail channels,
mitigating the negative impact of slowing consumer demand amid the
headwinds.
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Geographical Distribution of Revenue in Overseas Markets ST 4% 8 SE BB A (B 5 4F

The Group's main overseas markets are Asia, Europe and Americas. The REEMEEGINTHATMN - BUNKRE
geographical distribution of the revenue in proportion for Overseas M BHNTIISE BRI S ﬁﬁl:t <38
Markets is illustrated as follows: s

Year ended 31 December

12831 HIEEE
2023 2022
2023 F 2022
(%) (%)
Asia 25 57 67
Europe HO 17 12
Americas EN 14 11
Africa FEM 11 9
QOceania KFENM 1 1
100 100

For revenue analysis by business sectors concerning the mainland China B8 7 Fp Bl A BE T 35 N B 9N T 35 & 2 58 1% 5 1R

market and overseas markets, please refer to the section headed ij%{’EHj AT BREEB O — REBIRRE
"Business Review by Business Sectors". HIED o
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Business Review by Business Sectors

In response to the needs of corporate development and the
enhancement of management efficiency, the Group announced its four
major business sectors following integration and optimisation including:
1. Smart Household Appliances Business, 2. Smart Systems Technology
Business, 3. New Energy Business and 4. Modern Services Business,
mainly for the merge of the original “Multimedia Business” and “Smart
Appliances Business” segment into the “Smart Household Appliances
Business" segment, enabling various business units in the smart
household appliances industry to integrate resources and exert
synergies.

1. Smart Household Appliances Business

The Group's smart household appliances business primarily
covers, among others, smart TV systems, smart white appliances,
other smart appliances and provision of internet connection
services of Coocaa System.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's smart
household appliances business recorded revenue of RMB30,637
million, representing an increase of RMB3,045 million or 11.0% as
compared to RMB27,592 million recorded in the Previous Year.

1.1  Smart TV Systems Products (Mainland China Market)

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's smart TV
systems products recorded revenue of RMB11,059 million
in the Mainland China market, representing an increase of
RMB1,136 million or 11.4% as compared to RMB9,923 million
recorded in the Previous Year.
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In 2023, based on the core concept of “enhancing product
value and improving user experience”, the Group
consistently upheld three values of “health care, home
entertainment and ultimate aesthetics”. Focusing on user's
experience and market demands, the Group strived to
make breakthroughs in image quality, sound quality,
modules, ultra-thinness, aesthetics, software, sensors and
other core technologies and continuous innovation
applications. The Group placed emphasis on the
development and application of new technologies,
including ultra-thin wallpaper design, Smart Mini LED
backlight system, ultra-large screen display solutions,
multi-channel audio systems, high refresh rate with high
colour accuracy and millimetre wave sensing. During the
Reporting Year, the Group launched a range of products,
including the all-in-one Mini LED TV Series G7D/A5D, the 100-
inch Giant Screen TV Series 100Q7D/L100D/100Q53, the
voice-controlled TV A3D that supports auto low latency
mode (ALLM) with low latency, low blue light and flicker-free
technologies, the Musician TV G5D featuring all-in-one
soundbar design and Skyworth's latest acoustic system,
the comprehensive ultra-thin Artistic Frame TV W55D, the
technology industry-leading OLED gaming monitor G80Q,
and the Mini LED professional design monitor D80U Lite.
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During the year, the Group launched the ultra-thin
Wallpaper TV Series A7D Pro/A7D/Q7D featuring wallpaper
form of “ultra-thin flush wall mounting and dynamic artistic
screen”. Through module reconstruction design, it achieved
a "zero distance” between the body and the wall,
seamlessly blending into diverse and changing home
scenes with single click and providing the most
comfortable and stylish living experience. Teaming up with
the legendary audio brand harman/kardon and supporting
high refresh rates and Artificial Intelligence Generated
Content (AIGC) voice interaction, it delivers excellent audio
and visual quality and interactive experiences, winning the
favour and widespread praise from consumers. On the
other hand, leveraging its keen market insight, the Group
took the lead in seizing the opportunity in the ultra-large
screen market and launched the 100-inch Giant Screen TV
Series 100Q7D/L100D/100Q53 in 2023. With a focus on the
three series, namely 100-inch Wallpaper, 100-inch Ultra-thin
and 100-inch Worldview, across all channels, the Group has
successfully established Skyworth's leadership in the ultra-
large screen market.

In addition, during the year, the Group introduced smart
hotel and smart office commercial solutions with smart
TVs as the control entrance and centre, which may
integrate smart display commercial solutions, including TV,
LCD splicing, LED direct display and other display devices,
facilitating the accelerated application of display and
commercial display products. Throughout the process of
launching new technologies and products, the core
concept was fully embodied.
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In respect of channel distribution, the Group has
continuously deepened resource integration, implemented
integrated management across the entire chain,
comprehensively built a multi-category channel matrix and
enhanced channel retail capabilities, facilitating the
synergistic and rapid development of emerging channels.
The e-commerce channel has successfully overcome the
challenges of high-end and high-priced products through
differentiated product layout and structural
transformation in product sales. By further expanding into
interest-based e-commerce and content platform
e-commerce, Skyworth products have effectively reached
consumers, enabling the Group to gain multi-dimensional
insights into consumer behaviour while improving resource

efficiency and driving sales growth.

1.2 Smart TV Systems Products (Overseas Markets)

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's smart TV
systems products recorded revenue of RMB7,949 million in
overseas markets, representing a decrease of RMB205
million or 2.5% as compared to RMB8,154 million recorded in

the Previous Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2023, the global consumer sentiment was subdued due
to the turbulent world situation. In the North American
region, the Group focused on niche areas and achieved
market breakthroughs with feature-rich outdoor TV
products. In Europe, coinciding with the 85th anniversary of
METZ, the legendary German household appliance brand
under the Group, METZ collaborated with Roku to launch
minimalist and superior TV products and showcased the
full range of TV products at various major exhibitions. In
Southeast Asia, the Group promoted the Coocaa brand
products through offline and online channels, and
facilitated synergistic cooperation between SKYWORTH and
Coocaa brands. Additionally, the Group improved the
workflow of 2C distribution, payment and after-sales
services, successfully achieving channel diversification in
sales.

Smart Appliances Business

Smart appliances business is principally engaged in the
research and development, production and sales of smart
air conditioners, smart refrigerators, smart washing
machines, smart kitchen appliances and tablet computers.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded
a revenue of RMB7,088 million from the smart appliances
business; representing an increase of RMB2,687 million or
61.1% as compared to RMB4,401 million recorded in the
Previous Year. Among which, revenue recorded in the
mainland China market amounted to RMB5,145 million,
representing an increase of RMB2,017 million or 64.5% as
compared to RMB3,128 million recorded in the Previous
Year. Revenue in overseas markets amounted to RMB1,943
million, representing an increase of RMB670 million or 52.6%
as compared to RMB1,273 million recorded in the Previous
Year.
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During the Reporting Year, the Group continued to put more
effort in the research and development of smart products
and enhanced its product competitiveness to drive sales
growth of the smart appliances business in the domestic
market, Europe, the Middle East and Asia Pacific markets.
Benefiting from the decline in raw material supply prices
and the implementation of differentiation competitive
strategies to expand the "proprietary brand + OEM
customisation” market, there has been a substantial
increase in both the demand for orders and sales of air
conditioners and washing machines for the year as
compared to the Previous Year. Furthermore, in recent
years, given that the Group strove to expand its online
e-commerce business, as well as actively expanding its
online sales platform customers, strengthening its channel
operations and optimising its traditional offline distributor
sales channels, the Group managed to develop stably and
record a considerable growth in revenue during the year
even when the home appliances market was in difficult
conditions in the Previous Year.
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Internet Connection Services of Coocaa System

Shenzhen Coocaa Network Technology Company Limited*
ORI B A48 B s IR 9 B BR A &) (“Coocaa
Technology”, an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) developed steadily in the internet value-
added service market, based on the reliable and secure
connection services, and mature and stable technology of
the Coocaa system. It grasped the opportunities under the
macro-environment of “Otaku economy” to promote the
continuous growth of revenue from content based
operations of home smart device services. For the year
ended 31 December 2023, the accumulated smart devices
of Coocaa System in the PRC market reached 200 million.
The Group's industrial deployment strategy of "hardware +
content internet services” is well received by internet-
based enterprises: Beijing iQlYl Science & Technology Co.,
Ld* (bR EFERERFRAF) (iQv), an affiliate of
Tencent Holdings Limited (“Tencent") and an affiliate of
Baidu Holdings Limited* (& /1% i% & IR A 51) (‘Baidu”)
have all successively invested in Coocaa Technology.
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Smart Systems Technology Business

Smart systems technology business covers, among others, smart
set-top boxes and solutions, broadband network access systems,
intelligent manufacturing, automotive electronic systems and
other electronic products.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, revenue recorded for the
Group's smart systems technology business amounted to
RMB10,413 million, representing a decrease of RMB1,542 million or
12.9% from RMB11,955 million recorded in the Previous Year. In
particular, revenue recorded in the mainland China market
amounted to RMB6,003 million, representing a decrease of
RMB724 million or 10.8% from RMB6,727 million recorded in the
Previous Year. Revenue recorded in overseas markets amounted
to RMB4,410 million, representing a decrease of RMB818 miillion or
15.6% from RMB5,228 million recorded in the Previous Year.

In 2023, under the influence of various unfavourable factors in the
domestic and international political situation and economic
environment, the sales of smart devices in this business segment
faced a year-on-year decrease in sales unit prices and insufficient
consumer demand. In the face of the obstacles and challenges of
insufficient effective demand and deflation, while increasing its
market shares, the Group continued to stabilise its mature system
structure planning and research and development capabilities.
Leveraging advantages of the supply chain and industrial
competitiveness, the Group implemented industry chain
integration, strengthened the management of product sales
organisation, enhanced intelligent manufacturing capabilities and
implemented systematic control of operational risks, so as to
actively explore innovation and proactively respond to market
changes.
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During the Reporting Year, set-top boxes and network connection
equipment won various valued bids from the top three domestic
telecommunication operators, resulting in an increase in market
shares. The orders from key overseas strategic customers and
emerging markets such as Europe, Australia and Latin America
were also actively increasing. There has been an upgrade in
research and development, technology and product reserves for
VR/MR/AR, and the automobile display systems has been adopted
by core customers for multiple key projects. In the era of
digitisation and intelligence, with the future extensive
applications of artificial intelligence (Al) and AIGC large-scale
models, the Group will continue to innovate and develop, and is
committed to continuously exploring new scenarios and
applications for smart homes, smart lives and smart offices and
other aspects.

New Energy Business

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded a
revenue of RMB23,396 million from the new energy business,
representing an increase of RMB11,452 million or 95.9% as
compared with RMB11,944 million recorded in the Previous Year.
During the year, more than 233,000 new residential photovoltaic
power stations were put into operation and connected to the
power grid, with accumulate more than 442,000 residential
photovoltaic power stations have been built and under grid-
connected operation, showing the high-quality development of
new energy business by seizing opportunities and riding on the
momentum. Despite the entry of cross-sector competitors, the
advantageous leadership was still able to be maintained.

ERENWED N

RIFEFE #BESE - %L%%&
BESBEAN= Ki@fmla % & 18
BEEFRRE mMBOHERA: EH
EHHEEE REBUM RN A E
EHETH ] B 2 A TERIE 0
VR/MR/AR fiff 2% ~ 3 1l7 K = & &6 48
B EBBERERREESRLOERS
EEZEEHEA ERHEFL &
BELBE MR - /\IEE‘E(AU&NGCK@
MEXKREZHER A£EBT
EAIFHE BROAEERE -
BELEE EHERANSHITEEENGE
BB R - EA -

FEER E K
HZE2023F 128318 IEFE K&
B e REEWRALERSE AR 2339
BEL REFEMARKIME
B RARI14528 &8 Tk
95.9% ° RAERE  FigEL AW

EMFPRNABUBIEB3IBR 2
STEKTRELHFER X REWE
Bas2 B BRI T HLREBREI
%L REMEMSEEHRE - IR

HERBEFENMAEBIEREE
?%“Eh%if‘ﬁimﬁo

/

AIEEBEAERAT 2023F K 23




Management Discussion and Analysis

ERENWED N

/

SKYWORTH
Bl

24

The Chinese government's policy direction on environmental
protection and new energy is clear. Under the dual benefits of the
Double Carbon goal and the "County-wide promotion” policy, the
scale of photovoltaic industry in the PRC continues to expand.
Since the fourth quarter of 2022, the prices of major raw materials
such as silicon materials, silicon wafers and battery cells have
begun to fall due to sufficient production capacity. Along with the
improvement of photovoltaic power generation efficiency, the
economic feasibility of distributed photovoltaics is also revealed,
which is conducive to the rapid growth of the residential
distributed photovoltaic market. According to the National Energy
Administration, newly installed photovoltaic capacity in the PRC in
2023 hit a record high and reached approximately 216.88 GW,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 148.1%, of
which the newly installed distributed photovoltaic capacity also
reached a new high and was over 96 GW. With the rapid
development of the solar energy industry and the explosive
growth of residential photovoltaics, the Group followed the
general trend of the integrated development of modern energy,
smart manufacturing and digital technology, and took residential
photovoltaics as the starting point to offer a complete solution
for a series of aspects such as power station development,
design, construction, operation, management and consulting
services, so as to achieve a service system of efficient service and
quality control. In recent years, as one of the outstanding players
in the cross-industry pursuit of excellence in the home appliance
field, relying on the brand advantages of having been deeply
engaged in the home appliances business for more than 30 years,
Skyworth has successfully entered into the new energy field with
immense market potential and opened a "second growth curve”.
In addition to building a development, construction, operation
and management platform for full process asset of distributed
photovoltaic power stations, the Group upgraded its products
according to market orientation and user needs. During the year,
the Group has conducted multiple research efforts and
continuous exploration. Building upon the foundation of
traditional profitable power stations, the Group has specifically
developed the high-quality residential building integrated
photovoltaic (BIPV) power station product and launched the
flagship product, “Xiao Yang Lou” (/]NB5 4% ) , which combines
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Management Discussion and Analysis

photovoltaic panels with roof buildings, successfully transforming
the photovoltaic power station from a traditional profit-driven
model to a function-driven model and ensuring that each
component of the photovoltaic power generation system
generates value. Furthermore, based on market orientation and
user demands, the Group has actively launched a range of
residential photovoltaic products, including “Golden House Pro”
(% 2 &= Pro), " Xiang Yang Yuan" ([A 5 BT ) , “Zero Carbon
Garden” (%ﬁﬁ &), “Yue Yang Ting" (1% % =) and “Rainbow
House Pro” (%2 41 /2 Pro). These products not only cater to the
diverse needs of users in different regions and housing types but
also increase rooftop utilisation rates, ensuring continuous
benefits for users in terms of electricity generation. In order to
maintain the quality above industry standards, the Group focused
on technological innovation and research and development, and
the self-developed “Photovoltaic Power Station Automation
Design System” continued to customise and design products with
higher degree of accuracy and safety based on users' roof
structure. The Group's self-developed smart operation and
maintenance system also effectively integrates photovoltaic
information with advanced internet technology and digital
information technology, which fully realised the real-time digital
management of home photovoltaic power stations.

Skyworth Photovoltaics is committed to the layout of
comprehensive new energy development, and actively develops
into a one-stop solution provider from finance, installation to
after-sales. As a pioneer in the industry, it has established an
innovative business model of “"Photovoltaics + Inclusive
development + Digital technology” and created a satisfying
photovoltaics products and brands for customers, with an aim to
contribute to rural revitalisation and high-quality economic
development. In order to seize the opportunities arising from the
booming market development, the Group will leverage on its own
strength of product technology, continue to develop the
residential photovoltaic business, expand the application
scenarios of new energy business, and gradually develop
businesses such as industrial and commercial photovoltaics and
integrated smart energy management on the consumption side.
During the Reporting Year, the Group has gradually expanded into
research and development and manufacturing of photovoltaic
brackets, modules, inverters and energy storage businesses,
enhancing the overall strength of Skyworth Photovoltaics.
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Modern Services Business and Others

Modern services business covers, among others, maintenance
and repair for home appliances, macro-logistics services,
international trades, construction development, financial lease
and property operation for industrial parks.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded a
revenue of RMB4,734 million from the modern services business;
representing an increase of RMB2,635 million or 125.5% as
compared to RMB2,099 million recorded in the Previous Year.
Among which, revenue recorded in the Mainland China market
amounted to RMB4,471 million, representing an increase of
RMB2,595 million or 138.3% as compared to RMB1,876 million
recorded in the Previous Year. Revenue from overseas markets
during the year amounted to RMB263 million, representing an
increase of RMB40 million or 17.9% from RMB223 million recorded
in the Previous Year. Despite the obstacles faced by the China's
economic recovery during the year, with China's policies shift
towards stimulating economic growth and the gradual release of
domestic demand such as rigid shopping and experience
services, the Group has recorded steady revenue performance in
its home appliance maintenance and repair, logistics, and
property operation for industrial parks business units as
compared to the Previous Year. The completion and delivery of
property development projects in Ningbo and Inner Mongolia
regions during the Reporting Year have made a significant
contribution to the revenue growth of the modern services
business during the year.
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During the year, the modern services business continued to focus
on supply chain management and promote strategic cooperation
with major suppliers to provide diversified services to customers.
Under this philosophy, the professional teams of various business
units under modern services business, including financial
services, macro-logistics services, supply chain operation, foreign
trades, park-based property management, park construction and
development, have made significant contributions to the Group's
external business and the supply chain and operation ecology
among various business units within the Group. Among them, the
home appliance maintenance and repair business brought good
after-sales service experience to consumers, and also provided
feedback and improvement suggestions from users on the
Group's products to various business units. In addition to offering
high-quality services and integrating resources in warehouses in
various domestic regions, the logistics company also provide
support to the rapid growth of the new energy business through
its comprehensive supply chain logistics, factory logistics, sales
and after-sales logistics.

In terms of capital operation, the Group continued to focus on the
financial business platform with the finance company as the
main body, supplemented by venture capital funds and small
loans, and expanded the financing channels of the Group by
leveraging on the advantages of the “integrated foreign and
domestic currency capital pools for multinational companies (%
N B ANINEE — BB (L& & M) " approved by the State
Administration of Foreign Exchange. The venture capital business
managed the investment portfolio held by the Group and
continued to seek high-quality investment opportunities in
projects from upstream and downstream or emerging industries
such as semiconductors, new materials, new equipment, supply
chain transactions and service platforms.
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By creating innovation spaces in the science and technology
parks, seizing construction opportunities of industrial bases,
integrating Skyworth's smart human habitat in property
management, as well as offering a variety of content services, the
Group managed to address the trend of decreasing demand from
offline physical merchants in recent years, particularly after the
pandemic.

The Group will fully explore the core business advantages,
continue to innovate the development model, actively implement
organisational optimisation, accelerate the integration and
development of new businesses and promote business
transformation and upgrading, with an aim to promote the in-
depth integration of hardware, software, systems, content and
services, while strengthening the integration of key supporting
resources of upstream and downstream along the industry chain
and establishing a smart home appliances industry ecosystem, to
create favourable conditions and environment for the future
reform and development of the Skywaorth Group, as well as to
provide supports and empower synergies for the Group's
businesses including scientific research, investment, production,
procurement and construction.

Gross profit margin

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the overall gross profit margin of the
Group was 14.0%, representing a decrease of 1.3 percentage points in
comparison to 15.3% recorded in the Previous Year.

During the Reporting Year, with the evident control of the pandemic in the first
half of the year, economic activities in various regions steadily returned to
normal and the pressure on the global supply chain alleviated. Under the
expected recovery in consumption, the demand for inventories from various
electronics industries has driven up the cost of raw materials. During the year,
given the decrease in the overall shipment volume of upstream suppliers and
the increase in demand for large-sized screens in the TV market, the price of TV
panels continued its upward trend from the end of 2022 to the end of this year,
and rising costs narrowed the gross profit margin. In addition, the new energy
business is in a period of rapid growth and its gross profit margin is still lower
than that of other business segments of the Group. Its significant year-on-year
growth in sales also led to a slight decrease in the overall gross profit margin
of the Group. The Group will continue to promote the refined management of
operations, adopt various comprehensive measures to improve the gross
profit margin of products, reduce the operating costs of enterprises, and
ensure the sound operation of its enterprises.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's selling and distribution
expenses amounted to RMB3,695 million, representing an increase of RMB256
million or 7.4% as compared to RMB3,439 million for the Previous Year. The
selling and distribution expenses to revenue ratio for the year ended 31
December 2023 was 5.4%, which decreased by 1.0 percentage point from 6.4%
recorded in the Previous Year.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's general and administrative
expenses amounted to RMB1,921 million, representing an increase of RMB267
million or 16.1% compared with RMB1,654 million for the Previous Year. The
general and administrative expenses to revenue ratio for the year ended 31
December 2023 was 2.8%, which decreased by 0.3 percentage points from 3.1%
recorded in the Previous Year.

The Group continued to devote appropriate resources during the current year
to the research and development of premium smart products, to improve its
corporate competitiveness. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's
research and development expenses amounted to RMB2,127 million,
representing an increase of RMB11 million or 0.5% as compared to RMB2,116
million for the Previous Year. The research and development expenses to
revenue ratio for the year ended 31 December 2023 was 3.1%, which dropped
by 0.9 percentage points from 4.0% recorded in the Previous Year.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT

The Group adopts a prudent financial policy to maintain stable financial
conditions. As at 31 December 2023, net current assets amounted to RMB11,249
million, representing an increase of RMB350 million or 3.2% as compared to
RMB10,899 million as at 31 December 2022. As at 31 December 2023, bank
balances and cash amounted to RMB9,114 million, representing an increase of
RMB60 million or 0.7% as compared to RMB9,054 million as at 31 December 2022.
As at 31 December 2023, pledged and restricted bank deposits amounted to
RMB3,461 million, representing an increase of RMB108 million or 3.2% as
compared to RMB3,353 million as at 31 December 2022.

The Group secured certain assets against its certain trade facilities and loans
granted from various banks. As at 31 December 2023, such secured and
restricted assets included bank deposits of RMB3,461 million (as at 31
December 2022: RMB3,353 million), bills receivables of RMB213 million (as at 31
December 2022: trade receivables of RMB3 million and bills receivables of
RMB58 million), investment properties of RMB1,082 million (as at 31 December
2022: RMB1,135 million), stock of properties of RMB1,673 million (as at 31
December 2022: RMB328 million) as well as certain prepaid lease payments on
land use rights, lands and properties and construction in progress in mainland
China and Hong Kong, with an aggregate net book value of RMB4,805 million (as
at 31 December 2022: RMB3,129 million).
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As at 31 December 2023, total bank loans and overall total interest-bearing
liabilities of the Group amounted to RMB15,315 million (as at 31 December 2022:
RMB15,257 million). The equity attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to RMB18,139 million (as at 31 December 2022: RMB17,867 million).
The debt to equity ratio revealed as 67.3% (as at 31 December 2022: 69.7%).

TREASURY POLICY

The Group's major investments and revenue streams are derived from
mainland China. The Group's assets and liabilities are mainly denominated in
RMB, others are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and Euros. The
Group uses general trade financing to fulfil the needs in operating cash flow. In
order to reduce finance costs, the Group exploits the currency-based and
income-based financial management tools introduced by banks to offset such
costs. Since the U.S. Federal Reserve raised interest rates, the trend of
exchange rates of various foreign currencies, especially the US dollars, are still
fluctuated and unpredictable. During the Reporting Year, the management of
the Group continued to focus on changes in foreign exchange rates and
onshore and offshore interest rate, in order to determine the need for foreign
exchange hedging. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded
a net exchange gain generated from general operations of RMB97 million (for
the year ended 31 December 2022: RMB13 million).

In addition, the Group still held the following investments during the Reporting
Year:

(@) Unlisted equity securities

As at 31 December 2023, the Group held investments in 64 unlisted
companies. The total value (at fair value) of these investments (reflecting
the changes in fair value and costs) was RMB3,299 million, of which
RMB1,031 million represented 10% equity interest held by the Group in a
PRC investee company. This investee company is principally engaged in
manufacture and sale of flat screen displays, display materials, LCD
related products and other electronic accessories.
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(b)

Listed equity securities

As of 31 December 2023, the Group held investments in ten (as at 31
December 2022: eight) listed equity securities, details of which are as

follows:
Shareholding
percentage as of
31 December
Listed company 2023
EPEES
12A3AK
R Bl
Bank of Gansu Co, Ltd. 0.66%
HBRRTRHBRAA
Amlogic (Shanghai) Co, Ltd. 0.08%
BELER(LE)RH
BB
Linklogis Inc. 0.36%
BHRNRER
Anhui Coreach Technology Co,, Ltd. 1.00%
ﬁuméﬂ&h1
ﬁ A
Puya Semiconductor (Shanghai Co,, 1.81%
Ltd.
EBRYER (L) BRAT
Guizhou Zhenhua E-chem Inc. 0.33%
BINREH T RRN
BRAF
Shanghai Anlogic Infotech Co, Ltd. 1.86%
LEZRERNEERLA
United Nova Technology Co, Ltd. 0.10%
(formerly known as
Semiconductor Manufacturing
Electronics (Shaoxing)
Corporation)
U%$ﬁaV§Lh(ﬁmﬂ
(80 fﬁiuﬁﬁiq: /L:\7K (B R
ERHBRA
Grand Kangxi Cchmunication 0.42%
Technologies (Shanghail Co, Ltd.
BERABENR(LE)
KA ERRA
Huitongda Network Co, Ltd. 161%
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BEREF WD

Value of
investment as of
31 December
2023
BEaafE
1RA3AEZ
REEE

(RMB million)
(AREBET)

317

209

119

57.4

1337

295

2740

381

2495

Value of
investment as of
31 December
2022
HZanE
1283182
REEE

(RMB million)
(AREBET)

938

235

304

384

2281

64.7

5610

3268

(b)

I RERS
B Z=2023F128318 -

AEERA TR

(R2022F12 A31 8 : NIB) FHRERS
BE FHBOT:

Exchange on which the securities
are listed

BELHZREH

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

ERMARFMARR
Shanghai Stock Exchange

LBEFRHM

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

BEBERAMARD

Shenzhen Stock Exchange

RINEFZ S
Shanghai Stock Exchange

LEEFRSM
Shanghai Stock Exchange

LBESZHM
Shanghai Stock Exchange

LBEFZ M

Shanghai Stock Exchange (listed on
10 May 2023)

HEBEZHH
(Rao3FsA108 L)

Shanghai Stock Exchange (listed on
17 November 2023)

LBBEZ S
(Ra023%11 A178 £7)

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

Principal business of the
listed company

LHAREERE

Financial services

ERR

Research, design, development and
manufacture of chips

B Rit RERRERR
Provide supply chain fintech solutions

}Ef/\{/\ﬁgﬁﬁ Fﬂﬂﬂ&ﬁﬁ/)& 77_ HE?{

Research and development, design,
production and sales of optoelectronic
systems and technical services

e Rat £E HEXBERR
Rk %

Research, design, development and
manufacture of chips

W% Rt RENRERR

Research and development, design,
production and sales of lithium-ion
battery cathode materials

e &G LE HEERTER
R #

Research, design, development and
manufacture of chips

% &t REARERR

Research, design, development and
manufacture of chips

W% Rt REARERR

Research, design, development and
manufacture of wireless network
equipment related chips

% - &t - RENRIERERE

REEB2ER

Provide a one-stop supply chain trading
and service platform

ERBARHMERAR - RERER HHNRETA
AIEEBEAERAT 2023F K 31



Management Discussion and Analysis

ERENWED N

To utilise advantages of products from the smart systems technology business
and innovative content services, Skyworth Group opted to invest in business
partners in relation to building a smart-home platform, aiming to create a new
ecosystem for its smart human habitat business.

In addition to the listed equity securities mentioned above, the Group
maintains a stable portfolio of listed equity investments. These listed equity
securities are mainly for medium to long-term investment and are
concentrated in emerging industries such as semiconductors, new materials,
and new equipment that are similar to those of the Group or are in the
upstream or downstream industries. Therefore, the Group is able to make
reasonable judgments on their performance and compare them with the
industry. These high-tech industries are important business sectors advocated
by the PRC government, though returns on these investments may still be
subject to market uncertainty. The management will take a prudent approach
to regularly review these equity investments and implement necessary
measures to respond to market changes.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND ACQUISITIONS

During the Reporting Year, in order to cope with the increased production scale
and improved output ratio of smart products, the Group invested a total of
RMB1,443 million in construction projects, including the expansion of its
production plants in Ningbo, Wuhan, Shenzhen, Guangzhou and Qianhai, and
RMB1,097 million for acquisition of other property, plant and equipment. The
Group plans to further invest in building properties, plants, office premises and
purchasing new equipment, with a view to further increasing productivity,
improving operation efficiency for its products, as well as catering for future
business needs in the development of smart, diversified and internationalised
strategy.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There are individual patent disputes which arise in the ordinary course of
business of the Group. The Group is in the course of processing these matters.
The directors are of the view that these patent disputes will not have a
material adverse impact on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

HUMAN RESOURCES CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had around 31,200 employees (as at 31
December 2022: 31,400) in the PRC (Hong Kong and Macau inclusive) and
overseas, among which more than 90% of Skyworth employees are located in
business and production locations in various provinces and cities in China, and
the rest are stationed in the Hong Kong head office or overseas branches,
including Southeast Asian countries, such as the Philippines, Indonesia,
Thailand, Vietnam, Malaysia, as well as European and American markets such
as Germany, the Netherlands, France, Italy, the United Kingdom and the United
States. The Group places high emphasis on fundamental employee benefits,
appraisal systems, long-term and short-term incentive schemes, in an effort to
motivate and recognise staff with outstanding contributions and performance.
The Group allocates substantial resources for staff development, focusing on
pre-employment and on-the-job trainings, providing periodical updates on the
latest industrial trends, policies and guidelines to improve the quality of human
capital. Meanwhile, the Group continues to strengthen the infrastructure of
human resources, provides guidance on position titles, salary norms, and
gradually establishes a long-term centralised mechanism for the selection,
training and development of industry leaders. It also sets up a specified
department to enhance the professionalism of general staff and the
leadership skills of its senior management.

The Group's remuneration policy is determined with reference to individual
performance, functions and conditions of human resources market.

OUTLOOK

Looking back to 2023, despite the gloom of the COVID-19 gradually dissipated,
the main industries that have been driving domestic economic development in
recent years are showing signs of fatigue. In 2024, the Group looks forward to
become a new driving force in China's economy by leveraging its strength in
manufacturing and technology, driven by the huge demand for intelligent
manufacturing, digital economy and green environmental protection
industries in China's economic and social development and the strong support
policies of the Chinese government.
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ERENWED N

We believe that achieving important corporate indicators of improved per
capita output by reducing inefficiency and optimising resource allocation, and
focusing on the development of new generation products with high gross
profit margin and high output value enable the Group to maintain its market
leadership and seize more market share of new products, as well as ensure
the stable growth of the smart household appliances business as the
fundamentals of the Group. The Group will continue to develop products with
the technological development concept of “5G + Al + Device", promote the
research and development and application of new technologies, new materials
and new processes, consistently focus on enhancing core competitiveness of
the brand, and accurately understand demand of users. With the research and
development of products such as 56 home access system and control system
and new generation of smart appliances, it will consolidate its advantages as
a smart home system developer and operator. On the other hand, leveraging
on its leading position in the smart home appliances industry and digital
technology industry in the PRC, the Group will continue to firmly grasp the
opportunities arising from the digitisation, smartisation and low-carbonisation
of the global economy, and collaborate with hardware and software to meet
the needs of multiple scenarios. Based on the three major elements of
“connectivity, intelligence and ecology”, the Group is committed to building
smart home appliances and Double Carbon ecological brands, deploying multi-
modal Al products and technologies, vigorously developing smart device
carriers for Al and AIGC-related application functions and scenarios, and
expanding a full range of smart home content services, achieving the one-stop
smart control for home, office and vehicle, providing users with borderless and
interactive sharing experience.

In March 2024, the State Council of the PRC issued the “Action Plan for
Promoting Large-scale Equipment Upgrade and Trade-in of Consumer Goods"*
(B KRR RMEE AN E A E R FTTE 7 E ). it emphasised
that promoting large-scale equipment upgrade and trade-in of consumer
goods is an important measure to accelerate the construction of a new
development paradigm and promote high-quality development, which will
effectively stimulate investment and consumption, benefiting both the present
and the future. To facilitate comprehensive green transformation and fully
implement the Double Carbon strategy for economic and social development,
ten departments including the National Development and Reform Commission
of the PRC issued the "Guidance Catalogue for Green and Low-Carbon
Transformation Industries (2024 Edition)"* ({4% & K ik AU E ¥ 58 B £%
(2024 £F Kz ) ), which took into account the new situation, new tasks and new
requirements of green development, and specified the sub-categories and
specific content of key industries for energy saving and carbon reduction,
environmental protection and other green and low-carbon transformation. It
provided support for nurturing and strengthening new growth drivers for
green development and accelerating the development of green
transformation. Boosting domestic consumption and promoting green and
low-carbon concepts have become key directions for domestic and mature
economies around the world. The substitution of low-carbon industries for
high-carbon industries has become an irresistible trend in the era, while the
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Management Discussion and Analysis

trend of green and healthy consumption upgrading of residents has become
more prominent. By adhering to the “eco-smart” ecological intelligence
concept and building a brand image of “Green intelligence, low-carbon
intelligence and environmental intelligence”, Skyworth will create ultimate and
differentiated products and user experiences for global consumers.

As a photovoltaic enterprise that actively responds to the Double Carbon goal,
the development momentum of Skyworth's new energy business is becoming
stronger. In the future, the Group will continue to adhere to technological
innovation and long-term sustainability, build a strong brand image with flexible
product solutions, high-quality products, excellent quality control system,
efficient operation and maintenance services, and implement effective scientific
and technological management to build a complete and industry-leading digital
management platform, maximising the benefits of photovoltaic power stations
and implementing its commitment to the "Photovoltaics + Inclusive
development + Digital technology” business model and philosophy. Facing
tremendous market opportunities in the global photovoltaic and energy storage
sector, the Group is actively advancing the overseas development of the new
energy business. The Group will continuously deploy and extend the
photovoltaic industry chain and promote diversified green and low-carbon
development.

Based in China and facing the world, the Group will give full play to its own
advantages and enhance the mutual empowerment among the Group's
business units to promote the diversified development of various industries.
By generating value for users and markets in different regions through
continuous technological and product innovation, the Group will drive a high-
quality and sustainable development of the economy and the environment as
well as comprehensively enhance brand value and brand competitiveness,
paving the way for a better future of higher-quality development.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Up to the end of the current year and up to the date of this report, the Group
did not have any material events.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

EENEREEAESHN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

/_ Mr. Lin Jin, aged 39, is an Executive Director of the

Company and was appointed as the Chairman of the
Board on 7 July 2022. Mr. Lin graduated from the
University of Toronto with a bachelor degree in
applied science. He is currently a director in a
number of subsidiaries of the Company, including
Shenzhen Coocaa Network Technology Co,, Ltd.* (&
/  JITERAERHRA AR 2 ) and Skyworth
Digital Co. Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company and
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock code: 000810.52) (“Skywarth
Digital"). He is also currently a director (non-executive) of Skywell New Energy
Automobile Co,, Ltd* (7K T 82 )R /5 8 & 'R /2 &) and Skysource (China)
Investment Co,, Ltd.* (Bl JR X #b (R ) % & A BR 2 7)) and a number of
their respective subsidiaries. Prior to joining the Group in 2011, Mr. Lin worked
in MediaTek Inc. as a sales manager from November 2009 to October 2011 and
Realtek Semiconductor Corp. as a system development engineer from
September 2007 to September 2009. He has more than 10 years of work
experience in companies primarily engaged in the business of designing and
manufacturing electronics and electronic components. Mr. Lin was awarded
the Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong by the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries in 2021.

Mr. Lin is the son of Mr. Wong Wang Sang, Stephen, the former Non-executive
Director and a controlling shareholder of the Company, and Ms. Lin Wei Ping, a
current Executive Director. Save and except for the relationship with the Group
mentioned above, Mr. Lin does not have any relationship with any Director,
senior management, substantial shareholder or controlling shareholder of the
Company.

As at 31 December 2023, Mr. Lin has interests in the shares of the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
"SFQ"). Please refer to the details of his interests on pages 55 to 68 of this
report.
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EENEREEAEHN

Mr. Liu Tangzhi, aged 61, joined the Group in 1998. Mr.
Liu is an Executive Director and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. He was appointed as
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 1 April
2017 and was re-designated as the Vice Chairman of
the Board on 30 April 2022. Mr. Liu is the director of
Skyworth Group Co, Ltd* (£ 4 & E F R 2 7))
(“Skywaorth Group”) and Skyworth Digital.

—

__/

Mr. Liu graduated from the Zhongnan University of Economics and Law in
Wuhan with a bachelor’'s degree in economics, and graduated from Macao
University of Science and Technology with a master's degree in business
administration.

Save and except for the relationship with the Group mentioned above, Mr. Liu
does not have any relationship with any Director, senior management,
substantial shareholder or controlling shareholder of the Company.

As at 31 December 2023, Mr. Liu has interests in the shares of the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. Please refer to the details of his
interests on pages 55 to 68 of this report.

Mr. Shi Chi, aged 53, is an Executive Director of the
/ Company and was appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company on 30 April 2022. He joined
the Group in 2000 and is the chairman of Skyworth
Digital, in which Mr. Shi holds 3.2% shareholding. He is
also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Shi is primarily responsible for the
/ Company's daily operation management, promoting
the business development and implementation of
strategic plans of the Group.

Mr. Shi graduated from Huazhong University of Science & Technology with a
Doctorate degree in Communication and Electronic System and is a senior
engineer. Mr. Shi has been participating in numerous national and provincial
projects on technological researches, in charge of designing several high-end
digital television products and publishing over 20 articles in various
professional and science journals. He is the president of Shenzhen Young
Science and Technology Talents Association and the vice president of
Shenzhen Software Industry Association. He has served as the vice president
of China Radio and TV Equipment Industry Association.

Save and except for the relationship with the Group mentioned above, Mr. Shi
does not have any relationship with any Director, senior management,
substantial shareholder or controlling shareholder of the Company.

As at 31 December 2023, Mr. Shi has interests in the shares of the Company

within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. Please refer to the details of his
interests on pages 55 to 68 of this report.

38 SKYWORTH GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

BIFEMEE 6158 N198FMBAEE - |
EEBRITESNARAAETHERARES -
2017 F4 A1 HEZERARRRITTHRBE -
R02F4 AR ERATAARGEETSE £
BB hkERBBERBRAR ([BIESE])
NEIHETHES -

FEERXNRETEAMEBUAARE  BET
REBEBETBM REXNRFIBIAESE &
BYImERBETai-

BRIA P AR B 2 BRI BIREEAR
AMEMESRE SRERAR  TERRIE
P B SR AL SR AE AT BR R o

HZE2023F 1283181 BAEBERFAE
FREEEG) ExvEMD EE A QB FEERK
DHER - EEBEEEFIRARSEESESR
Fe8HNA °

HEEE 3R RARNEMBMITESE R
2022F4A0BBEZEARRRITHAH -1
000F MBAEE - BRAKHFTESR I
EEBBEFRIMRE BAREIAQASE
FHEBRARMNES - HEAETEAEARAFT
MEER  HEAREEMNERTRLEKIEHE

e
E"] =N

MBEERENEFRMZIAZ  BEBREEEER
MEFXTEFELEM RESRIEM - -k
ER2EZBEERLEFHAEE - THRHRE
ZRBFEASRER  LEZXLRMETY
EEXRBX-THE - BEERERITE

MEATHBEERA)TRGTEHSE S
R RECHEERERKEIXHEAER -

BRIA EPrE AR B 2 BERSN - iR R A R
AMHEBES SREBAE  FTERFRNKE
P P SR L AT AR BR AR -

HZE2023F12A3181F MEEBEEFA (E
H R ERE B FExvE D E & AR R B ER
DEEZ - EHBEERFIRARELHE
F68EHMA ©



B
- EEEEEESEny g

Directors and Senior Management Profiles

EENEREEAESHN

Ms. Lin Wei Ping, aged 66, is an Executive Director, a
member of each of the Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Lin was appointed
as the Executive Chairperson of the Company on 1
April 2013 and resigned on 8 July 2016.

—

/ Ms. Lin joined the Group in 1993. Ms. Lin was the

deputy manager of purchasing department and

administration manager in Hong Kong and subsequently, the head of human

resources department of the Group, primarily responsible for material

purchasing from overseas market and administration and human capital
management for certain companies within the Group.

Ms. Lin graduated from South China University of Technology in the PRC with a
bachelor degree in electronic engineering. Before joining the Group, Ms. Lin had
worked in the Ministry of Information Industry in the PRC as a research
engineer.

Ms. Lin is the spouse of Mr. Wong Wang Sang, Stephen, the former non-
Executive Director and a controlling shareholder of the Company and mother
of Mr. Lin Jin, the current Chairman of the Board and Executive Director. Save
and except for the relationship mentioned above, Ms. Lin does not have any
relationship with any Director, senior management, substantial shareholder or
controlling shareholder of the Company.

As at 31 December 2023, Ms. Lin has interests in the shares of the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. Please refer to the details of her
interests on pages 55 to 68 of this report.
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Mr. Lam Shing Choi, Eric, aged 52, is the Company
Secretary of the Company and he was appointed as
an Executive Director on 28 February 2020.

—

Mr. Lam is mainly responsible for overseeing the
finance functions, corporate governance matters
and investor relationship of the Group. Mr. Lam
/ joined the Group in March 1998 as the finance
manager, and was responsible for preparing the
monthly financial statements. In January 2001, he was transferred to Skyworth
Multimedia International Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
as the financial controller, and was in charge of the finance department. From
2006 to 2007, he worked as the financial controller of Skyworth Overseas
Development Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and
oversaw the finance department, internal control, financial statements and
banking facilities. Mr. Lam then served as the financial controller of Skyworth
TV Holdings Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) from 2007 to
2011 and was responsible for the banking facility arrangement and financial
reporting of the Group. He has been the financial controller of the TV business
unit of the Group since December 2011 and the LCD business unit of the Group
since December 2012. He is also a director and/or company secretary of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lam graduated from Monash University in
Australia with a bachelor's degree of business in accounting and a bachelor's
degree of computing in information systems. Mr. Lam is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Certified
Practising Accountants Australia. Mr. Lam has over 20 years of working
experience in corporate finance, banking and accounting.

Mr. Lam was an independent non-executive director of AGBA Acquisition
Limited, which is listed on NASDAQ Stock Market in the United States of America,
from February 2019 to 15 November 2022.

Save and except for the relationship with the Group mentioned above, Mr. Lam
does not have any relationship with any Director, senior management,
substantial shareholder or controlling shareholder of the Company.

As at 31 December 2023, Mr. Lam has interests in the shares of the Company

within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. Please refer to the details of his
interests on pages 55 to 68 of this report.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

—

Mr. Li Weibin, aged 62, is an Independent Non-
executive Director, the chairperson of Remuneration
Committee, a member of each of the Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee. He was first
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
on 10 March 2000.

/ Mr. Li is a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong and is the
founder and senior partner of Li & Partners, a firm of
solicitors in Hong Kong. He graduated from the China University of Political
Science and Law in Beijing, the postgraduate school of the Chinese Academy of
Social Sciences in Beijing and the University of Hong Kong with a bachelor
degree in law, a master degree in law and a bachelor degree in common law,
respectively. Mr. Li is also admitted to practice law in the PRC, England and
Wales and New York, USA. Mr. Li is a China-appointed attesting officer, a visiting
professor in the China University of Palitical Science and Law and has worked
in the legal field for over 30 years. Mr. Li was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the 6th session of the board of PICC Property and Casualty
Company Limited (stock code: 2328) with effect from 31 July 2023. Mr. Li is
currently a member of the Political Consultative Committee of China, a
distinguished professor in the Liaison Office of the Central People’s
Government in Hong Kong S.A.R, an arbitrator of The China International
Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission, an arbitrator of Shenzhen Court
of International Arbitration, a mediator of the HKCEA Commercial Affairs
Mediation Committee, a legal consultant of the Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises
Association, an honorary legal adviser of the Chinese Financial Association of
Hong Kong, a legal consultant of the Chinese Securities Association of Hong
Kong, a legal consultant of the Hong Kong Volunteers Federation, a legal
consultant of Virtus Foundation, the founder of China Innovation Foundation,
the founder of Li & Partners Charity Foundation.

Save and except for the relationship with the Group mentioned above, Mr. Li
does not have any relationship with any Director, senior management,
substantial shareholder or controlling shareholder of the Company.

As at 31 December 2023, Mr. Li has interests in the shares of the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. Please refer to the details of his
interests on pages 55 to 68 of this report.
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Mr. Cheong Ying Chew, Henry, aged 76, is an
Independent Non-executive Director, the chairperson
of Audit Committee, a member of each of the
Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. He was first appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 1 January
2015.

—

Mr. Cheong holds a Bachelor of Science (Mathematics)

degree from Chelsea College, University of London and a Master of Science
(Operational Research and Management) degree from Imperial College,
University of London. Mr. Cheong has over 40 years of experience in the
securities industry.

He is an independent non-executive director of CK Asset Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Cheung Kong Property Holdings Limited), CK Infrastructure
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Cheung Kong Infrastructure Holdings
Limited) and New World Department Store China Limited, all being companies
listed in Hong Kong. He is also an independent director of BTS Group Holdings
Public Company Limited, a company listed in Thailand, and an executive
director and the deputy chairman of Worldsec Limited, a company listed in
London.

He was an independent non-executive director of TOM Group Limited from
2000 to 2019, an independent non-executive director of Greenland Hong Kong
Holdings Limited from 2006 to 2019, an independent non-executive director of
CNNC International Limited from 2008 to 2019, an independent non-executive
director of Hutchison Telecommunications Hong Kong Holdings Limited from
2009 to 2019.

Save and except for the relationship with the Group mentioned above, Mr.
Cheong does not have any relationship with any Director, senior management,
substantial shareholder or controlling shareholder of the Company.

As at 31 December 2023, Mr. Cheong does not have interests in the shares of
the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
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Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement, aged 68, is an Independent
Non-executive Director, the chairperson of
Nomination Committee, a member of each of the
Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee. He
was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director on 18 March 2020.

—

/ Mr. Hung obtained a bachelor of arts degree from
the University of Lincoln (formerly known as
University of Huddersfield), United Kingdom in 1980. Mr. Hung had served
Deloitte China for 31 years where he had assumed various leadership roles,
including the managing partner of Deloitte Shenzhen office and Guangzhou
office, before he took up the chairman role of Deloitte China from 2014 to 2016.
He was also a member of the China management team of Deloitte China. Mr.
Hung had also assumed the role of the southern audit leader and the deputy
managing partner of the southern region of China (including Hong Kong, Macau,
Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Xiamen and Changsha). He was also a board member of
Deloitte Global. In June 2016, he retired from Deloitte China.

Mr. Hung served as the Guangzhou Institute of Certified Public Accountants
consultant from 2004 to 2014. During the period between 2006 and 2011, he
also served as a member of the Political Consultative Committee of Luohu
District, Shenzhen. After his retirement as the chairman of Deloitte China, he
was appointed as an expert consultant of the Ministry of Finance in the
People’s Republic of China. Mr. Hung is a life member of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

Mr. Hung is serving as a director of each of the following listed companies
whose issued shares are listed on the Stock Exchange:

. a non-executive director of High Fashion International Limited (stock
code: 608) since 1 December 2017;

. an independent non-executive director of Starjoy Wellness and Travel
Company Limited (formerly known as Aoyuan Healthy Life Group
Company Limited) (stock code: 3662) since 22 February 2019;

. an independent non-executive director of China East Education Holdings

Limited (stock code: 667) since 25 November 2018,

. an independent non-executive director of Huarong International
Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 993) since 13 December 2019,
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. an independent non-executive director of USPACE Technology Group
Limited (formerly known as Hong Kong Aerospace Technology Group
Limited) (stock code: 1725) since 16 July 2021; and

. an independent non-executive director of JX Energy Ltd. (formerly
known as Persta Resources Inc.) (stock code: 3395) since 1 August 2023.

With effect from 18 July 2022, Mr. Hung has been appointed as an independent
supervisor of the supervisory committee of Ping An Insurance (Group)
Company of China, Ltd. whose shares are both listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 2318) and Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601318).

Mr. Hung was an independent non-executive director of Tibet Water Resources
Ltd. (stock code: 1115) from 31 December 2019 to 30 June 2021. He was an
independent non-executive director of SY Holdings Group Limited (formerly
known as Sheng Ye Capital Limited) (stock code: 6069, the listing of the shares
of which has been transferred to the Main Board from the GEM of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 8469) from 24 October 2019) from 19 June 2017 to 15 July
2022. He was an independent non-executive director of Gome Finance
Technology Company Limited (formerly known as Sino Credit Holdings Limited)
(stock code: 628) from 31 October 2016 to 12 December 2023.

Save and except for the relationship with the Group mentioned above, Mr. Hung
does not have any relationship with any Director, senior management,
substantial shareholder or controlling shareholder of the Company.

As at 31 December 2023, Mr. Hung does not have interests in the shares of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

—

Mr. Wu Wei, aged 57, joined the Group in May 1997.
Mr. Wu is a professor-level engineer who graduated
from ShanghaiTech University with a bachelor
degree in radio electronics. From May 1997 to
January 2005, Mr. Wu served as deputy chief
engineer and chief engineer of Shenzhen
Chuangwei-RGB Electronics Co,, Ltd,; from January
/ 2005 to February 2009, he worked as vice president
of Skyworth Multimedia (Overseas) Company Limited
and general manager of its Research Centre; Mr. Wu was appointed as chief
engineer of the TV business unit since February 2009, and he has been serving
as chief engineer of Skyworth Group since 2017. Mr. Wu is the director of
Skyworth Group since 2021.

Mr. Wu personally owns 13 authorised patents for invention and has published
8 theses on national publications. He presided and participated in the
implementation of a number of China's key national programmes, including
the project of core electronic components, high-end general use chips and
basic software products, the 863 Programme, the Key Technologies R&D
Programme, as well as electronics funds under the Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology. In total, Mr. Wu has contributed 1 State Scientific &
Technological Progress Award (First Class), 6 Guangdong Province Science &
Technology Awards, and 8 Shenzhen Municipality Scientific & Technological
Progress Awards for the Group.

Mr. Wu is a member of the National Standardisation Technical Committee for
Audio, Video & Multimedia System and Equipment, the deputy director of
Zhongguancun Audio-Visual Industry Technology Innovation Alliance, and a
member of China's Expert Committee of Supplier Alliance for Smart
Manufacturing Solutions. He is also head of the Guangdong Provincial Research
Centre of Engineering Technology for Ultra-HD Display, a member of the
Guangdong Provincial "Expert Panel for the Promotion of 4K Application &
Sector Development”, director of the Guangdong Provincial Standardisation
Technical Committee for Green Manufacturing of Electrical & Electronic
Products, and secretary general of the Shenzhen Municipality Alliance for
Industry Standards of Smart TV.

Save and except for the relationship with the Company as mentioned above,
Mr. Wu does not have any relationship with any director, senior management,
substantial shareholder or controlling shareholders of the Company.
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/_ Mr. Ying Yiming, aged 48, is the financial controller of
the Company.
Mr. Ying graduated from Hubei Normal University in
the People’s Republic of China majoring in Computer
Accounting. He is a PRC accountant and a non-
executive member of The Chinese Institute of
/ Certified Public Accountants, and has over 23 years
of experience in accounting and financial
management. Mr. Ying joined the Group in 2000 and has been the director and
financial controller of Skyworth Mobile Communication Technology (Shenzhen)
Co, Ltd* (Bl 4 7% Bh 3 (5 iy O3 B IR 2 7)), and head of the Accounting
Department (PRC Division) and director of the Finance and Operations
Management Department of Skyworth Group. Mr. Ying is currently the head of
the Information Technology Department of Skyworth Group, and director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company including Skyworth Digital, Skyworth
Group, Skyworth Group Finance Co, Ltd.* (£l 4t £= B 81 % B R A 7)) and
Shenzhen Skyworth Photovoltaic Technology Co, Ltd.* (5 Il &l 4 Y¢ (X B
BRAR).

Save and except for the relationship with the Company as mentioned above,
Mr. Ying does not have any relationship with any Director, senior management,
substantial shareholder or controlling shareholder of the Company.

*  For identification purposes only
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The directors of the Company (the "Directors”) are pleased to present the
annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the financial year ended 31 December 2023 (hereinbelow also referred to as
the Reporting Year).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holdings company. The Group, comprising the
Company and its subsidiaries, is principally engaged in manufacture and sales
of smart TV systems, home access systems, photovoltaic products, smart
white appliances, intelligent manufacturing, internet value-added services,
property development, property holding, modern services and trading of other
products. Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures of the Group are set out in notes 45 and 21 of the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the Reporting Year, including the
discussion on the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, important
events affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the Reporting
Year and an indication of the likely future developments, is set out in the
“Chairman'’s Statement” on pages 3 to 9 and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 11 to 35 of this report. The above discussions form part of
this Directors' Report. Details about the Group's financial risk management are
set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of the
Group's performance for the Reporting Year using financial key performance
indicators is set out in the “Financial Highlights" on page 2 and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 11 to 35 of this report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages 120 to
121 of this report.

The board of Directors (the “Board”) has proposed a final dividend for the
Reporting Year of 5 HK cents (in cash) per share of the Company (2022: Nil),
totalling approximately RMB108 million (2022: Nil), as at the date of this report
to the shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company at the close of business on Monday, 3 June 2024, and
the retention of the remaining profit for the Reporting Year in reserves.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, pursuant to which the Company
may from time to time in general meeting declare dividends in any currency to
be paid to the shareholders of the Company, but no dividend shall be declared
in excess of the amount recommended by the Board. The Board may from time
to time pay to the shareholders of the Company such interim dividends as
appear to the Board to be justified by the profits of the Company.

The proposed dividend payout as determined by the Board at the time of
declaration of dividend would depend on, among other matters, the
distributable profits, cash flow, liquidity and financial position, current and
future operations, capital requirements and surplus of the Company, as well as
dividends received from Company's subsidiaries and associates. The payment
of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under Bermuda laws and the
Company's bye-laws.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to promoting long term environmental
sustainability and creating sustainable value for stakeholders by providing
safe, reliable and high-quality products and services that satisfy our
customers. We strive to encourage higher awareness of environmental
conservation at our workplace. The Group established a Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy which defines our long-term approach to specific issues
in four key aspects: Workplace, Environment, Operating Practices and
Community, which is instrumental in enabling our business to operate in a
sustainable manner.

The Group strives to achieve the foregoing environmental objectives by
minimising the environmental impact concerning its daily business operations
and promoting environmental protection in the supply chain and workplace.
We aspire to reduce pollutions, emissions and wastes, increase recycling and
minimise energy consumption by continually improving our environmental
management policies and practices and educating our employees to adopt
environmentally responsible behaviour.

The Group always cherishes natural resources and believes that business
expansion and minimisation of the consumption of natural resources can co-
exist. In relation to the efficient use of resources, the Group has introduced
various energy efficiency strategies and measures including implementation
of energy-saving machines, installation of eco-friendly lighting system, and
reduction of water and paper consumption.

To ensure that our actions and initiatives are effective and relevant, the Board
regularly reviews our environmental, social and governance strategy and
monitor our progress in achieving such objectives.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the Reporting Year, the Group has complied with the relevant laws and
regulations that have significantimpact on the operations of the Group.

On the corporate level, the Company and all of its subsidiaries have complied
with the relevant laws of their respective place of incorporation and the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the "SFQ") where they are applicable. The Group has adopted its
own code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors (the “Code
of Conduct”) on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set
out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).

In relation to human resources, the Group is committed to complying with the
requirements of the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, the Employment
Ordinance, the Minimum Wage Ordinance and ordinances relating to disability,
gender, family status and race discrimination, as well as occupational safety of
employees of the Group, so as to safeguard the interests and well-being of its
employees.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS
@ Employees

The Group believes that employees are the primary force in driving its
business growth and considers them to be the most valuable assets of
a company and strives to help its employees achieve their full potential
both personally and professionally. We promote team spirit and offer
various training programmes to help improve the competency, work
skills, expertise and performance of employees. The training
programmes also help employees raise awareness on environmental
issues and workplace discrimination to improve their understanding of
the strategies and policies of the Group.

() Customers

The Group strives to achieve corporate sustainability in providing quality
products and services to its customers. We have established strict
quality control to ensure continuous improvement of product quality by
conducting regular market surveys to gain market insights and
feedback.

© Suppliers

The Group has established a well-governed supplier selection and
evaluation system. We adhere to open, fair and transparent criteria in
selecting suppliers and carry out long-term monitoring of suppliers’
quality and conduct regular reviews of all suppliers to ensure they can
meet the requirements, values and expectations of the Group.
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(d Shareholders and Investors

The Group has in place an effective corporate communication system
which provides transparent, regular and timely public disclosures to its
shareholders and investors. We believe that the accurate and timely
information disclosure can facilitate constructive feedback and ideas
that are beneficial for investor relations and future corporate
development.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past 5 financial years is set out on page 266 of this report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the Reporting Year, the Group incurred approximately RMB1,443 million
in production plants construction at various locations within the People's
Republic of China (the "PRC").

The Group acquired additional plant and machinery at a cost of approximately
RMB297 million for the expansion of existing production facilities and setting
up of new production facilities. Details of these and other movements in the
property, plant and equipment of the Group during the Reporting Year are set
outin note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme and share award schemes of the Company
disclosed in the section headed "Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Share Options and Awarded Shares” below and note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked agreement was entered
into by the Company during the Reporting Year or subsisted at the end of the
Reporting Year.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Reporting Year are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

Details of movements in the share premium and reserves of the Group during
the Reporting Year are set out in the "Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity” on pages 124 to 125 of this report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company's reserves available for distribution to shareholders of the
Company as at 31 December 2023 amounted to approximately RMB2,934
million (2022: RMB1,464 million).

Details of the distributable reserves of the Company during the Reporting Year
are set out in note 47 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's bye-laws,
or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S LISTED
SECURITIES

During the Reporting Year, the Board considered that repurchases of Shares
would lead to an enhancement of the earnings per Share and overall
shareholders return, thus the Company has purchased a total of 182,398,000
Shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration
of approximately HK$752.42 million (excluding expenses). 179,548,000 Shares
were cancelled as of 29 December 2023 and 2,850,000 Shares were cancelled
as of 12 January 2024. As at 31 December 2023, the total number of Shares in
issue was 2,405,653,420.

Details of the repurchase are summarised as follows:

Total number of

BARBRGD 2ER

ARB 2 ARARIRBRE AP EE T L
MARARRERRELRE RN Z#HN (B
AARBIARARRIRLPIHERED) -

Bg)\ CHEFBEEARQAT 2 EHE

REBEFEAN EFZRABERROATRES
ERBEGzABANEEREEREDR Bt~
N R AR AT A A $£ 182,398,000 A1 - B
BHABEEKI 228 T (FTREML) -
179,548,000 B I 179 2 72 2023 F 12 A 29 B 4 5T 85 &
2,850,000 f% I 9 B 202451 B 12 B #e st 8 o
R2023F 12 A31H BEETRHEBH A
2,405,653,420 )% ©

BREBLFEHRAMT

Shares repurchased Aggregate
Month of repurchase (Note b) Consideration per Share consideration paid
B8 [E] 7 17 48 B
BE A &5 (Kfatn) BRAE X RARELE
Highest price Lowest price
B=E BIEE
(HKS) (HKS) (HKS)
(B (FBHE) (B%)
May 2023 (Note a) 20235 B (Kfata) 100,000,000 5.00 5.00 500,000,000.00
August 2023 2023 FF8 A 8,000,000 2.90 267 22,482,400.00
September 2023 2023 F9 A 34,604,000 343 2.90 111,335,445.00
November 2023 2023 F 11 A 8,544,000 3.08 2.84 25,737,899.00
December 2023 2023F 12 A 31,250,000 3.10 2.81 92,867,225.80
Total et 182,398,000 - - 752,422,969.80
Notes: HaE -
(@ Please refer to the section below headed “Conditional Cash Offer to Buy-back Up to  (a) HERESH TITX A RGBS ENRTRRG BT
100,000,000 Shares at HK$5 Per Share” for details. 9 B % % 3 100,000,000 R B& 17 | #8 9 ©
() 179,548,000 Shares were cancelled as of 29 December 2023 and 2,850,000 Shares were  (b) 179,548,000 8 fx 5 B 12023 F 12 A 29 B # s 88 &

cancelled as of 12 January 2024.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company's listed securities during the
Reporting Year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Year, the aggregate revenue attributable to the Group's 5
largest customers accounted for 36.3% of the Group's total revenue. The
aggregate purchase attributable to the Group's 5 largest suppliers accounted
for 17.2% of the Group's total purchase and the purchase attributable to the
Group's largest supplier was 4.2% of the total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders of the Company
(who to the knowledge of the Directors owns 5% or more of the issued shares
of the Company) has any interest in any of the Group's abovementioned 5
largest customers or suppliers.

DONATIONS

During the Reporting Year, the Group made charitable donations of
approximately RMB1.0 million (2022: RMB1.2 million).

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Reporting Year and up to the date of
this report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lin Jin (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Tangzhi (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Shi Chi (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lin Wei Ping

Mr. Lam Shing Choi, Eric

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Li Weibin
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew, Henry
Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 36 to 46 of this report
and on the website of the Company. A list setting out the names of the
Directors and their roles and functions is posted on the websites of the
Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“HKEx")
(www.hkexnews.hk).

In accordance with bye-law 84 of the Company's bye-laws, Mr. Lin Jin, Mr. Shi
Chi and Mr. Li Weibin will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and considers all of them to be independent. The Nomination
Committee also reviewed Directors’ independence on a meeting held on 26
March 2024.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the existing Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 36 to 46 of this report.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory compensation. All Independent
Non-executive Directors have entered into letters of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years which may be terminated by either party by
giving to the other not less than one month's notice in writing.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the Directors' interests in the Company's 2014 Share Option Scheme
and the 2020 Share Award Scheme (as respectively defined below), and as
disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions/Contracts of
Significance with Controlling Shareholder” in this report in relation to
transactions with entities controlled by Mr. Wong Wang Sang, Stephen, who is
the controlling shareholder of the Company and the spouse of Ms. Lin Wei Ping,
an Executive Director, no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance,
to which the Company, its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, was a party and
in which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Reporting Year or at any time during the
Reporting Year.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the interests in share options of the Company as disclosed in this
Directors' Report, and in the share option schemes and the 2020 Share Award
Scheme disclosed in note 33 and note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively, at no time during the Reporting Year was the
Company, any of its subsidiaries, the Company's holding company or any of
the holding company'’s subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debenture of the Company or any other body corporate.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the Reporting Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company's bye-laws provides that the Directors, secretary and other
officers of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they may incur or sustain by or by
reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of
their duty in their offices, provided that this indemnity shall not extend to any
matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any
Directors, secretary and other officers of the Company.

In addition, an appropriate insurance cover had been arranged by the
Company in respect of legal action arising from the business of the Group
against the Directors.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
SHARE OPTIONS AND AWARDED SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions that the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company had or were deemed to have in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the SFQ), which were required (i) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SF0); or (i) to be
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO; or (iii) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:
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(@) Long Positions in shares of the Company and Associated

Corporations
The Company

@ REQXFAREBBEEZERG2HFRER

INT

b
J

AT

Approximate
percentage of the

Number of total number of
Name of Director Capacity Shares held issued Shares
HERT
[igng Y-
EEHA &4 BERGZEE BHBE D
(Note d)
(KiaEd)
LinJin Beneficial owner 3,898,719 0.16%
RED BEmEEA
Liu Tangzhi Beneficial owner 5,000,000 0.21%
53 EnEAA
Shi Chi Beneficial owner 18,000,000 0.75%
7t it EREAA
Beneficiary of a trust  (Note e 8,000,000 0.33%
BEEmA (Kizte)
Spousal interest 15,084,000 0.63%
Hic (B 7 2w
41,084,000 1.71%
Lin Wei Ping Beneficial owner 9,160,382 0.38%
EF EmEBA
Spousal interest (Notes a and b) 1,238,258,799 51.47%
[IREIEY 2 (HtetalXb)
(Notes a and c) 1,247,419,181 51.85%
(Ktatalkc)
Lam Shing Choi, Eric Beneficial owner 2,500,000 0.10%
PR B EmEBA
Beneficiary of a trust (Note e) 1,000,000 0.04%
BErEXmA (Krate)
Li Weibin Beneficial owner 1,000,000 0.04%
R, EmEAA
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Notes:

@

(b)

(@

(d

(e

A TLLL TS
1y "
(L} LT

37,300,000 Shares are held by Mr. Wong Wang Sang, Stephen and 1,200,958,799
Shares are held by Target Success Group (PTC) Limited ("Target Success") in its
capacity as trustee of the Skysource Unit Trust in which all of the units and issued
shares of Target Success are held by Mr. Wong Wang Sang, Stephen. As such, Mr.
Wong Wang Sang, Stephen is interested and deemed to be interested in
1,238,258,799 Shares.

Ms. Lin Wei Ping is interested in 1,247,419,181 Shares, which comprise 9,160,382
Shares held by herself and the deemed interests in 1,238,258,799 Shares held by her
spouse Mr. Wong Wang Sang, Stephen.

Mr. Wong Wang Sang, Stephen is interested in 1,247,419,181 Shares, which comprise
37,300,000 Shares held by himself, the deemed interests in 1,200,958,799 Shares held
by Target Success and the deemed interests in 9,160,382 Shares held by his spouse
Ms. Lin Wei Ping.

The calculation is based on the total number of issued Shares of the Company (i.e.
2,405,653,420 Shares) as at 31 December 2023.

Please refer to the section below headed “(c) Awarded Shares of the Company” for
details on the Directors' interest in the underlying shares of the Company.

Associated corporation — Skyworth Digital Co., Ltd.
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(@]
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(e

37,300,000 R EBERETERE K
1,200,958,799 % % {5 FA Target Success Group (PTC)
Limited ([ Target Success |) M fE s X AR &
Skysource Unit Trust ¥ & - 11 2 & & i A Target
Success EREBITRMBRHBREXERA
Al E24EEERERERRFA
1,238,258,799 AR AR 19 2 #E &% o

BT 455 1,247,419181 BRAG (D 2 #E5 - &
FEIEREAR AR F 9160382 17D KiE1R A
A mRERBEEE LA E 1238258799 i% i%
Wz -

BRELEE G 1247419181 R 2 S - &
P35 EL AR A 35 #937,300000 BX A% 1D~ AR A
5 75 A Target Success FT 15 B #91,200,958,799 A% i%
Rz RER A ERERBARE L
575 799,160,382 ik i 1 2 1 7= ©

STEERAARN2023F12 A3ABEEHITZ
5 17 48 25 (BD 2,405,653,420 f%) °

ERESHEAARMRBBRMOPOREFE  #
2HRTXOARBZ ZEERD I EBD -

BEEE - AR BT REERAT

Approximate
percentage of the
Number of total number of
Name of Director Capacity shares held issued shares
HE BT
EEE ] IR 1748z
EEpE &4 i griea ¢ BABE D
(Note a)
(Kiata)
Liu Tangzhi Beneficial owner 600,000 0.05%
B33 EREAA
Shi Chi Beneficial owner 36,770,524 3.20%
bt 5t EREAA
Note: et -
(a) The calculation is based on the total number of issued shares of Skyworth Digital Co., (a) FE T ER BB TR A R A RN 2023 F 12

Ltd. (i.e. 1,150,216,072 shares) as at 31 December 2023.
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Share Options of the Company

The Company adopted its current share option scheme at an annual
general meeting of the Company held on 20 August 2014 (the “2014
Share Option Scheme”). A summary of the principal terms of the 2014
Share Option Scheme is set out below.

Purpose

The purpose of the 2014 Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Board to grant options to selected eligible person(s) as incentives
or rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to the
Group.

Participants

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it
may think fit, grant options to any eligible person (the Board will
take into account, when considering grants, the requirements
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules (@as amended) as to the class
of persons who can be eligible participants with respect to a
share scheme) to subscribe at a price determined in accordance
with paragraph 7 below for such number of Shares as it may
determine in accordance with the terms of the 2014 Share Option
Scheme.

The basis of eligibility of any of the eligible persons to the grant of
options shall be determined by the Board from time to time on
the basis of his contribution or potential contribution to the
development and growth of the Group.

Total Number of Shares Available for Issue under the 2014 Share
Option Scheme and Percentage of Issued Share Capital as at the
Date of This Report

145,700,239 Shares (6.14%).

Maximum Entitlement of Each Participant

The maximum number of shares issuable under options granted
to each participant under the 2014 Share Option Scheme within
any 12-month period up to the date of grant is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of options in
excess of such limit must be separately approved by
shareholders with such participant and his/her close associates
(within the meaning of the Listing Rules) abstaining from voting.
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Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company (or any of their respective associates)
must be approved by the independent non-executive Directors
(excluding any who is the grantee of options). Where any grant of
share options to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive Director (or any of their respective associates) will
result in the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of share options already granted and to be granted to
such person under the 2014 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) in any 12-month period up
to and including the date of grant representing in aggregate over
0.1% of the Company's shares in issue, and having an aggregate
value, based on the closing price of the Company's shares at each
date of grant, in excess of HK$5 million, such further grant of
share options is required to be approved by shareholders in a
general meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules. Any change
in the terms of share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive Director (or any of their
respective associates) is also required to be approved by the
shareholders of the Company.

Time of Exercise of Option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
2014 Share Option Scheme at any time during a period
commencing on such date on or after the date on which the
option is granted as the Board may determine in granting the
option and expiring at the close of business on such date as the
Board may determine in granting the option but in any event shall
not exceed 10 years from the date of grant (which is the date of
offer of grant if the offer for the grant of the option is accepted).

No minimum period, during which the option granted under the
2014 Share Option Scheme must be held, is specified in the 2014
Share Option Scheme.

Acceptance of Offers

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 30 days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount
payable by the grantee of option(s) to the Company on
acceptance of the offer for a grant of option(s) is HK$1.00.
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The Basis of Determining the Exercise Price

The option price per Share payable on the exercise of an option is
to be determined by the Board provided always that it shall be at
least the higher of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange for the date
of offer of grant which must be a business day; and

(ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of
offer of grant,

provided that the option price per Share shall in no event be less
than the nominal amount of one Share.

The Remaining Life of the 2014 Share Option Scheme

The 2014 Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
10 years commencing on the date on which the 2014 Share Option
is adopted by Shareholders in general meeting and shall expire at
the close of business on the day immediately preceding the tenth
anniversary thereof (i.e. 19 August 2024) unless terminated earlier
by Shareholders in general meeting.
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The following tables show the movements in the Company's RAREFE N - 1B 2014 F B8 %
share options granted to the employees under the 2014 Share BETEIME TREMN AR R BERE
Option Scheme during the Reporting Year: EE)ERM TR
Employees (==}
Number of share options
BREHE
Cancelled/
Granted Lapsed
Outstanding during the Exercised duringthe  Outstanding
Exercise asat Reporting during the Reporting asat
price 1 January Year Reporting Year 31 December
Date of grant HKS  Vesting period Exercisable period 2023 (Note c) Year (Note c) 2023
rRE
Ra023 & AR E FERN  RanF
TEE 118 EEARYE ARE HH/&R 12AnA
okl AT R i R AT (fiitc) FERTHE (Fiatc) i R AT B
22 January 2016 4226 22 January 2016 to 1 September 2016 to 5,594,000 - - - 5,594,000
31 August 2016 20 August 2024
016F1822H 06F1A 2R W6FIALIAE
Z016F8A31H 204F8A208
22 January 2016 to 1 September 2017 to 6,530,000 - - - 6,530,000
31 August 2017 20 August 2024
W6F1A2BEE 07F9A1HE
017F8A31H 02458 H0A
22 January 2016 to 1 September 2018 to 10,984,000 - - - 10,984,000
31 August 2018 20 August 2024
6F1H 2R 018F9H1AE
ZF018F8A318  2004F8H0H
15 April 2019 2680  15April2019to 30 September 2019 to 392,000 = = = 392,000
29 September 2019 20 August 2024
201948150 19F4A15HE  2019F9ANHEE
0195 9H 297 024F8H0H
15 April 2019 to 30 September 2020 to 294,000 = = = 294,000
29 September 2020 20 August 2024
M19F4A15HZ  200F9A30HE
0205 9H 297 2024F8 AR
15 April 2019 to 30 September 2021 to 534,000 = = = 534,000
29 September 2021 20 August 2024
M19F4A15HE  200F9AF30HE
021%F9A29R 202458 208
Grand Total: 24,328,000 - - - 24,328,000

CEX
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The closing price of the Shares immediately before 22 January 2016 and 15 April 2019 (i.e. the
date on which the respective share options referred to above were granted) was HK$4.22 and
HK$2.62 respectively.

The fair value of share option granted on 22 January 2016 and 15 April 2019 is HK$4.22 per
Share and HK$2.62 per Share, respectively.

No share options under the 2014 Share Option Scheme were granted/exercised/cancelled/
lapsed during the Reporting Year.

The number of options available for grant under the 2014 Share Option Scheme at the
beginning and the end of the Reporting Year was 145,700,239 Shares.

The number of shares that may be issued in respect of options granted under the 2014 Share
Option Scheme during the financial year divided by the weighted average number of Shares
of the relevant class in issue for the year is 6.9%.

The exercise of share options is subject to the fulfilment of the relevant exercising conditions
and performance targets.

Details of the fair value of the share options at the date of grant and the accounting standard

and policy adopted are set out in note 2 of the Company’s 2023 audited consolidated
financial statements.
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Awarded Shares of the Company
2020 Share Award Scheme

The Board adopted a share award scheme on 21 October 2020 (the “2020
Share Award Scheme"). A summary of the principal terms of the 2020
Share Award Scheme is set out below:

1 Purpose

The purpose of the 2020 Share Award Scheme is to recognise the
contributions by selected participants to the Group and to
incentivise them in order to retain them for the continual
operation and development of the Group, and to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group.

2. Participants

The Board may, from time to time, at their absolute discretion
select any eligible participants for participation in the 2020 Share
Award Scheme.

The basis of eligibility of any of the eligible participants to the
grant of awarded shares shall be determined by the Board from
time to time on the basis of his/her contribution or potential
contribution to the development and growth of the Group.

3. Total Number of Shares Available for Grant under the 2020 Share

Award Scheme and Percentage of Issued Share Capital as at the
Date of This Report

5,243,068 Shares (0.22%).

The awards underlying the 2020 Share Award Scheme are fulfilled
by existing Shares purchased from the secondary market by a
trustee appointed for this purpose and does not involve new
issuances of Shares.

4. Maximum Entitlement of Each Participant

The maximum number of Shares to be awarded under the 2020
Share Award Scheme throughout its duration shall not exceed (i)
80,000,000 Shares or (i) 2% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time (whichever is the lower). The
maximum number of Shares which may be awarded to a selected
participant (including vested and non-vested) under the 2020
Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time.

(c)
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EEEHE

KAT 2 RBRHB
2020 FF B 19 S B =t 2

EEeR 20209 10 A 21 BEMR D 2275
2 (2020 F % 7 B2 B ET 2 ]) © 20204F f% 1n
REGTEIEZIERZBMEEHY T -

1. A®

20200F BRIy BBFEZBENREE
AEBETALZER  LEED
MEEXBAKERELERER
WAREEE—HERPABEAL -

2 BHE#E

BEENTRIZEBYRIBREZEER
F{a] & B 122020 F R 1) BB =t
2R EE -

EMNEERATEREZERERN ZE
REESKHEFTSITRZAHASK
BEKERMKEMETR$E
BRITIAETE -

3 REF020FERGEFETHRRT

ZROGBERRAEE ARG E &
TREZE D

5,243,068 % (0.22%) °

2020 4F B {n BE B 5+ 817 T RS2 B AR
BEBNMRENEEAR AT
SBENBRTRE TP RETH

Btn o

4. EWBHREZEK LR

1R #% 2020 5 AR 10 22 Eh 51 81 7] 22 @ =X
BEZARABRHOEE ERTEEB
38 (i) 80,000,000 1% A% 17 B, (i) 45 & &) 4~ B
BEITRAZ 2% (ARIEKEBLE) -
1R 35 2020 F AR 17 82 B 51 8 7] DA ) 3K
NEZ2EERHZROEE (BFEE
SFBRAEE) LR TNSHBBAAR
TREEBEITRAZ 1% -
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5. Time of Vesting

The awarded shares are vested in a selected participant in
accordance with the conditions and timetable as set out in the
relevant grant notice issued to the selected participant. Vesting
of the awarded shares will be conditional on the selected
participant remaining an employee of the Group Company until
and on each of the relevant vesting dates and his/her execution
of the relevant documents to effect the transfer from the trustee
within the period stipulated. A selected participant is not entitled
to any distribution (whether in the form of cash or scrip) declared
in respect of Share(s) held on trust. In the event that the vesting
conditions specified in the grant notice are not fully satisfied prior
to or on the relevant vesting date, the award of the awarded
shares in respect of the relevant vesting date shall lapse, and
such awarded shares shall not vest on the relevant vesting date
and shall become returned shares for the purposes of the
scheme.

6. Acceptance of Grant

Upon receipt of the grant notice, the selected participant shall
confirm acceptance of the awarded shares being granted to him/
her by signing and returning to the Board the acceptance form
attached to the grant notice within 5 business days after the date
of the grant notice. No amount is payable on acceptance of the
grant of the awarded shares.

7. The Basis of Determining the Purchase Price of Awarded Shares

The purchase price of the awarded shares (if any) shall be such
price determined by the Board or the Committee, based on
considerations such as the prevailing closing price of the Shares,
the purpose of the award and the characteristics and profile of
the selected participant. Such room for discretion provides the
Board and the Committee with flexibility to stipulate, if necessary,
a purchase price for awarded shares, while balancing the purpose
of the award and the interests of Shareholders.

8. The Remaining Life of the 2020 Share Award Scheme

The 2020 Share Award Scheme will remain in force for a period of
10 years commencing on the date on which the 2020 Share Award
Scheme is adopted by the Board and shall expire at the close of
business on the day immediately preceding the tenth anniversary
thereof (i.e. 20 October 2030) unless terminated earlier by the
Board.

During the Reporting Year, the Company did not purchase any shares of
the Company on the Stock Exchange through an independent trustee. As
at 31 December 2023, 26,216,000 shares of the Company were held by
the independent trustee, for the purpose of the 2020 Share Award
Scheme.
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Details of the 2020 Share Award Scheme are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 21 October 2020. Particulars of
the 2020 Share Award Scheme are set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.

During the Reporting Year, cash dividend of HK$1,071,480 had been
received in respect of the shares of the Company held upon the trust for
the 2020 Share Award Scheme and shall form part of the trust fund of
such trust. The trustee may, after having taken into consideration the
advice of the Company, apply the cash deposited by the Company to
purchase shares of the Company in the market, or apply such cash to
defray the fees, costs and expenses in relation to the establishment and
administration of the share award scheme, or return such cash or
shares to the Company.

The following tables show the movements in the Company's awarded
shares granted to the Director and employees under the 2020 Share
Award Scheme during the Reporting Year:

(1]
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2020 F AR 1D BB ET B B E AR A AR B HA
7%2020@10)% 20BN RS - R SBENETEI 2 5
ETFIE A ERE TSR R 5t 34 -

RAHEFENRN 555 ARIE 2020 F & 15 12 E
HEBEZARARMNEWMIRE IR BB
1,071,480 70 * WERKZETLT 2 EEES 2 — 3
Mo REBANG ZEZE St AFEAZ
ERARATFEAZRENMSE LBEEARQ AR
B FBZEREARI AR L RER R (D 1E
Eﬁ)ﬁiuzif%@%ﬁﬁ ﬁﬁz$&ﬁ'ﬁ§z A% ER
SRR BIAA

RARREFEN » ARIE 20205 i 10 2B 51 21 AT
HYEEhEEMNERODEDNZT RO TR
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DIRECTOR S
Number of awarded shares
RBROHE
Cancelled/
Vested Lapsed
Outstanding Granted during the during the Outstanding
Purchase asat during the Reporting Reporting asat
price 1 January Reporting Year Year 31 December
Date of grant Vesting date (HKS) 2023 Year (Note b) (Note c) 2023
EHRE xHE
RanF EER FER Ra023F
1A1A ERE BE ##/%% 12A:uA
HAEE FEART (Bfztb) (Hiztc) BES-- )
Shi Chi
it
29 August 2022 20 December 2023 N/A 9,000,000 - (9,000,000 - -
202258 A29R 2023F12 A 20H T
20 December 2024 N/A 8,000,000 = = = 8,000,000
2024F12 F208 NER
RIEEEBRAT 202355 65
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Date of grant Vesting date

Lam Shing Choi, Eric

Purchase
price
(HKS)

Number of awarded shares

RBRH2HE

Vested

Outstanding Granted during the
asat during the Reporting

1 January Reporting Year
2023 Year (Note b)
EHRE

Ra023 & EER
1A1H rgE 5B
HAER FEART (Hizto)

Cancelled/
Lapsed
during the
Reporting
Year

(Nate ¢/
K&
FER

i3 VPR
(Hiatc)

Outstanding
asat
31 December
2023

R023 5
12A31H
EEN

PR E
29 August 2023 20 December 2023 N/A - 500,000 (500,000) - -
203F8A29H 202312208 A
20 December 2024 N/A - 500,000 - - 500,000
202412 A 208 TEA
20 December 2025 N/A - 500,000 - - 500,000
20512 A 208 TEA
(a) Sub-total (Director) 17,000,000 1,500,000 (9,500,000) - 9,000,000

@it (EE)
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EMPLOYEES ==

Number of awarded shares

RBROHE
Cancelled/
Vested Lapsed
Outstanding Granted during the during the Outstanding
Purchase asat during the Reporting Reporting asat
price 1 January Reporting Year Year 31 December
Date of grant Vesting date (HKS) 2023 Year (Note b) (Note c) 2023
EHRE xHE
RanF EER FER R0 F
BEE 1A1A ERE BE ##/%% 12AnA
BEAH (%) HAER FEART (Bfztb) (Hietc) oES-- )
Employees
&S
27 October 2022 17 January 2023 N/A 5,940,000 - (5,284,000 (656,000) =
2022%10A 278 023F1A17R T
15 December 2023 24 January 2024 N/A - 9,430,000 - - 9,430,000
2023F 12 A15H 2024F1 24 R TER
(b) Sub-total (Employees) 5,940,000 9,430,000 (5,284,000) (656,000) 9,430,000
(o) /)5t (B &)
Grand Total: (a) Director + 22,940,000 10,930,000 (14,784,000) (656,000) 18,430,000
(b) Employees

A QES+bEE

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included AEEAFEERFEUESRFILR
four existing Directors and one employee. The interest of two Directors FEERIUREE -HP 2UEFHFFHE
in the share awards were disclosed in the above table. Details of the BROEZERLXRBR - AR 1UmS
remaining one individual's interest in the share award under the 2020 A LR 2020 F B 10 SR BT B A WY
Share Award Scheme are as follows: It SEEAE R FE S AT -
Number of awarded shares
RAkRA2YA
Cancelled/
Vested Lapsed
Outstanding Granted during the during the Outstanding
Purchase asat during the Reporting Reporting asat
price 1 January Reporting Year Year 31 December
Date of grant Vesting date (HKS) 2023 Year (Note b) (Note c) 2023
& AR E
Ra023 & EER Ra023F
BEE 1A1A s AW 12A31H8
BFEH HBEAH (B%) HAGE FERERT (FiaFo) (Hiic) o R 5 R
27 October 2022 17 January 2023 N/A 330,000 = (330,000) = =
20225 10A278 023F1A17R TER
15 December 2023 24 January 2024 N/A = 400,000 = = 400,000
2023F 12 A15H 024517248 NaH
330,000 400,000 (330,000) - 400,000
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Notes:

(@ The closing price of the Shares immediately before 29 August 2022, 27 October 2022,
29 August 2023 and 15 December 2023 (i.e. the date on which the respective share
awards referred to above were granted) was HK$3.79, HK$2.97, HK$2.88 and HKS$2.85
respectively.

(b) The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before 17 January
2023 and 20 December 2023 (i.e. the date of vesting) was HK$5.20 and HK$2.88,
respectively.

The fair value of awarded shares granted on 29 August 2022, 27 October 2022, 29
August 2023 and 15 December 2023 is HK$3.79 per share, HK$2.97 per Share, HK$2.88
and HK$2.85, respectively.

(© No share awards were cancelled during the Reporting Year.

(d) The number of awarded share available for grant under the 2020 Share Award
Scheme at the beginning and the end of the Reporting Year is 18,060,000 Shares and
5,243,068 Shares, respectively.

(e) The vesting of share awards is subject to the fulfilment of the relevant vesting
conditions and performance targets.

(f) Details of the fair value of the share awards at the date of grant and the accounting
standard and policy adopted are set out in note 2 of the Company's 2023 audited
consolidated financial statements.

2024 Share Award Scheme

Since the adoption date of the 2020 Share Award Scheme and up to the day of
this report, a total of 42,870,000 Shares were granted to eligible participants
under the 2020 Share Award Scheme. As at the day of this report, a total of
5,243,068 Shares are available for grant under the 2020 Share Award Scheme.
Considering that the remaining balance of the 2020 Share Award Scheme may
not be sufficient for future incentive arrangement, the Board adopted a new
share award scheme on 30 January 2024 (the “2024 Share Award Scheme”).
Pursuant to the scheme rules of the 2024 Share Award Scheme, the Shares will
be acquired by Bank of Communications Trustee Limited and any additional or
replacement trustees, being the trustee or trustees for the time being of the
trusts declared in the relevant trust deed (the “Trustee”) at the cost of the
Company and be held on trust for the selected participants until the end of
each vesting period.
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For purpose of administering the Scheme, the Board shall form a special
committee comprising of three Independent Non-executive Directors, the
company secretary and two Executive Directors of the Company (the “Special
Committee”) but shall not comprise of the controlling Shareholder and/or any
party acting in concert with it. If a Selected Participant is a Director or senior
management of the Company, the proposed award must first be considered
and recommended by the Special Committee and then the Remuneration
Committee of the Company and finally approved by the Board. In the case of
other types of selected participant, the proposed award can be determined
and approved by the Special Committee alone. A Director must abstain from
participating or voting in the decision-making process in respect of
determination of an award proposed to be made to him or her.

Where any grant of awarded shares is proposed to be made to any person
who is a connected person of the Company within the meaning of the Listing
Rules, the Company shall comply with such provisions of the Listing Rules as
may be applicable, including any reporting, announcement and/or
shareholders’ approval requirements, unless otherwise exempted under the
Listing Rules.

The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect of any Shares held
under the Trust (including but not limited to the awarded shares, the returned
shares, any bonus shares and scrip shares). The Board is of the view that not
exercising the voting rights by the Trustee might help avoid potential
misperception of the Company's influence over the Trustee's decision in
casting the votes in respect of the Shares held under the Trust at general
meetings.

Since the adoption date of the 2024 Share Award Scheme and up to the date of
this report, the Company did not purchase any shares of the Company from
market through an independent trustee. As at the date of this report, no shares
of the Company were held by the independent trustee for the purpose of the
2024 Share Award Scheme. Since the adoption date of the 2024 Share Award
Scheme and up to the date of this report, no cash dividend had been received
in respect of the shares of the Company held upon the trust for the 2024 Share
Award Scheme and shall form part of the trust fund of such trust.

Since the adoption date of the 2024 Share Award Scheme and up to the date of
this report, none of the awarded shares under the 2024 Share Award Scheme
were granted and none of the Directors or chief executive, or their associates,
had any interests in the awarded shares under the 2024 Share Award Scheme.
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A summary of the principal terms of the 2024 Share Award Scheme is
set out below:

Purpose

The purpose of the 2024 Share Award Scheme is to recognise the
contributions by selected participants to the Group and to
incentivise them in order to retain them for the continual
operation and development of the Group, and to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group.

Participants

The Board may, from time to time, at their absolute discretion
select any eligible participants for participation in the 2024 Share
Award Scheme. The eligible participant refers to any employee
(whether full time or part time), executive or officer, director
(including without limitation any executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive director) of the Group who, in the sole
discretion of the Board, has contributed or may contribute to the
growth and development of the Group.

The basis of eligibility of any of the eligible participants to the
grant of awarded shares shall be determined by the Board from
time to time on the basis of his/her contribution or potential
contribution to the development and growth of the Group.

Total Number of Shares Available for Grant under the 2024 Share
Award Scheme and Percentage of Issued Share Capital as at the
Date of This Report

118,743,171 Shares (5%).

The awards underlying the 2024 Share Award Scheme are fulfilled
by existing Shares purchased from the secondary market by the
Trustee and does not involve new issuances of Shares.

Maximum Entitlement of Each Participant

The maximum number of Shares to be awarded under the 2024
Share Award Scheme throughout its duration shall not exceed 5%
of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time. The
maximum number of Shares which may be awarded to a selected
participant (including vested and non-vested) under the 2024
Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time.
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Time of Vesting

The awarded shares are vested in a selected participant in
accordance with the conditions and timetable as set out in the
relevant grant notice issued to the selected participant. Vesting
of the awarded shares will be conditional on the selected
participant remaining an employee of the Group Company until
and on each of the relevant vesting dates and his/her execution
of the relevant documents to effect the transfer from the Trustee
within the period stipulated. A selected participant is not entitled
to any distribution (whether in the form of cash or scrip) declared
in respect of Share(s) held on trust. In the event that the vesting
conditions specified in the grant notice are not fully satisfied prior
to or on the relevant vesting date, the award of the awarded
shares in respect of the relevant vesting date shall lapse, and
such awarded shares shall not vest on the relevant vesting date
and shall become returned shares for the purposes of the
scheme.

Acceptance of Grant

Upon receipt of the grant notice, the selected participant shall
confirm acceptance of the awarded shares being granted to him/
her by signing and returning to the Board the acceptance form
attached to the grant notice within 5 business days after the date
of the grant notice. No amount is payable on acceptance of the
grant of the awarded shares.

The Basis of Determining the Purchase Price of Awarded Shares

The purchase price of the awarded shares (if any) shall be such
price determined by the Board or the Committee, based on
considerations such as the prevailing closing price of the Shares,
the purpose of the award and the characteristics and profile of
the selected participant. Such room for discretion provides the
Board and the Committee with flexibility to stipulate, if necessary,
a purchase price for awarded shares, while balancing the purpose
of the award and the interests of Shareholders.

The Remaining Life of the 2024 Share Award Scheme

The 2024 Share Award Scheme will remain in force for a period of
10 years commencing on the date on which the 2024 Share Award
Scheme is adopted by the Board and shall expire at the close of
business on the day immediately preceding the tenth anniversary
thereof (i.e. 29 January 2034) unless terminated earlier by the
Board.
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Save as disclosed above and the nominee shares in certain subsidiaries
held in trust for the Group, none of the Directors or chief executive, had
or was deemed to have any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of the SFO) which were
required (i) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SF0); or (ii) to be recorded in the register
maintained by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code as at 31 December 2023.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Reporting Year, none of the Executive Directors had any interests in
any businesses, which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
from time to time, with reference to the qualifications, responsibilities,
experience and performance of the individual Directors, and the operating
results of the Group. Details of the policy are set out in the “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 81 to 110 of this report.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the Directors' remuneration and the 5 highest paid employees
for the Reporting Year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements. Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code (as defined below),
the remuneration of the senior management (other than the Directors) for the
Reporting Year by band is set out below:
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are set out in note 35
to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to the Directors or the chief executive of the Company, as at
31 December 2023, the register of interests in shares and short positions
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO showed that
the following persons, who are not a Director or chief executive of the
Company, had, or were deemed to have interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Name of shareholder Capacity

RERZE R 8%

Long positions

‘s EmmEEESED g

EEgHE
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Number of total number of
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HE&1T

STl %17 4 B >

[ qrigea ¢ BRB DL
(Note c)

(Hiazc)

e
Target Success Trustee (Note a) 1,200,958,799 49.92%
Target Success BsEA (Krata)
Wong Wang Sang, Stephen Beneficial owner 37,300,000 1.55%
BERE BEmEAA
Spousal interest (Note b) 9,160,382 0.38%
Bz (ats)
Interest of controlled corporation
(Note a) 1,200,958,799 49.92%
Friz sl =B a s (M aFa)
1,247,419,181 51.85%
Notes: Hiat
(@ 1,200,958,799 shares of the Company are held by Target Success in its capacity as trustee o (a) % 1,200,958,799 % 7 /A &) i% 19 A Target Success JA {5 #E 2

the Skysource Unit Trust in which all of the units and issued shares of Target Success are held
by Mr. Wong Wang Sang, Stephen. As such, Mr. Wong Wang Sang, Stephen is deemed to be
interested in 1,200,958,799 shares of the Company.

(b) Ms. Lin Wei Ping, the spouse of Mr. Wong Wang Sang, Stephen, beneficially held 9,160,382
Shares.
(c The calculation is based on the total number of issued shares of the Company (i.e.

2,405,653,420 Shares) as at 31 December 2023.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company were not aware of any other interests or short
positions that any person (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had, or were deemed to have in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and
are recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

Continuing Connected Transactions

The following is the continuing connected transactions of the Group conducted
during the Reporting Year which are not exempt from the annual reporting
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

1. On 24 February 2022, Shenzhen Chuangwei Financial Leasing Company
Limited* ORYI &4 @ & H EBFR AR (“Shenzhen Chuangwei
Financial Leasing") entered into three leaseback agreements with
Nanjing Golden Dragon Bus Co., Ltd.* (B R & B B B & AR A 7))
(“Nanjing Golden Dragon Bus"), Nanjing Chuangyuan Tiandi Energy
Technology Co., Ltd.* (FA R EIRKHE) W EHE B R A A (“Nanjing
Chuangyuan Tiandi Energy”) and Nanjing Skywell Heavy Industries Co,,
Ltd* (B9 R FPAE T A PR A A)) (“Nanjing Skywell Heavy Industries”) as
lessees (“Feb-2022 Leaseback Agreements”), pursuant to which
Shenzhen Chuangwei Financial Leasing has agreed to provide sale and
leaseback services in relation to a number of production equipment,
project assets, transportation and electricity equipment in favour of the
lessees at an initial sale price of RMB135 million commencing on the
date of payment of the initial sale price and ends on the date which is
three years from the date of the Feb-2022 Leaseback Agreements.
Details of the transactions were announced by the Company on 24
February 2022 and 25 February 2022.

As at the end of the Reporting Year, the actual leasing principal amount
under the Feb-2022 Leaseback Agreements was RMB112.5 million. The
maximum leasing principal amount under the Feb-2022 Leaseback
Agreements at any point of time during the Reporting Year was RMB135
million.
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The equity interests of Nanjing Golden Dragon Bus, Nanjing Chuangyuan
Tiandi Energy and Nanjing Skywell Heavy Industries are indirectly held by
Mr. Wong Wang Sang, Stephen (“Mr. Wong"), the controlling shareholder
of the Company, as to approximately 63.35%, 71.99% and 71.99%
respectively, and each of the lessees is therefore an associate of Mr.
Wong and a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the Feb-2022 Leaseback Agreements and the transactions
contemplated respectively thereunder, being financial assistance
provided by Shenzhen Chuangwei Financial Leasing in favour of the
lessees, constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

0On 22 March 2022, Shenzhen Chuangwei Financial Leasing entered into a
leaseback agreement with Nanjing Golden Dragon Bus (“Mar-2022
Leaseback Agreement”), pursuant to which Shenzhen Chuangwei
Financial Leasing has agreed to provide sale and leaseback services in
relation to a number of production, transportation and electricity
equipment in favour of Nanjing Golden Dragon Bus at an initial sale price
of RMB110 million commencing on the date of payment of the initial sale
price and ends on the date which is three years from the date of the
Mar-2022 Leaseback Agreement. Details of the transaction were
announced by the Company on 22 March 2022.

As at the end of the Reporting Year, the actual leasing principal amount
under the Mar-2022 Leaseback Agreement was approximately RMB91.7
million. The maximum leasing principal amount under the Mar-2022
Leaseback Agreement at any point of time during the Reporting Year
was RMB110 million. As of 14 March 2024, all outstanding amount of
under the Mar-2022 Leaseback Agreement has been repaid, and the
total principal amount repaid, together with interest, amounted to
approximately RMB93.2 million.

The equity interests of Nanjing Golden Dragon Bus are indirectly held by
Mr. Wong, the controlling shareholder of the Company, as to
approximately 63.35% and Nanjing Golden Dragon Bus is therefore an
associate of Mr. Wong and a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Mar-2022 Leaseback Agreement and
the transactions contemplated respectively thereunder, being financial
assistance provided by Shenzhen Chuangwei Financial Leasing in favour
of Nanjing Golden Dragon Bus, constitute continuing connected
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Report

EEEHE

RELFMRE - BARERELE ([FEi
EDNHREERERRSRERTE  ERgl
TRRME) H R ERFEAET46335%
71.99% [ 71.99% WY R #E - MR AMBE AL BE
EERNBEBATRARDGINBEEAL -
It 2022F -2 AE R B HZE R EBE T #
ETZRS BRI BImERERET
EEANTBER) BRADEN EWH
AIEUAEE THRBERERS °

Re022F3RF228  FYElmEHRE R
BRESERBEFZERE B (2022
F3IRAEREMEBZED - B FIIE%E
BEHERZEMREZEEE BHRENR
HERERACESEREHEREHERY
MFTEBAARBKIBEE L XY
S EBHBPRLE2022F -3 AEREIH B
HEfEEF =F 1k - AR A B R 20223 A
RZERNRAERTIBEZZFE -

HEARREFER2022F -3 5% OHA
R ERHEAS BN AARKNT
BETLT -RBEFERN 202F-3 6%
oiftpzE MRS RERAE S
ERARM1108 8T - R2024F3 H 14
B 2022F 3% OAHEERENKER
MEHRECEIHEE  CEENERS (&
BFE)EFHOARKRB2EETT -

RIBEEMHRE ARELEEEFEER
CREEBENINRE  HEREER
BHAERENBBEALTREARARNBEA
+ o FHith - 2022 F-3 A ER DA ERE
BETIHET2XS EIFIalgmERE
RETERSCRETEMNTEED) BRA
NAIR ETMRANEUAZE TR ERRE

AIEEBEAERAT 2023F K 75




Directors’ Report

EEgHE

76

0n 8 June 2022, Shenzhen Chuangwei Financial Leasing entered into four
leaseback agreements with Nanjing Golden Dragon Bus, Nanjing
Chuangyuan Energy Technology Co, Ltd* (F R AR E) W EHE R A
A]) (“Nanjing Chuangyuan Energy"), Huhehaote Skywell Automobile Co,
Ltd.* (FF A0 8 %5 B UK )9 B2 B fR 2 7)) (“Huhehaote Skywell”) and
Wuhan Skywell Automobile Co., Ltd.* (B F K /A EH B R A 7))
(“Wuhan Skywell”) as lessees ("Jun-2022 Leaseback Agreements”),
pursuant to which Shenzhen Chuangwei Financial Leasing has agreed to
provide sale and leaseback services in relation to a number of
production, transportation, electricity and office equipment in favour of
the lessees at an initial sale price of RMB60 million commencing on the
date of payment of the initial sale price and ends on the date which is
three years from the date of the Jun-2022 Leaseback Agreements.
Details of the transaction were announced by the Company on 8 June
2022.

As at the end of the Reporting Year, the actual leasing principal amount
under the Jun-2022 Leaseback Agreement was approximately RMB36.1
million. The maximum leasing principal amount under the Jun-2022
Leaseback Agreement at any point of time during the Reporting Year
was RMB57 million. As of 14 March 2024, all outstanding amount of under
the Jun-2022 Leaseback Agreement has been repaid, and the total
principal amount repaid, together with interest, amounted to
approximately RMB36.7 million.

The equity interests of Nanjing Golden Dragon Bus, Nanjing Chuangyuan
Energy, Huhehaote Skywell and Wuhan Skywell are indirectly held by Mr.
Wong, the controlling shareholder of the Company, as to approximately
63.35%, 71.99%, 71.99% and 71.99% respectively, and each of the lessees is
therefore an associate of Mr. Wong and a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Jun-2022 Leaseback
Agreements and the transactions contemplated respectively
thereunder, being financial assistance provided by Shenzhen Chuangwei
Financial Leasing in favour of the lessees, constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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0n 23 March 2023, Shenzhen Skyworth Digital Technology Co,, Ltd. (“SSDT")
entered into a framework agreement with Shenzhen Xiaopai Technology
Co., Ltd.* OCRIINPNERFRBR QA (“Xiaopai”) ("“Framework
Agreement”), pursuant to which SSDT will supply products
manufactured by it, pursuant to the terms of the Framework Agreement
for a term of one year running from 1 January 2023 to 31 December
2023 and there is no option to renew the Framework Agreement. The
annual cap in respect of the sale of products by SSDT to Xiaopai under
the Framework Agreement for the year ending 31 December 2023 is
RMB240 million, which is determined primarily by reference to (i) the
transaction amount of approximately RMB144 million actually incurred
under the previous framework agreement during the financial year
ended 31 December 2022, and (i) indications in writing by Xiaopai in
respect of the volume of orders it intends to place with SSDT under the
Framework Agreement. Details of the transaction were announced by
the Company on 23 March 2023.

0n 23 March 2023, Skyworth Automabile Electronics (Shenzhen) Co,, Ltd.*
ORI B4 B2 BE A PR A 7)) (“skyworth Automobile”) entered into
two procurement agreements with Jiangsu Skywell Automobile Co,, Ltd.*
(TE#RFRRE AR AR (“Jiangsu Skywell”) and Nanjing Golden
Dragon Bus Co, Ltd. Xuzhou Branch* (fg R B REBEELER R A AR
14372 &) (“Nanjing Golden Dragon Xuzhou Branch”) (“Procurement
Agreements”), pursuant to which Skyworth Automobile will, upon its
acceptance of purchase orders placed by Jiangsu Skywell and Nanjing
Golden Dragon Xuzhou Branch, supply automobile components
manufactured by it to Jiangsu Skywell and Nanjing Golden Dragon
Xuzhou Branch for a term of one year commencing from 1 January 2023
to 31 December 2023 up to an annual cap of RMB70 million. Details of the
transactions were announced by the Company on 23 March 2023.

The equity interests of Nanjing Golden Dragon Xuzhou Branch and
Jiangsu Skywell are indirectly held by Mr. Wong, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, as to approximately 63.35% and 71.99%,
respectively, and Nanjing Golden Dragon Xuzhou Branch and Jiangsu
Skywell are the associates of Mr. Wong and connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Procurement
Agreements and the transactions contemplated thereunder constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

The following is the continuing connected transactions of the Group
conducted after the Reporting Year and up to the date of this report:
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On 30 January 2024, SSDT entered into a framework agreement with
Xiaopai (“2024 Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which SSDT will
supply products manufactured by it, pursuant to the terms of the 2024
Framework Agreement for a term of one year running from 30 January
2024 to 31 December 2024 and there is no option to renew the 2024
Framework Agreement. The annual cap in respect of the sale of products
by SSDT to Xiaopai under the 2024 Framework Agreement for the year
ending 31 December 2024 is RMB197 million, which is determined
primarily by reference to (i) the transaction amount of approximately
RMB101.4 million actually incurred under the previous framework
agreement during the financial year ended 31 December 2023, and (ii)
indications in writing by Xiaopai in respect of the volume of orders it
intends to place with SSDT under the 2024 Framework Agreement.
Details of the transaction were announced by the Company on 30
January 2024.

On 6 March 2024, Skyworth Automobile entered into a procurement
agreement with Nanjing Golden Dragon Xuzhou Branch (2024
Procurement Agreement”), pursuant to which Skyworth Automobile will,
upon its acceptance of purchase orders placed by Nanjing Golden
Dragon Xuzhou Branch, supply automobile components manufactured
by it to Nanjing Golden Dragon Xuzhou Branch for a term commencing
from 6 March 2024 to 31 December 2024 up to an annual cap of RMB20
million. Details of the transaction were announced by the Company on 6
March 2024.

Nanjing Golden Dragon Xuzhou Branch is indirectly controlled by Mr.
Wong and is therefore an associate of Mr. Wong and a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the 2024
Procurement Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 15 March 2024, Shenzhen Chuangwei Financial Leasing entered into a
leaseback agreement with Nanjing Golden Dragon Bus (“Mar-2024
Leaseback Agreement”), pursuant to which Shenzhen Chuangwei
Financial Leasing has agreed to provide sale and leaseback services in
relation to a number of production and electricity equipment in favour
of Nanjing Golden Dragon Bus at an initial sale price of RMB120 million
commencing on the date of payment of the initial sale price and ends
on the date which is three years from the date of the Mar-2024
Leaseback Agreement. Details of the transaction were announced by the
Company on 15 March 2024.

Nanjing Golden Dragon Bus is indirectly controlled by Mr. Wong and is
therefore an associate of Mr. Wong and a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Mar-2024 Leaseback
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder, being
financial assistance provided by Shenzhen Chuangwei Financial Leasing
in favour of the Nanjing Golden Dragon Bus, constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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During the Reporting Year, the Company has complied with the relevant
disclosure requirements in respect of its continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Independent Non-
executive Directors have reviewed the continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that each of these transactions was entered into: (1) in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group; (2) on normal commercial terms,
and (3) in accordance with the terms of the respective agreement which is
considered to be fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the independent auditor of the Company,
was engaged to report on the above continuing connected transactions nos.
1-5in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transaction under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. In
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the auditor has issued its
unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions nos. 1-5 as disclosed above by the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, a summary of related party transactions made
during the Reporting Year is disclosed in note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CONDITIONAL CASH OFFER TO BUY-BACK UP TO 100,000,000
SHARES AT HKS5 PER SHARE

0n 23 December 2022, the Company published an announcement in relation to
(i) an offer made by CLSA Limited on behalf of the Company to buyback for
cancellation, subject to the conditions, up to a maximum of 100,000,000 Shares,
representing approximately 3.87% of the issued Shares as at the date of such
announcement, at the price of HK$3.8 per Share (the "Offer”); and (ii) a
conditional very substantial acquisition for the Company (the “PRC MGQ"). On 28
March 2023, the Company published an announcement regarding the increase
of offer price of the Offer, of which the offer price increased from HKS$3.8 to
HKS5.0 per Share. The Offer was made in full compliance with the Share
Buybacks Code. The consideration for the Offer, being a total of HK$500 million,
was paid in cash and will be funded by internal resources of the Group. The
Offer, the application of whitewash waiver and the PRC MGO were approved by
the Shareholders at the special general meeting of the Company held on 5 May
2023. The completion of the Offer and cancellation of the 100,000,000 Shares
bought-back by the Company took place on Wednesday, 31 May 2023. For more
information, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 23
December 2022, 12 January 2023, 12 February 2023, 12 March 2023, 28 March
2023, 14 April 2023, 5 May 2023, 10 May 2023, 19 May 2023 and 31 May 2023 and
the circular of the Company dated 14 April 2023.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Base on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of its Board as at the date of this report, the Company has
complied with the public float requirement of the Listing Rules throughout the
Reporting Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company's corporate governance principles and practices are set out in
the "Corporate Governance Report” on pages 81 to 110 of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises of Mr. Cheong Ying Chew,
Henry (Chairperson), Mr. Li Weibin and Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement. The Audit
Committee, together with the Board, have reviewed the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing and financial
reporting matters including the review of the financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Reporting Year have
been audited by Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to re-
appoint Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Lin Jin
Chairman of the Board
26 March 2024

*  Foridentification purposes only
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TRERBE

The Company recognises the importance of a publicly listed company's
responsibilities to enhance its transparency and accountability, and is
committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance in the
interests of its shareholders. The Company devotes to best practice on
corporate governance, and to comply to the extent practicable, with the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix C1 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CG CODE

During the financial year ended 31 December 2023 (herein below also referred
as the Reporting Year) and up to the date of this report, the Company has
complied with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code, save and except
for the code provision C.1.6 of the CG Code.

Pursuant to code provision C.1.6 of the CG Code, the independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend general meetings
and develop a balanced understanding of the views of the shareholders of the
Company. Mr. Li Weibin, an Independent Non-executive Director, was unable to
attend the special general meeting and annual general meeting of the
Company held on 5 May 2023 and 24 May 2023, respectively, due to other prior
business engagements.
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CULTURES AND VALUES

A healthy corporate culture across the Group is integral to attain its vision and
strategy. It is the Board's role to foster a corporate culture with the following
core principles and to ensure that the Company's vision, values and business
strategies are aligned to it.

Integrity and Code of Conduct

The Group strives to maintain high standards of business ethics and
corporate governance across all our activities and operations. The
Directors, management and staff are all required to act lawfully, ethically
and responsibly, and the required standards and norms are explicitly
set out in the training materials for all new staff and embedded in
various policies such as the Group's employee handbook (including
therein the Group's code of conduct), the anti-corruption policy and the
whistleblowing policy of the Group. Trainings are conducted from time
to time to reinforce the required standards in respect of ethics and
integrity.

Commitment

The Group believes that the culture of commitment to workforce
development, workplace safety and health, diversity, and sustainability
is one where people have a feeling of commitment and emotional
engagement with the Group's mission. This sets the tone for a strong,
productive workfarce that attracts, develops, and retains the best talent
and produces the highest quality work. Moreover, the Company’s
strategy in the business development and management are to achieve
long-term, steady and sustainable growth, while having due
considerations from environment, social and governance aspects.

KEY CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES
The Board

1

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of, and
promoting the success of the Group. This is achieved by the setting up of
corporate strategic objectives and policies, and monitoring and
evaluating of the operating activities and financial performance of the
Group.

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for implementing
day-to-day operations, business strategies and management of the
Group's businesses to the executive Directors, senior management and
certain responsibilities to the specific Board committees.
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Access for Supporting

The Directors may have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that the Board's procedures,
and all applicable rules and regulations, are followed. In addition, the
Directors may, upon reasonable request, to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company's
expenses. The Board shall resolve to provide appropriate independent
professional advice to the Directors to assist them on discharging their
duties and responsibilities.

Appropriate insurance cover has been arranged by the Company in
respect of legal action arising from the business of the Group against
the Directors.

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of 8 members of which 5
are Executive Directors and 3 are Independent Non-executive Directors.
The list of Directors are set out on page 273 of this report. After annual
assessment by the Nomination Committee during the year, the Board
considers the current structure, size and composition of the Board is
performing a balanced and independent monitoring function on
management practices to complement the Company's corporate
strategy. Their biographical details including their respective interests in
the Company and their respective relationships with other Directors and
senior management of the Group, are set out on pages 36 to 46 of this
report.

Executive Directors

All of the Executive Directors possess the qualification and experiences
in their respective areas of responsibility. Under the leadership of the
Chairman of the Board, the Board is able to maintain the success of the
Group's business.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Currently, the 3 Independent Non-executive Directors are experienced
professionals with different expertise in accounting, legal and strategic
management. Their mix of skills and experience, and their independent
view would definitely provide constructive comments and suggestions
to the Board, contributing to the proper functioning of the Board and
safeguarding the interests of the shareholders of the Company in
general and the Company as a whole.
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In order to ensure that independent views and input of the independent
non-executive Directors are made available to the Board, the Nomination
Committee and the Board are committed to assess the Directors’
independence annually with regards to all relevant factors related to
the independent non-executive Directors including the following:

. required character, integrity, expertise, experience and stability to
fulfill their roles,

. time commitment and attention to the Company's affairs;
. firm commitment to their independent roles and to the Board,
. declaration of conflict of interest in their roles as Independent

Non-executive Directors,

. no involvement in the daily management of the Company nor in
any relationship or circumstances which would affect the exercise
of their independent judgement; and

. the Chairman of the Board meets with the Independent Non-
executive Directors regularly without the presence of the
Executive Directors.

The Board confirms that the Company has received from each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors a confirmation of independence
for the Reporting Year pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers such Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises the importance of board diversity to corporate
governance and the board effectiveness. The Board diversity policy (the
“Diversity Policy”) was adopted by the Company in November 2015 and
is subject to annual review by the Nomination Committee. The Diversity
Policy formally recognises the practice of ensuring that independent
views and input are made available to the Board. Moreover, it sets out
the basic principles to ensure that the Board has the appropriate
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives necessary to
enhance the effectiveness of the Board and to maintain high standard
of corporate governance. Under the Diversity Policy, the selection of
Board candidates shall be based on a range of diversity perspectives
with reference to the Company's business model and specific needs,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural background,
educational background, skills, knowledge and professional experience.
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In considering the new appointment of Directors, the Nomination
Committee had considered the Diversity Policy and with reference to
certain criteria such as integrity, independent judgement, experience,
skills and the ability to commit time and effort to carry out his/her duties
and responsibilities effectively, etc.

The following chart shows the diversity profile of the Board as at the
date of this report, with is referred to in the assessment of the progress
in achieving diversity:

Gender

IIEEIJ Female
egi
Male

St

100%
{ @, Chinese
‘\./" EJ\

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 36 to 46 of this
report and on the website of the Company. A list setting out the names
of the Directors and their roles and functions is posted on the websites
of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited ("HKEX")
(www.hkexnews.hk).

;
@

@

Ethnicity
(13

During the Reporting Year, the Nomination Committee conducted an
annual review of the Board's composition, taking into account of the
Diversity Policy, and formed the view that the Board has maintained an
appropriate mix and balance of skills, knowledge, experience and
diversity of perspectives necessary to meet the business requirements
of the Group. The Nomination Committee will review the Diversity Policy
from time to time to ensure the effectiveness of the Diversity Policy
and discuss any revisions that may be required, and make
recommendations accordingly to the Board for consideration and
approval.
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As at 31 December 2023, the Group had over 31,200 employees,
approximately 35% of whom were female. As at 31 December 2023, the
senior management of the Group comprised approximately 18% female
members. The Board regularly assesses the Group's diversity profile of
all levels of employees and considers the diversity policy to attract,
retain and motivate employees from the widest possible pool of
available talent. The Board considers that the gender ratio of the
workforce of the Group, including the senior management, is
appropriate for the operations of the Group and will strive to maintain
this ratio. The gender diversity at workforce levels (including senior
management) is disclosed in the 2023 Environmental, Social and
Governance Report ("2023 ESG Report").

Nomination Policy

The Board adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) on 27
November 2018, which sets out the selection criteria and nomination
procedures for the appointment of Directors. A summary of the
Nomination Policy is disclosed below:

Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the Nomination
Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate:

. Character and integrity

. Accomplishment and experience in the areas of Company's
business and public board experience

. Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest

. Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender, age
(18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be exhaustive
and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the discretion to nominate
any person, as it considers appropriate.
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Nomination Procedures

The Nomination Committee and the Board will follow the below
procedures in appointing a Director:

1. The Nomination Committee uses multiple sources to identify the
individual(s) who is/are suitably qualified to become Board
members.

2. The Nomination Committee reviews the qualification, skills and
experience of the individual(s) and, if thought fit, makes
recommendation to the Board.

3. The Board considers the individual(s) who is/are recommended by
the Nomination Committee by assessing and evaluating his/her
qualification, skills and experience and, if thought fit, to approve
the appointment of individual(s) as Director.

4. According to the Company's bye-laws, any director appointed to
fill the causal vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board shall
hold office until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at the meeting.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy from time
to time to ensure the effectiveness of the Nomination Policy and discuss
any revisions that may be required, and recommended such revisions to
the Board for consideration and approval.

Continuous Professional Development

On appointment to the Board, each newly appointed Director will attend
an introduction covering the general, statutory and regulatory
obligations of being a director to ensure sufficient awareness of
responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory
requirements. Thereafter, the Company is required to provide the
Directors with regular updates relating to the Group's business.
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All Directors have complied with the code provision in the CG Code in
relation to continuous professional development. This has involved
various forms of activities including attending presentation given by
external professional advisors and reading materials relevant to the
regulatory updates, Company's business, directors' duties and
responsibilities. The Company continues to provide the Directors with
updates relating to the relevant Listing Rules and regulations, ensuring
the Directors have thorough understanding of good corporate
governance.

The Directors are required to provide the Company with details of
professional training undertaken by them during the Reporting Year.
Based on the details so provided, the professional training undertaken
by the Directors during the Reporting Year is summarised as follows:

Name of Director

Legal and
regulatory
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Group's
business/
Directors’
duties
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governance

hEER

Executive Directors: HITEE:

Mr. Lin Jin ML v 4 v
Mr. Liu Tangzhi =L v 4 4
Mr. Shi Chi ik eta s v v v
Ms. Lin Wei Ping MEFZ+ v/ v v
Mr. Lam Shing Choi, Eric B BT S v v 4
Independent Non-Executive BYEBITES:

Directors:
Mr. Li Weibin FEMELE v v v
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew, Henry 3R 5858858 4 v 4 4
Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement HEELE v/ 4 4
The Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company — (7) EEEFERA L aG{THKAER

The Chairman of the Board is Mr. Lin Jin and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company is Mr. Shi Chi. The roles of the Chairman of the Board and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company are segregated to ensure
their respective independence, accountability and responsibility. The
major duties of the Chairman of the Board are to provide leadership to
the Board; to ensure the Directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate
information which must be accurate, clear, complete and reliable; to
ensure the Company established good corporate practice and
procedures; to provide appropriate briefing on the issues arising from
Board meetings; and to encourage all Directors to make a full and active
contribution to the Board's affairs and take the lead to ensure that it
acts in the best interests to the Company.
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The Chief Executive Officer of the Company is responsible for
implementing decisions and strategy approved by the Board and
managing day-to-day operations of the Group with the support of the
Executive Directors and senior management. The Chairman of the Board
promotes a culture of openness and debate by facilitating the effective
contribution of Independent Non-executive Directors in particular and
ensures constructive relations among Executive Directors and
Independent Non-executive Directors.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

A person may be appointed as a member of the Board at any time either
by the shareholders of the Company in a general meeting or by the
Board upon recommendation of the Nomination Committee. Each of the
Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of not more than 3 years. Directors who are appointed by the
Board must retire at the next following annual general meeting after
their appointment.

According to the bye-laws of the Company as amended from time to
time and the CG Code, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
once every 3 years and one-third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if their number is not a multiple of 3, the number nearest to, but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation and shall be eligible
for re-election at each annual general meeting.

Board Meetings and Corporate Governance Function

The Board held a total of 4 meetings during the Reporting Year. Of these,
2 meetings were held mainly for approving 2022 final results and 2023
interim results of the Group; the other meetings were held to discuss
and consider important issues of the Group and review policies related
to internal control and corporate governance.

Sufficient notices to Board meetings are given to all Directors prior to
the meetings for the purpose of providing all Directors with sufficient
time to schedule their business for the meetings, and to propose
matters to be included in the agenda for the meetings. Agenda and
meeting documents are despatched to all Directors at least 3 days
before each of the meetings to ensure that the Directors have sufficient
time to review documents and be adequately prepared for the meeting.
When Directors are unable to attend a meeting, they are advised of the
matters to be discussed and given an opportunity to make their views
known to the Chairman of the Board prior to the meeting.
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Management of the Company has, from time to time, supplied to the
Board relevant information, as well as reports relating to operational
and financial performance of the Group, enabling the Directors to make
informed decisions. Members of the management who are responsible
for preparation of the documents for discussion at the Board meetings
are usually invited to present the relevant documents and to take any
guestions or address queries that the Directors may have on the
documents. This enables the Board to perform a comprehensive and
informed evaluation as part of the Board's decision making processes.

The proceedings of the Board at its meetings are conducted by the
Chairman of the Board who is responsible to ensure that sufficient time
is allocated for discussion and consideration of each agenda item and
that equal opportunities are given to the Directors to speak and express
their views and concerns. Minutes of the Board meetings and meetings
of Board committees are recorded in sufficient detail about the matters
considered by the Directors and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the Directors. The minutes are kept by the Company
Secretary or any other personnel appointed by the Board at the
meetings. Subsequently, the signed minutes are circulated to the
Directors and are available for inspection by the Directors.

During the Reporting Year, the Board was responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions such as to develop and review the
Company's policies and practices on corporate governance; to review
and monitor the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management; to review and monitor the
Company's policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements; to develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors, and to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code
and make relevant disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report.
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Attendance Record of Directors and Committee Members

The attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings and
Board committee meetings, and the general meetings of the Company
during the Reporting Year is set out in the table below:

BEFNEFZBEMB R LEL LR

SREENABEFENLFARAEE
2E% FEZRRGARBRAGME

= = pK

O

Attendance/Number of meetings

HE EBTERYA
Special Annual
Audit Remuneration Nomination  general general
Board Committee Committee Committee  meeting  meeting
Name of Director % RE ] BRER
EEe ZEE ¥FMEEE Z85T BIKE FFEKE
Executive Directors YITES
Mr. Lin Jin M ELE 3/4 - - - 0/1 111
Mr. Liu Tangzhi BIRREE 4/4 - - - 11 11
Mr. Shi Chi Mt e 4 3/4 - - - 111 111
Ms. Lin Wei Ping R+ 3/4 - 3/3 2/2 0/1 11
Mr. Lam Shing Choi, Eric #8156 4 4/4 - - - 11 11
Independent BIUFHITES
Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Li Weibin FEMTE 4/4 2/2 3/3 2/2 01 01
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew, SR ZE £
Henry 4/4 2/2 3/3 2/2 17 1M
Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement HHZEEE 4/4 2/2 3/3 2/2 17 11
General Meetings (10 KREESH

The annual general meeting and other general meetings of the Company
are the primary communication with its shareholders. All shareholders
of the Company are welcomed to attend the general meetings or to
appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings on their behalf. Other
than shareholders' participation, independent non-executive Directors
should attend general meetings and develop a better understanding of
the views of shareholders. During the Reporting Year, other than the
annual general meeting, one special general meeting was held to
approve the offer in relation to the Share buy-back, the application of
whitewash waiver and the conditional very substantial acquisition for
the Company.

The attendance record of each Director during the Reporting Year is set

out in the section "Attendance Record of Directors and Committee
Members".
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Securities Transactions of Directors

The Company has adopted the Code of Conduct on terms no less
exacting than the required standard as set out in the Model Code. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company received
confirmation from each of the Directors that he/she had complied with
the Code of Conduct throughout the Reporting Year. Relevant employees
who are likely to be in possession of inside information of the Group are
also subject to compliance with written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code.

Linkage between Corporate Governance and Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG”)

In full compliance with the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide under Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules and the CG Code,
the Board has taken up an overall responsibility for formulating the
Group's ESG strategy and reporting. The Board takes a proactive
approach to review the Group's ESG-related risks on a regular basis to
ensure that effective risk management and internal control systems are
in place. For details, please refer to the 2023 ESG Report.

Board Committees

As an integral part of good corporate governance and to assist the Board in
execution of its duties, the Board is supported by 4 board committees,
including Executive Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee. Each of these committees oversees
particular aspects of the Group's affairs under its defined scope of duties and
terms of reference approved by the Board. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. All
committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties.

1)

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established by the Board on 5 February
2005 with written terms of reference adopted on the same date. The
Executive Committee currently comprises 7 members, including the
Executive Directors and senior management of the Company.
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The Executive Committee has been delegated with powers from the
Board to deal with matters of the Group. The authority and major duties
of the Executive Committee are summarised as follows:

. to establish strategic planning and financial budgets for Board's
approval;

. to monitor daily business operations, including sales, productions,
brand and product promotion and human resources capital, of
the Group;

. to review and approve management reports;

. to evaluate investments opportunities for Board's approval, and

. to monitor fund flows and evaluate cash management policies of
the Group.

The Executive Committee held monthly meetings during the Reporting
Year to review, discuss and evaluate the monthly business performance
and other business and operational matters of each major subsidiary of
the Group.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established by the Board since the listing of
the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange on 7 April 2000. The
Audit Committee currently comprises 3 Independent Non-executive
Directors. As at the date of this report, the chairperson of the Audit
Committee is Mr. Cheong Ying Chew, Henry and the other members are
Mr. Li Weibin and Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement.

The Audit Committee has its written terms of reference adopted since
its establishment. The terms of reference were subsequently revised on
30 March 2012 in order to comply with the then adopted amendments
to the CG Code. In light of the amendments made to the CG Code with
effect from 1 January 2016, the Board has further adopted the revised
terms of reference of the Audit Committee on 15 December 2015 in
accordance with such CG Code amendments.
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The major duties of the Audit Committee set out in its terms of reference
are summarised as follows:

. to ensure and coordinate the relationship with the Company’s
external auditors and make recommendations to the Board on
the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditors, and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditors;

. to review the Company's financial information; and

. to oversee the Company's financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems (both covering
environmental, social and governance topics), financial and
related environmental, social and governance disclosure.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the Reporting Year for the
purposes of, including but not limited to, the following:

. reviewed and commented on the Company's annual and interim
financial reports;

. oversaw the Group's financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control systems on an ongoing basis;

. reviewed the financial reporting system to ensure the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff in accounting
and financial reporting functions of the Group,

. discussed the Group's internal audit plan with the Risk
Management Department;

. reviewed the continuing connected transactions of the Company;
and
. met and communicated with the external auditors for audit

works of the Group.

The attendance record of each member of Audit Committee during the
Reporting Year is set out in the section “Attendance Record of Directors
and Committee Members".
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was set up under the auspices of the Board
on 5 February 2005 with written terms of reference adopted on 19
August 2005, which was further updated and approved on 30 March
2012 and 25 August 2017. The Nomination Committee currently
comprises 4 members. As at the date of this report, the chairperson of
the Nomination Committee is Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement and the other
members are Mr. Li Weibin, Mr. Cheong Ying Chew, Henry and Ms. Lin Wei
Ping. Except for Ms. Lin Wei Ping, is an Executive Director, the remaining
3 members are Independent Non-executive Directors.

The major duties of the Nomination Committee as set out in its terms of
reference are summarised as follows:

. to review the structure, size and composition of the Board at least
annually and to make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company's corporate
strategy;,

. to be responsible for identifying and nominating suitably qualified
candidates as additional Directors or to fill Board vacancies as
such occasions arise for approval of the Board;

. to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors in particular regarding the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer;

. in case of appointment and re-appointment of independent non-
executive Directors, to assess the independence of the appointees
having regard to relevant guidelines or requirements of the
Listing Rules in place from time to time; and

. to assess the independence of independent non-executive

Directors on an annual basis having regard to relevant guidelines
or requirements of the Listing Rules in place from time to time.
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The Nomination Committee held 2 meetings during the Reporting Year
for the purposes, including but not limited to the followings:

. reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board;

. reviewed and assessed the independence of the Independent
Non-executive Directors; and

. reviewed and made recommendation to the Board on the re-
appointment of an Executive Director and two Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The attendance record of each member of Nomination Committee
during the Reporting Year is set out in the section "Attendance Record of
Directors and Committee Members”.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was set up under the auspices of the
Board on 5 February 2005 with written terms of reference adopted on
19 August 2005, which was updated and approved on 30 March 2012, 25
August 2017 and 30 December 2022. The Remuneration Committee
currently comprises 4 members. As at the date of this report, the
chairperson of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Li Weibin and the
other members are Mr. Cheong Ying Chew, Henry, Mr. Hung Ka Hai,
Clement and Ms. Lin Wei Ping. Except for Ms. Lin Wei Ping who is an
Executive Director, the remaining 3 members of the Remuneration
Committee are Independent Non-executive Directors.

The major duties of the Remuneration Committee set out in its terms of
reference are summarised as follows:

. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's policy
and structure for all Directors' and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policy;

. to review and approve the management's remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals and
objectives;

4

TRERHRE

RAREFEN REEEECET2R
B3 BHEEMB N BIFETRRNU
TR :

- EHNESRRE - ABKMAEMNX:

- ERRFEBUFERTESFNEY
{3

- HNURZEFEFMLERETZ
T—RBRTESKMBEILIFATT
BF-

BURAZBENENAREFEAN L
FRBCHIINTESTNEFTZEENE
B R RC ek — & o

FHZESE
EEgBETHHFMEE 22 R2005F2A
5 B Rk - H 5 TE S i 0 B 70 2005 57 8 A 19
HEES  WR20129F3830H - 201748
B25sH k2022912 B30 BEE # L -
FMEZESBATH4RKBHEK - RAR
SHH FWZEENEFATERL
£ Hipk B BEREEL A AR EL
ERMEFELL - BREFLRLBRITE
B ERR3BEHEEEXNEHABY
EMITES -

FHZEeH N BEEEN T EREMM
(I

- BMARFREBEELERAEERASR
B 3 BN B M ZR 8 K SR AR SZIEAR
BERENRFHETHEMBEE - @
EEeRbER:

- FREEFEEMIZEESHIER
i M B T B A N

AIEEBEAERAT 2023F K 97



Corporate Governance Report

TERERHRE

98

. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, and to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors,

. to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of
office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

. to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate;

. to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates is involved
in deciding his/her own remuneration;

. to produce and approve disclosure statements of the Company's
remuneration policy and other disclosures in relation to the
Remuneration Committee and its work as required by applicable
laws and rules where necessary; and

. to review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The Remuneration Committee held 3 meetings during the Reporting
Year for the purposes of, including but not limited to, the following:

. reviewed and made recommendation to the Board on bonus
payable to the Directors and senior management of the Company;

. reviewed and made recommendation to the Board on the scheme
of special bonus to the executive teams of the Group for the
financial year 2023-2025 and the proposal for the grant of
awarded shares; and

. reviewed and made recommendation to the Board on the
renewal of service contract of an Executive Director and the
renewal of the appointment letters of two Independent Non-
executive Directors.
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The Remuneration Committee had reviewed the share awards granted
to the Director and the employees of the Group on 29 August 2023 and
15 December 2023, respectively. The vesting of such awarded shares to
the selected participants is shorter than 12 months because each of the
selected participants had fulfilled their performance target attached to
the awards granted. The vesting conditions are based on a set of
indicators that are linked with and subject to the overall financial
performance targets of the Group. There are no restrictions under the
2020 Share Award Scheme against the adoption of a vesting period of
less than 12 months and the Remuneration Committee is of the view
that such arrangement aligns with the purpose of the scheme and that
there are other requirements which the awardees would need to fulfill in
order for the awards to vest. The grant of the awarded shares to the
selected participants recognises their past contributions to the Group's
business performance and aims to secure their long-term continuous
support and commitments to the Group which are crucial to the future
development and business expansions of the Group.

The attendance record of each member of Remuneration Committee
during the Reporting Year is set out in the section "Attendance Record of
Directors and Committee Members”.

Remuneration Policy of the Group

The remuneration policy of the Group is formulated to ensure
remuneration offered to the Directors or employees is appropriate for
the corresponding duties performed, sufficiently compensated for the
effort and time dedicated to the affairs of the Group, and competitive
and effective in attracting, retaining and motivating employees. The key
components of the Company's remuneration package include basic
salary, and where appropriate, other allowances, incentive bonus,
mandatory provident funds, state-managed retirement benefits
scheme, share options granted under the share option schemes of the
Company and awarded shares granted under the share award scheme.
Details of the share option schemes of the Company and share award
scheme are set out in the sections "Share Options of the Company” and
“Awarded Shares of the Company” in the Directors' Report, notes 33 and
34 to the consolidated financial statements.
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The emoluments payable to Directors are determined with reference to
the responsibilities, qualifications, experience, performance of the
Directors and prevailing market conditions. They include incentive bonus
primarily based on the results of the Group, share options granted under
the share option schemes of the Company and awarded shares granted
under the share award scheme. The Remuneration Committee performs
review on the emoluments of the Directors from time to time. The
Company has a benchmarked approach in determining the
Independence Non-executive Directors' fees, which does not involve
equity-based remuneration with performance-related elements. The
level of fees payable to Independence Non-executive Directors is also
subject to shareholders' approval. No Director, nor any of his/her
associates and executive, is involved in deciding his/her own
emoluments.

Employees' remuneration packages are determined with reference to
the responsibilities, qualifications and experience of individuals. The
packages are reviewed annually and as required from time to time. The
Group also continuously spends resources in training, retention and
recruitment programmes, and encouraging staff for self-development
and improvements. The Group uses the “key performance indicators”, a
methodical system, to monitor and evaluate the performance of
managerial staff, aiming to achieve continuous improvements and
correction of deficiencies by establishing a measurable benchmark.

The Board recognises that the future success of the Group depends
largely on its ability to build up a team of high calibre professional
managers as its human resource capital. The Group is committed to
building up such human resource capital to enhance its assets for
ensuring future growth.

The remuneration of the individual Directors and the 5 highest paid
individuals are set out in notes 12 and 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Accountability and Audit

The Board is accountable to the shareholders of the Company through proper
financial reporting, regular internal control reviews, interim reviews and annual
audits. These are the most efficient way in assessing the effectiveness of the
Board in managing the business and affairs of the Group.
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Financial Reporting

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the annual
consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state
of business affairs and of the results and cash flow of the Group for the
Reporting Year. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors have:

. approved the adoption of the applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards;
. selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently

throughout the year covered by the consolidated financial statements;

. made judgments and estimates that were prudent and reasonable, and
ensured the consolidated financial statements were prepared on a
going concern basis; and

. ensured that the consolidated financial statements were prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the applicable accounting
standards.

The Board recognises that high quality corporate reporting is important in
enhancing the relationship between the Company and its stakeholders. The
Board aims at presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensible vision of the
performance, position and prospects of the Group in all corporate
communications. The Company's management provides the Board with
monthly updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group's business and financial performance in sufficient detail to enable the
Board to discharge their duties.

The statement of Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public
Accountants ("Deloitte”) being the external auditors of the Company, reporting
their responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
“Independent Auditors' Report” on pages 111 to 119 to this report.

Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to ensure that a sound and effective
risk management and internal control system is maintained. The system
includes a defined management structure with specified limits of authority, to:

. achieve business objectives and safeguard assets against unauthorised
use or disposition,

. ensure maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use or for publication; and
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. ensure compliance with the relevant legislation and regulations.

The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss, and manage,
rather than eliminate, risks of failure in operational systems, and to ensure
achievement of the Group's objectives.

The Board had performed annual review on the effectiveness and adequacy
(including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group's accounting, internal audit,
financial reporting functions, as well as those relating to the Company’s
environment, social and governance performance and reporting) of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems, including but not
limited to changes in the any risks since last year's review, the scope and
quality of management's ongoing review on risk management and internal
control systems of the Group; the extent and frequency of communication of
monitoring results and result of internal audit work; significant failures or
weaknesses identified and their impacts on the Group during the Reporting
Year; material risks relating to environment, social and governance; and the
financial reporting and status of compliance with the Listing Rules by the
Group, in accordance with its internal control framework set out below with
the assistance of the Risk Management Department.

Risk Management and Internal Control Framework

The internal control framework established by the Board is highlighted as
follows:

(1) Distinct Organisational Structure

To allow delegation of authority as well as to enhance accountability, a
distinct organisational structure exists which details lines of authority
and control responsibilities in each business unit of the Group. Division/
Department heads are involved in preparing the strategic plan and the
operation plan based on the corporate strategies and annual
operational and financial targets determined by the Board. Both of the
strategic plan and the annual operating plan laid down the foundation
for preparation of the annual budgets, which identify and prioritise
business opportunities with reference to the resources allocation.

During the Reporting Year, the Group continued to implement a series of
corporate reorganisation programmes in order to achieve a unit chain
of command and improve the operation flow. With the continuous focus
on the unit chain of command, the Group anticipates to attain better
controls and effectively monitor the management, operational and
financial processes.
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Comprehensive Management Reporting

A comprehensive management reporting system is in place providing
financial and operational performance measurement indicators to the
management and relevant financial information for reporting and
disclosure purposes. Variances between actual performances and
targets are prepared, analysed and explained, and appropriate actions
are taken, if necessary, to rectify the deficiencies noted. This helps the
management of the Company to monitor the business operations and
enables the Board to formulate a strategic plan in a timely and prudent
manner.

Regular Risk Assessment

Systems and procedures are set up to identify, measure, manage and
control risks including but not limited to operational risk, accounting risk,
interest rate risk and compliance risk that may have an impact on the
business of the Group. The Risk Management Department evaluates
whether the Group's risk management is in line with the established
strategies, policies and procedures of the Company.

Regulated Cash and Treasury Management

The Group maintains a sound system and clear authority limit to ensure
daily cash and treasury operations meet the relevant policies and rules
established by the Group.

Regular Reviews by Risk Management Department and Internal Audit
Department

The Risk Management Department was established by the Company in
December 2005. The key function of the Risk Management Department is
to provide an independent appraisal function to examine and evaluate
operations, the systems of internal control and risk management as a
service to the Company and its subsidiaries. The Risk Management
Department assists all levels of administrations in the achievement of
the organisational goals and objectives by striving to provide a positive
impact on:

. efficiency and effectiveness of operating functions;
. reliability of financial reporting;
. status of implementation and effectiveness of the internal control

policies and procedures; and

. compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
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The Risk Management Department also has a role to assist the Board
and the Audit Committee to ensure that the Company maintains a sound
system of internal controls by:

reviewing all aspects of the Group's activities and internal
controls with unrestricted right of access;

conducting comprehensive audits of the practices and
procedures of the Group;

conducting comprehensive audits of income and expenditure,
internal controls of all business units of the Group;

conducting comprehensive audits of cash and operational
management for various sales offices on a regular basis with the
support by the Internal Audit Department; and

conducting special reviews and investigations of concerned
areas identified by the Board or the management.

The Head of Risk Management has unrestricted direct access to the Audit
Committee and reports directly to the Board and the Audit Committee. The
Head of Risk Management is invited to attend the Audit Committee meetings
and has the right to bring appropriate matters identified during the course of
the risk assessment and the internal audits to the attention of the Audit
Committee. This reporting structure allows the Risk Management Department
to maintain its independence and to have free access to all members of the

Board.

During the Reporting Year and up to the date of this report, the work
performed by the Risk Management Department includes:

104

reviewed and evaluated major business cycles of several business units,

reviewed the effectiveness of all material aspects of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.

SKYWORTH GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

ﬂAﬁfiﬁBﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ?Tﬁ%EJJ%%@&%ffi%
BEERMRARAERTZLENANDEIER
L =) q:‘/jtlfg .

- ETERHWERLT BBHAKE
M—YEB R AREREEE

. HAEENENREFETEZES
%

- HAKREREERMHBEAMARE
THEITEEER

- HEAMEBEHBHT  THHEAE
BEEHRFRNESMEETE
ETEEER K

. HEFENERERINEERT
BHRIEMEAS -

HKA%&%&BIMTT%EE%M&E%%%%*Z%
B YEERNEFENERZESER A
REENIERBEFEERZZESGHALER
AEZEZ B EHRARTE XA EZBIET
LHHEMNEREFH - MERRBERREEDR
FEBYE  UEIZRIMESTZEMEN
BEH -

RABREFEARBERAREBY  AkEE
MEETZ TR

- HEBOEXRARZEEBXHRABELERN

AMErE - K&

- BRAAKERREERABEERFNM

BEETEZBERE -



Corporate Governance Report

The Internal Audit Department was established since 1996 mainly for
examining and evaluating the operations and compliance status of the sales
offices and branches in the mainland China TV business unit, which is the
largest cash flow and revenue contributor of the Group. Besides, it also carries
out special audits when senior staff leaving their positions either due to
resignations or job rotations within the Group. During the Reporting Year, the
Internal Audit Department also carried out the audit of certain major business
units, in order to enhance the management and operational efficiency.
Currently, the Internal Audit Department has approximately 24 staff members,
most of them continuously travel all over mainland China and overseas to
perform their internal audit work.

During the Reporting Year, the Internal Audit Department issued over 30
reports to the Board and senior management on its regular reviews of
operations and compliance audits of certain business units, sales offices and
branches as well as reports on senior staff leaving their positions.

Internal Audit Plan

The Risk Management Department, by considering current status and future
development of the Group, would submit an internal audit annual plan (the “IA
Annual Plan") to the Audit Committee and the Board for review and approval, in
order to match with the business strategy of the Group.

Risk Management and Internal Control Review

During the Reporting Year, the Board, through the work performed by the Risk
Management Department, conducted a review on the system of internal
controls in accordance with the IA Annual Plan, which covers material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions. The results of the review indicated that the system of risk
management and internal controls of the Group is effective and adequate
notwithstanding that there were some improvement opportunities identified.
The Board would consider and evaluate those improvement opportunities
identified by the Risk Management Department and make corresponding
changes to the current system as and when appropriate. The Board would
continue to review and improve the internal control system in fulfilment of the
Group's business objective.

Inside Information Policy

The Group adopts an inside information policy to regulate the handling and
dissemination of inside information, in particular for which may be potentially
price-sensitive. Procedures and guidelines are in place to ensure inside
information is kept strictly confidential. If the inside information has to be
disseminated to public, it should be done in equal and timely manner in
accordance with the applicable laws and regulations.
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Alist of designated officers of the Group is identified by the Company, including
all the Directors and certain employees, who substantially involve in the
management of the Group's operations and/or may be in possession of inside
information. These officers not only have to comply with specific procedures in
handling inside information, but also need to make appropriate declaration to
a designated Director or the Company Secretary and comply with restrictions
and blackout period in respect of dealing with securities of the Company. The
list of the officers is reviewed and updated from time to time by the Company.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Company adopted an external whistleblowing policy and an internal
whistleblowing policy (collectively, the “Whistleblowing Palicies”) in March 2022,
respectively. The purpose of the Whistleblowing Policies is to (i) foster a culture
of compliance, ethical behaviour and good corporate governance across the
Group; and (i) promote the importance of ethical behaviour and encourages
the reporting of misconduct, unlawful or unethical behavior.

The nature, status and the results of the complaints received under the
Whistleblowing Palicies are reported to the chairperson of the Audit
Committee. No incident of fraud or misconduct that have material effect on the
Group's financial statements or overall operations for the year ended 31
December 2023 has been discovered. The Whistleblowing Policies are reviewed
annually by the Audit Committee to ensure its effectiveness.

Anti-corruption Policy

The Company adopted an anti-fraud and anti-corruption policy (the “Anti-fraud
and Anti-corruption Policy”) in March 2022. The Group is committed to achieving
the highest standards of integrity and ethical behaviour in conducting
business. The Anti-fraud and Anti-corruption Policy forms an integral part of
the Group's corporate governance framework. The Anti-fraud and Anti-
corruption Policy sets out the specific behavioural guidelines that the Group's
personnel and business partners must follow to combat corruption. It
demonstrates the Group’'s commitment to the practice of ethical business
conduct and the compliance of the anti-corruption laws and regulations that
apply to its local and foreign operations. In line with this commitment and to
ensure transparency in the Group's practices, the Anti-fraud and Anti-
corruption Paolicy has been prepared as a guide to all Group employees and
third parties dealing with the Group.

The Anti-fraud and Anti-corruption Palicy is reviewed and updated periodically
to align with the applicable laws and regulations as well as the industry best
practice.
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External Auditor

The Group's external auditor is Deloitte. The Audit Committee is mandated to
ensure continuing auditors’ objectivity and safeguarding independence of the
auditor. The Board and the Audit Committee satisfied Deloitte of their findings,
independence, objectivity and effectiveness in the annual audit and their audit
fees. A statement by Deloitte about their reporting responsibilities for the
financial statements is included in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages
111 to 119 of this report. Up to the date of this report, the Audit Committee has
considered and approved the engagement of Deloitte as auditor of the Group
for the Reporting Year and the corresponding audit fee estimation.

Details of the fees paid or payable by the Group to Deloitte in respect of their
audit and other non-audit services for the Reporting Year are as follows:

Nature of services
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RMB million
AREEHEETT

RMB million
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Audit service =R g (Note 1) (f#1) Q (Note 2) (3t 1)
Non-audit services JEERIE 10 (Note 2) (Ff3£2) D55 (Note 3) (F3t3)
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Notes: Biat -
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financial statements respectively as set out in note 11 of the Company's 2023 audited
consolidated financial statements.

2. The non-audit services provided by the auditors to the Group during the financial year ended
31 December 2023 mainly included (i) review of the Group's 2023 interim report and other
audit-related assurance services; (i) tax advisory services; and (i) other advisory fees in
connection with the Group's finance data management platform and finance workflows
optimisation projects.

3. The non-audit services provided by the auditors to the Group during the financial year ended
31 December 2022 mainly included (i) review of the Group's 2022 interim and quarterly
reports and other audit-related assurance services; (i) tax advisory services; and (iii) other
advisory fees in connection with the Group's finance data management platform and finance
workflows optimisation projects.
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Company Secretary

Mr. Lam Shing Choi, Eric (“Mr. Lam") was appointed as the Company Secretary
since 1 December 2013. The biographical details of Mr. Lam are set out under
the section headed "Directors and Senior Management Profiles” of this report.

During the Reporting Year, Mr. Lam has undertaken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training respectively in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

Corporate Communication with Stakeholders

The Company has in place an effective corporate communication system
which provides transparent, regular and timely public disclosures to its
stakeholders, including, inter alia, the general public, analysts, and the
institutional and individual shareholders of the Company. The main features of
the system are that:

. the Company maintains a website on which comprehensive information
about the Group, including corporate structure, management profile,
products and services provided, financial reports, announcements and
news of the Group, are disclosed;

. the Company establishes and maintains different communication
channels with its stakeholders through publication of annual and
interim reports, announcements and press releases. To promote
effective communication, the shareholders of the Company can obtain
corporate communication electronically via the Company's corporate
website http://investor.skywarth.com/en/index.php;

. the annual general meeting of the Company provides a good forum for
the shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The Chairman of the
Board as well as chairperson of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee, or in their absence, members
of the committees will be available to answer questions which may be
raised by the shareholders of the Company;

. separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual Directors,

. details of the poll voting procedures and the rights of shareholders to
demand a poll are included in a circular to the shareholders despatched
prior to the date of the relevant general meeting. The circular also
includes relevant details of proposed resolutions;
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. the poll results are published on the website of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited and on the Company's website
http://investor.skyworth.com/en/index.php;

. the Company has in place a shareholders' communication policy (the
“Shareholders’ Communication Policy”) which sets out the Group's
commitment of maintaining an effective ongoing dialogue with
shareholders. The policy is to ensure that shareholders’ views and
concerns are appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed
by the Board to ensure its effectiveness. During the Reporting year, the
Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
Shareholders’ Communication Policy including steps taken at the
general meetings, the handling of queries received (if any) and the
multiple channels of communication and engagement in place, and
considered that the Shareholders' Communication Policy has been
properly implemented during the Reporting Year and is effective; and

. the Company publishes its own newsletter, which report up-to-date
corporate strategy and business development of the Group, on a regular
basis for internal circulation.

Shareholders’ Right

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate resolution should be
proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including
the election of individual Director. All resolutions put forward at general
meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after
each general meeting.

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, shareholder(s) holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the voting right at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary, to request a special general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself/themselves may do so in the same
manner.
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The procedures for shareholders of the Company to convene a special general
meeting and put forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings are available
on the website of the Company, and a summary of which is as follows:

Shareholders can submit a requisition to move a resolution at general
meetings pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The number of
shareholders necessary for a requisition shall be:

. either representing not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting
rights of the Company having on the date of the requisition; or

. not less than 100 shareholders of the Company.
The written requisitions must:

. state the resolution, with a statement not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in the proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at the meeting;

. be signed by all the requisitionists (may consist of several documents in
like form each signed by one or more requisitionists); and

. be deposited at the head office of the Company in Hong Kong for the
attention of the Company Secretary.

Shareholders of the Company may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary at the Company's Hong
Kong office at Rooms 1601-04, Westlands Centre, 20 Westlands Road, Quarry
Bay, Hong Kong. Shareholders of the Company can also make enquiries to the
Board directly at the general meetings.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIYZRMBES

Deloitte.

To the Members of Skyworth Group Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Skywaorth Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"Group”) set out on pages 120 to 265, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2023, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS - continued

Key audit matter

HEEITER

Write-down for inventories of smart TV system business

EEEER AR FE B 7 E M

We identified the write-down for inventories of smart TV system business of
the Group as a key audit matter due to the significance of inventories of the
business to the consolidated statement of financial position as a whole,
combined with significant management judgement associated with the
assessment of write-down for inventories.

B ESEETREREANERTFEMRBETESBRETEE
REAERFEHFREMBRARBEME +tHEZE - ARFEF
EMRFIELEREIRE HE -

As disclosed in notes 4 and 25 to the consolidated financial statements, the
carrying amount of the inventories of the Group as at 31 December 2023 is
RMB9,894 million, of which a significant portion is related to the Group's
smart TV system business. As further disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements, an expense of RMB61 million was recognised in profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2023 to write down the cost of
inventories to their net realisable values, of which a significant portion is
related to the Group's smart TV system business.

WMANGRE SR M T4 RS PI#EE - 202312 A31H » &
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B EREANEBKER - NGRS M BRI T —THRE
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As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the
assessment of write-down for inventories requires significant management
judgement in determining estimated selling prices, estimated cost of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

BN E B HRERMT4MEE  FEMRTEFTEECREREE
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRI &M EEERETER

Our procedures in relation to the write-down for
inventories of smart TV system business include:
BB ERRAGXBFEMR I ZIEF
BiE

. Obtaining an understanding of management's
process of carrying out the assessment of write-
down of inventories;

- ERUEREMSEEMRIEFN TR

. Evaluating the basis of write-down for
inventories assessed by management,

- AHEEEEFREFEMR ER

. Assessing the appropriateness of management's
estimates of the net realisable values of the
inventories by tracing to recent or subsequent
usage/sales of selected products, on a sample
basis,

. i 3B T E MEE T E m 8038 s iR A
B/ HERTIZEREHFEN#RFE
HEtREE It

. Evaluating the reasonableness of management's
estimated cost of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale and tracing to the
supporting documents, on a sample basis; and

- AHEEREH AR TR KB $EE A
FERANEEM - WHBEH R MH
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. Testing the integrity of the inventory ageing
report used as a basis to calculate the provision.
- AEAREAERBEENTERRBSEN
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS - continued

Key audit matter

HEETER

Estimated provision of expected credit losses for trade receivables

R B 5 5B 2 RS IR K iy A ot i e

We identified the estimated provision of expected credit losses for trade
receivables as a key audit matter due to the significance of trade receivables
to the consolidated statement of financial position as a whole, combined
with significant management estimation associated with the assessment of
impairment of trade receivables.

B RKE SFIAZ EHERBRANTEBERT SERET
FE REAEREKREZIRBHGESMBRAXRBEME tHE
Z URFHEREZFFERESTZEREELERMT -

As disclosed in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements, the
aggregate carrying amount of trade receivables at amortised cost and at
fair value through other comprehensive income is RMB9,698 million (net of
allowance for credit losses of RMB753 million). As set out in note 43(b)(ii) to
the consolidated financial statements, an impairment loss of RMB53 million
was recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2023.

MU S B TS MR I EE 23 PTAREE - IR A AT E IR AR BE
STAEMEEKRAZEEE SHIENAEHERARK 698 EE
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Bt sE 4300 FTak - B E2023F 12 AL B L FE - BREBBARE
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

B & M EEERETER

Our procedures in relation to estimated provision of
expected credit losses for trade receivables included:
BMIst U E 5 1A 2 THEE BB A TaT B
BB IZFERE -

. Obtaining an understanding of management's
process of assessing the expected credit losses
of trade receivables,

- ERHERENREWREZFTIEZEHE
FRIBRZIZFE T ##

. Evaluating the appropriateness of groupings of
trade debtors having similar loss patterns in the
provision matrix and testing the integrity of the
information used by management to develop
the provision matrix;

. AR EERER AR RUBERN 2 &
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. Evaluating the reasonableness of management's
determination of the estimated loss rates in
different categories in the provision matrix with
reference to credit statistics published by credit
rating agencies and publicly available forward-
looking information; and
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS - continued

Key audit matter

HEETER

Estimated provision of expected credit losses for trade receivables

R B 5 5B 2 RS IR K iy A ot i e

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the
impairment loss assessment requires significant management estimation
in determining the expected credit losses for trade receivables. The Group
uses provision matrix, through grouping of various debtors that have similar
loss patterns, after considering internal credit ratings, size and background
of debtors, business relationships with the debtors and repayment history
and/or past due status of respective trade receivables, to calculate expected
credit losses for trade receivables. The estimated loss rates are based on
the historical default rates taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is reasonable, supportable and available without undue
costs. In addition, trade receivables that are credit- impaired are assessed
for expected credit losses individually with reference to the estimated cash
flows to be recovered discounted at the original effective interest rate of the
relevant trade debts.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

B & MR EERETER

. Evaluating the reasonableness of management's
determination of allowance for credit losses for
credit- impaired trade receivables with reference
to credit statistics published by credit rating
agencies, background of debtors, business
relationship with the debtors, the estimated
subsequent settlements and other factors.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor's
reportis Chung Chi Man.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

GEBEmNEMZEBRAR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  £[ % 2023 12 H 31 HIF F /&
Amounts expressed in millions of Renminbi except for earnings per share data and otherwise stated

UANREEETLIE (BRENEH KRS FHEEEI)

NOTES 2023 2022
Bt 5 2023 2022
Revenue S
Sales of goods HEE M 68,376 52,889
Leases HE 516 539
Interest under effective interest method BEBRFEEFTE 2B 139 63
Total revenue ST 5 69,031 53,491
Cost of sales $H & AR (59,386) (45,284)
Gross profit EA 9,645 8,207
Other income E A 7 1,009 1,201
Other gains and losses H bz 1B 8 (64) 44
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEBER (3,695) (3,439)
General and administrative expenses —REITHER (1,921) (1,654)
Research and development expenses s A (2,127) (2,116)
Finance costs BbE PR AR 9 (522) (432)
Share of results of associates DEEE A E &
and joint ventures BELECER @ 8
Profit before taxation & 5 A s A 2,323 1,819
Income tax expense Frig iz i 10 (557) (412)
Profit for the year RF[E a7l 11 1,766 1,407
Other comprehensive income (expense) Hih2EUYA (ZH)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently AREREREFT D EE
to profit or loss: Em A -
Exchange differences arising on translation BMEGINERRFTEE Y
of foreign operations e =58 6 5
Fair value gain (loss) on trade receivables at fair Z AR BET AE M2 E A
value through other comprehensive ZEWEBSHE 2 AAER
income (“FVTOCI") Wz (BE) 6 B
Cumulative loss reclassified to profit REEEAABEFARLME
or loss upon disposal of trade receivables mMBAZEWE SHHRIERE
at FvTOCI Mo EER B EE 3) )
9 1
Items that will not be reclassified to profit TeEM T HEEERHEA -
orloss:
Fair value loss on investments in equity BEARBEFAEMZE
instruments at FVTOCI IWAZBRETAKE
ARBEBR (81) (576)
Income tax relating to item that will not be REBTEEHHECER
reclassified subsequently BHERFER 1) 76
(92) (500)
Other comprehensive expense REF 7 HMEAEZH
for the year (83) (499)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

GEEmNEMEZEBRAR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 £( % 2023 12 H 31 H IF F /&
Amounts expressed in millions of Renminbi except for earnings per share data and otherwise stated

UAREEETIE (BREFEH RS FHEERI)

2023
2023
Total comprehensive income for the year AFEEzEHEBRARE 1,683 908
Profit for the year attributable to: AFEETINSERIEZmA ¢
Owners of the Company RARIRERE A 1,069 827
Non-controlling interests NEPEH 697 580
1,766 1,407
Total comprehensive income for the year AEFETHNSERGZ
attributable to: AL -
owners of the Company RAEREREE A 983 326
Non-controlling interests EEH M= 700 582
1,683 908
Earnings per share (expressed in BREF (UAREWLTIE)
Renminbi cents)
Basic AR 15 4315 3197
Diluted e 15 43.15 31.95
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BN R

AT 31 DECEMBER 2023 20234 12 A 31 H
Amounts expressed in millions of Renminbi A A B & & T 5l 8

NOTES 2023 2022
Bt 5 2023 2022
Non-current Assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y E S 16 9,576 7,888
Right-of-use assets FHEEE 17 2,728 2541
Deposits paid for purchase of property, BEVE BEERREZ
plant and equipment BEfZEE 420 424
Investment properties KEE 18 1,517 1,410
Goodwill BES 19 473 467
Other intangible assets HihEmEERE 20 104 101
Interests in associates and joint ventures BENaMEELERES 21 466 287
Other financial assets EemEE 22 3,616 3397
Trade and other receivables FEULE 5 5k I8 I o JE W5 23 565 592
Deferred tax assets RIEHIBEEE 24 1,019 877
20,484 17,984
Current Assets REEE
Inventories and other contract costs FEREME LR 25 10,205 8,947
Stock of properties MERFE 26 6,033 7,349
Other financial assets HEhomEE 22 712 1,042
Trade and other receivables FEU B 5 3k I8 K E b i U SR IR 23 17,015 16,429
Prepaid tax TESNFL IR 137 252
Pledged and restricted bank deposits BEARZRIBITER 27 3,461 3,353
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEE 27 9,114 9,054
46,677 46,426
Current Liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables FETE 5 3kI8 K E A e S 5B 28 26,566 25,283
Other financial liabilities HEme®as 214 342
Lease liabilities HEBE 29 74 46
Deferred income IEIERA 30 91 171
Tax liabilities MIEBE 265 281
Bank borrowings SRITE K 31 8,218 9,404
35,428 35,527
Net Current Assets REBEEZFE 11,249 10,899
Total Assets less Current Liabilities HWEERABER 31,733 28,383
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

AT 31 DECEMBER 2023 20234 12 4 31 H
Amounts expressed in millions of Renminbi A A B ¥ & & T 5l B

NOTES 2023 2022
B 5 2023 £ 2022 £
Non-current Liabilities ERBEE
Trade and other payables JEfHE SR E M H b ES FRI8 28 1,019 354
Other financial liabilities HhemaE 57 97
Lease liabilities HEAE 29 70 54
Deferred income PRIEU A 30 395 278
Bank borrowings SRITRE 31 7,097 5,853
Deferred tax liabilities RIEHIEEE 24 338 353
8,976 6,989
NET ASSETS EEFE 22,757 21,894
Capital and Reserves ERR#E
Share capital A& A 32 250 266
Reserves 1 17,889 17,601
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AN 2Q AIAZ R B A JE(E 2 #E %S 18,139 17,867
Non-controlling interests B )M i 46 4618 4,027
22,757 21,894

The consolidated financial statements on pages 120 to 265 were approved and & =& A 2024 %3 A 26 B #t & M 2 17 24 T
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2024 and are signed {5 1205 265 B 2 43 & M= - Wi 5

on its behalf by: EEREEEF:
Lin Jin Shi Chi
wE it Bt
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EFE EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERmBER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #{ 2 2023 12 H 31 H IF F/Z

Amounts expressed in millions of Renminbi

UAR¥BZTIE

Attributable to owners of the Company

1:

Shares

Share Share held for

Share Share option award  share award
aptdl premium Tesene Teserve stheme

Surplus
acount

(apital
TESENVES

Exchange
Tesere

Accumuated
profis

23
£

eyl

Sub-total

Non-
controling
interests

&

Balance at 1 January 2022 Rankif18288 m AL il - m 493 L} 213 (1) A 18045 304 21,08
Profitorthe ear TERER - ol bl 50 14
Bichangediferencesarshgonransatonof oregnoperations BEN EREL 2 EHEE - 3 - 3 2 5
Falrvalueloss o recevables andequiy nstumentsat moe, — BMGUBR RO BE AE2AMA

et tox REIERE, 1 RRER - 503 - 509 ]
Cumuiatielos reclassed to proftor s upon isposalof HERMABERALHAENA 2B

trate recehatles t FTOC LR EN A RS R 2HEE ] - ] 1
Total comprefensiv ncomelxpensefor e year FERZAENA (L) 88 - 504 3 8 % W 9%
Recognton of equit-seted share-ased payments ote 4/ B EREENRAERGH (T 3 - - & £
Alotmentofhareawards BOEDIE Bl il 0
Bercise o sare optons fEERE ? 5 €] 8 B
Lapseaf shreoptions BRERH By - - % - .
Repurchase andcancelation of stares of e Companyoore 7 BEREHARARR Wtz ] ] - - - - i} 0
Puchasedftite for umestd shaes B HETABERNEERR

e teshareawardcheme e 4 (Het) 3 - B B
Transter tocaptalreserves ERTENER - & i)
Conversion of convertble bonds ssued by a subsidiary

ofthe Company - @ - ] 758 1%
Dividend recognised s distribution = ivdits - (566! (566l (566l
Dividends pidto non-controling terests BRFEBHNEERS [y} [
Cortroutions from nocotralinginterests FABHNER R - - - ) il
Acquistonof adional interestinsubsidaies f teCompany  WEARANBLAF 2B EE - ® ] 13y 4
Repurchaseof ow shares by asubsdary o the Company KRE-ENBAAREASRE (121 128l
Belancea 31 ecembe 202 RanEnAuRzEs i3 198 ® U ol il 0 3190 B e 1881 4 18
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GERRBER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #{ = 20234 12 A 31 HIFF/E
Amounts expressed in millions of Renminbi LA A B ¥ & & T 5l B

Attributable to owners of the Company

KDARES

Shares
Share Share held for Non-

Share Share option award  share award Fmoct Surplus Capital ~ Exchange  Accumulated controling
capital ~ premium Teserve reserve scheme reserve account reserves reserve profits Sub-total interests

ik EOAERE
O/ E DN 3!
Bt BRE 2 BN 2EMA -2 ; 23 #4h
L] Rt zBE  EBR Ei E i B s
Motelal) ~ Mote bl

Balanceat 1 January 2023 266 199 3 U @) [i] L] 3150 67 12509 17867 407 21.8%

Proft for the year - - - - - - - - 1069 1069 697 1766

Exchange differences arising on ranslaion o freign operations - - - - 3 - 3 3 b

Fair value loss on receivables and equity instruments

atFVTOC, netof tax - - - - (1] - - - - (1] - (66l

Cumultive loss reclassiied to profit oross upon disposal of

trade receivabes at ATOCI - - - ] - - ° ] - B

Total comprehensive income expense for the year - - o = (69) = = 3 1069 93 0 168

Recogniton of equity-Settied share-based payments frote 34/ = = 8 = = = = = = 8 15 %

Alotment of share awards - = (1] % - . - - 1

Repurchase and cancellaton ofshares ofthe Company rote 37 (16 (683) - 5 o = 5 o 5 - 699) o (699)

Transfer to capital reserves - - - - - - 53 - 253) - -

Dividend recogrised as istrbution - - . - . . - . (63) (] . (63)

Dividends paid to non-controlinginterests - . - - - © ° o o 231 231

Contrigutions from non-Cantraling interests - - - - - - - - = 10 100

Acquiston of additonal nterestn subsiciares ofthe Company - - - - - - - ] (30 1 3

Balance at 31 December 2023 RasEnfuAzgs %0 1315 k] 1 (55) (100) L] 3403 64 1324 18139 4618 151

Notes: Hiat -

(a) Surplus account represents the difference between the nominal amount of the share capital (@) RAEDNIEARNRBITIRAEERBISERE (R A
issued by the Company and the aggregate of the nominal amount of the issued share capital PR X ] (AN 2 B 74 2000 6 #E 17 5 B S48 1 U HE 2 BT &8
and other reserves accounts of Skyworth Investment (Holdings) Limited, a subsidiary which AR BT ZRAEEREMEERSSREZHE
was acquired by the Company pursuant to the group reorganisation carried out in 2000. ZER e

(b) Capital reserves represent the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC") statutory reserves.  (b) BRBEEDHFEAREME (R ZEERHE R

Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations and the relevant Articles of Association of the PRC BRESBERRARANFEZINB AR ZEEA
subsidiaries of the Company, each PRC subsidiary is required to transfer not less than 10% of RIERHAE  STFEZWBAREZIRIVATE HE (A
its post-tax profit to Statutory reserve (ie. capital reserve) as reserve fund until its statutory BARE) AREBEES  HIERLAITSERBRBR
reserve has reached 50% of its registered capital. These reserves should only be used for Az 10% 0 BEEAEREEDFME AR Zsoxks - A
making up losses, capitalisation into capital, and expansion of production and operation. AABRER - ZEHEEITAERERX EXER

AIEEBEAERAT  2023F K 125



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #{ = 2023 F 12 A 31 HIFF/E
Amounts expressed in millions of Renminbi A A B & & T 5l B

2023 2022
2023 5 2022
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RS
Profit before taxation BR 31 A& 2,323 1819
Adjustments for: P
Amortisation of intangible assets mAEEE - 2
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERAEEERE 62 47
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W WELRERETE 472 619
Depreciation of investment properties HEMERE 69 87
Finance costs A& AR A 522 432
Government grants related to assets recognised W32 & = AH B8 BT 48 B (62) (76)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of financial = RS @& E R EE B
assets 48 1
Interest income B A (10) (260)
Dividend from equity instruments fEETARE (70) -
Loss on derivative component of convertible AEBESTET ALY
bonds ) it - 9%
Loss (gain) from changes in fair value of BARBEFAERZ
financial assets at fair value through TREENAABEEDY
profit or loss (“FVTPL") FrE A/ EE (W) 76 (202)
Provision B 186 369
Share-based payment expenses 1D E iR 41 2 H 98 65
Share of results of associates and joint ventures DMEBERBIREELECER 2 8)
Write-down of inventories GFE 2w 75 33
Others Hh (87) 31
Operating cash flows before movements in EEECEHRI L EES
working capital BeRE 3,704 3,055
Settlement of derivative financial instruments EEITESRIT A - (71)
Increase in inventories and other contract costs HFEREME LK AL (849) (954)
Decrease (increase) in stock of properties YEF SR () 866 (1,737)
(Increase) decrease in trade and bills receivables  JEUCE 5 7018 & e UL = 4% (38 1) k2 (1,619) 1,950
Decrease in trade receivables at FyTOC BEARBEFAREMZERAZ
e B 5 RIE R D 241 91
Increase in other receivables, deposits H b fEUREIE ~ RS R IB FRI8 b1
and prepayments (699) (196)
Increase in trade and bills payables JERTE 558 KR =R N 4,468 586
Increase in other payables LA A~ SRIELE AN 161 1,461
(Decrease) increase in contract liabilities GHEECERD) &N (3,390) 1,637
Increase (decrease) in deferred income R AE AN O 2) 66 (26)
Increase in pledged and restricted bank deposits = #{ ¥ & R R 1717 2038 70 (115) -
Cash generated from operations REEBMBRE 2,834 5,796
Interest received B 2 260 7
Hong Kong income tax paid BB BFEH (11) (18)
Overseas income tax paid BB INET ISR (31) (19)
PRC income tax paid AR BTER (564) (613)
Land appreciation tax paid AT TR E R 12) (5)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES KEEBRRBREeFE 2,476 5148
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 £( % 2023 12 H 31 H IF F /&
Amounts expressed in millions of Renminbi

UAREBETIE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES WEER
Interest received B F 8 9 252
Acquisition of right-of-use assets WG AR E (45) (142)
Payment for property, plant and equipment S ME - BB REE (1,771) (2,320)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  WELEE

equipment FriS5k18 38 95
Investment in associates and a jointventure ~ REREBE NG N—HEEE (192) (23)
Investments in financial assets at FVTPL BARBEFABRZ

PREERE (593) (1,180)

Proceeds on disposal of financial assetsand ~ HE S @E EMTSHE R

dividend income [i&% B U A 476 1,194
Investments in financial assets at FVTOCI BEARBEFAHEMZEBAZ

TREERE (30) (345)

Loan advanced FERER (119) (1,192)
Repayments of loan receivables EERKER 10 1,480
Placement of other deposits FAEMFR - (1,516)
withdrawal of other deposits TEERE 17 3K 1,516 =
Placement of bank deposits with original maturity 77 AR 288 H A& =& A =t

of three months or more A FRERITIE R (278) (2,704)
withdrawal of bank deposits with original maturity 32 EXR 2| EA H A& =1 A =X

of three months or more LA FRYERITIE R 770 1,479
Other investing cash flows HRERSRE (143) (129)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES WEEGMARFH (352) (5,051)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BLE ¥
Dividends paid BERRE (296) (683)
Interest paid ERFE (527) (409)
Repurchase of own shares by a subsidiary /NS R Sl )EENGS

of the Company RN Er) - (126)
Repurchase of own shares by the Company ARARERB FEH 33 (699) (400)
Exercise of share options 1T B R A = 43
Purchase of shares for unvested shares under Bt~ A7 22 B 512178 T~

the share award scheme of the Company HERNEERD 34 - (33)
New bank borrowings raised FTIGIRTTIE N 14,501 12,672
Repayments of bank borrowings EEIRITER (14,609) (11,718)
Payments of lease liabilities HEBBENK (45) (65)
Redemption of corporate bonds ERARES - (876)
Placement of pledged bank deposits GFABEBRRITER (665) -
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits RMEBHRITER 227 -
Other financing cash flows HEihm&EREME (100) (62)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEXEBFAR S FHE (2,213) (1,657)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS IR & MIR& SE 2 M F5E (89) (1,560)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING RENzBERREE

OF THE YEAR 9,054 10611
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNEDE R BB v B 149 3
TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END RERZRERESFELRE

OF THE YEAR, represented by bank balances (BNERTT#HEHR RE )

and cash 9,114 9,054
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

e MR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 HIF F /&

128

GENERAL INFORMATION

Skyworth Group Limited (the “"Company”) is an exempted company
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
addresses of the registered office and the principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the corporate information section of the
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB"), which is also the functional currency of the Company and most
of its subsidiaries.

The Group, comprising the Company and its subsidiaries, is principally
engaged in manufacture and sales of smart TV systems, home access
systems, photovoltaic products, smart white appliances, intelligent
manufacturing, internet value-added services, property development,
property holding, modern services and trading of other products. Details
of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures are set out in notes 45 and 21 respectively.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual periods beginning on 1 January 2023 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 17 (including the October
2020 and February 2022
Amendments to HKFRS 17)

Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar
Two Model Rules

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

SKYWORTH GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements

e MR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

- continued

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year - continued

Except as described below, the application of the new and amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group's
financial positions and performance for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes
International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the current
year, HKAS 12 is amended to add the exception to recognising and
disclosing information about deferred tax assets and liabilities that are
related to tax law enacted or substantively enacted to implement the
Pillar Two model rules published by the Organisation for Economic Co-
operation and Development (the "Pillar Two Legislation”). The
amendments require that entities shall apply the amendments
immediately upon issuance and retrospectively. The amendments also
require that entities shall disclose separately its current tax expense/
income related to Pillar Two income taxes, and the qualitative and
guantitative information about its exposure to Pillar Two income taxes
in periods in which the Pillar Two Legislation is enacted or substantially
enacted but not yet in effect in annual reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2023.

The Group has applied the temporary exception immediately upon issue
of these amendments and retrospectively, i.e. applying the exception
from the date Pillar Two legislation is enacted or substantially enacted.
The qualitative and quantitative information about the Group's exposure
to Pillar Two income taxes is set out in note 10.

2.

403 5T R RS 3T B 8 B IS 88
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T2 5 2 5 1) A S8R9 # T R AR S ET
BERMBREER-&

Bk ESCPrAsh - MAE ERAFT ] K& E
AEAVBHREEATEHAKRELREER
EBREFENPFBRARRKRRERHZE
RAMBRRABINBERNEATE -

EREEBEERFE 125 85 (155T4)
EIBEHNKE - SR TEHRAEE
REANRAFEERNEAZSER - BA
SRTERIZE 1258 FLABET - AINARER &
FREBELCHBEENRABREROEIIN
B MZEEENBERAERLES
EBERAKAMGHIE ZRERAMmE
e EE EBMIFE (A=) -
BEIARBREEAEMERTARMEZILANR
WER BRI AR E AN 202351
A1BRZ RN FERS HES AIE
BEIYHZMESHMAENR A
SN ARREEZAGIEEMGSRE
Y EEMGENRESBR TS
BEROEERTEER -

REBRZEBETRMELENERSE
BHIINMER - BB I R BBE M EE
Erz BRRERMIINMER - BEAAREEX
HZFB TR E N E = E R
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

e MR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 HIF F /&

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

- continued

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year - continued

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the current
year. HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements is amended to replace
all instances of the term “significant accounting policies” with "material
accounting policy information”. Accounting policy information is
material if, when considered together with other information included in
an entity's financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy information may be
material because of the nature of the related transactions, other events
or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not all
accounting policy information relating to material transactions, other
events or conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses to disclose
immaterial accounting policy information, such information must not
obscure material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements (the “Practice
Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how an entity applies the
“four-step materiality process” to accounting policy disclosures and to
judge whether information about an accounting policy is material to its
financial statements. Guidance and examples are added to the Practice
Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no material impact on the
Group's financial positions and performance but has affected the
disclosure of the Group's accounting policies set out in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements

e MR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

- continued

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture!

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)°

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?

Supplier Finance Arrangements?

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.
: Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below, the directors
of the Company anticipate that the application of all other amendments
to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.
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132

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

- continued

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
- continued

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020) (the “2020 Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-
current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional guidance on
the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least twelve months
from reporting date for classification of liabilities as current or non-
current, which:

. clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer of the entity's
own equity instruments, these terms do not affect its
classification as current or non-current only if the entity
recognises the option separately as an equity instrument
applying HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

. specify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-
current should be based on rights that are in existence at the end
of the reporting period. Specifically, the amendments clarify that
the classification should not be affected by management
intentions or expectations to settle the liability within 12 months.

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months from reporting
date which are conditional on the compliance with covenants, the
requirements introduced by the 2020 Amendments have been modified
by the 2022 Amendments. The 2022 Amendments specify that only
covenants with which an entity is required to comply with on or before
the end of the reporting period affect the entity's right to defer
settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
date. Covenants which are required to comply with only after the
reporting period do not affect whether that right exists at the end of the
reporting period.

In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the disclosure requirements
about information that enables users of financial statements to
understand the risk that the liabilities could become repayable within
twelve months after the reporting period, if the entity classify liabilities
arising from loan arrangements as non-current when the entity's right
to defer settlement of those liabilities is subject to the entity complying
with covenants within twelve months after the reporting period.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

- continued

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
- continued

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020) (the “2020 Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-
current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022 Amendments"”)

- continued

The 2022 Amendments also defer the effective date of applying the 2020
Amendments to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024. The 2022 Amendments, together with the 2020
Amendments, are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2024, with early application permitted. If an entity
applies the 2020 amendments for an earlier period after the issue of the
2022 Amendments, the entity should also apply the 2022 Amendments
for that period.

Based on the Group's outstanding liabilities as at 31 December 2023, the
application of the 2020 and 2022 Amendments will not result in
reclassification of the Group's liabilities.
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134

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

31

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is reasonably expected
to influence decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “"Listing Rules") and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment ("HKFRS 2"), leasing transactions
that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases
("HKFRS 16"), and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets ("HKAS 36").

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

e MR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements - continued

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value and a
valuation technique that unobservable inputs are to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation technique
is calibrated so that at initial recognition the results of the
valuation technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Certain comparative figures have been aggregated to conform to
the current year's presentation. The directors of the Company
consider that such presentation would better reflect the financial
performance and position of the Group.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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136

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

3.2

Material accounting policies information

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company or its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

. has power over the investee,

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income (“0CI")
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting paolicies in
line with the Group's accounting paolicies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and

cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

3.2

Material accounting policies information - continued

Basis of consolidation - continued

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group's equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group'’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not result
in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's
relevant components of equity and the non- controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries, including re-attribution of relevant reserves between
the Group and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group's and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and
is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to
the owners of the Company. All amounts previously recognised in
0Clin relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments ("HKFRS 9") or, when applicable, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a
joint venture.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

3.2 Material accounting policies information - continued

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, which represent the lowest level at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the unit
may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group
of cash-generating units).
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

3.2

Material accounting policies information - continued

Revenue from contracts with customers
The Information about the Group's accounting policies relating to
contracts with customers is provided in notes 5, 23 and 28.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components, including contract for acquisition of ownership
interests of a property which includes both leasehold land and
non-lease building components, unless such allocation cannot be
made reliably.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate non-
lease components from lease component, and instead account
for the lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

3.2 Material accounting policies information - continued

Leases - continued

The Group as a lessee - continued

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
leases of machineries, equipment, motor vehicles and properties
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option.
Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability,

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received,

. any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventories, stock of properties and construction in
progress.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of
the lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the
end of the useful lives. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of their
estimated useful lives and the lease terms.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

e MR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

3.2

Material accounting policies information - continued

Leases - continued

The Group as a lessee - continued

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present
value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

. variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate;

. amounts expected to be payable under residual value
guarantees;

. the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain

to exercise the option; and

. payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option in which case the
related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the date of
reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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142

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

3.2

Material accounting policies information - continued

Leases - continued

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance or
operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a
finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised
as receivables at commencement date at amounts equal to net
investments in the leases, measured using the interest rate
implicit in the respective leases. Initial direct costs (other than
those incurred by manufacturer or dealer lessors) are included in
the initial measurement of the net investments in the leases.
Interest income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect
a constant periodic rate of return on the Group's net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Interest and rental income which are derived from the Group's
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both lease and non-lease components,
the Group applies HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers ("HKFRS 15") to allocate consideration in a contract to
lease and non-lease components. Non-lease components are
separated from lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments from lessees.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

3.2

Material accounting policies information - continued

Leases - continued

Sale and leaseback transactions

The Group applies the requirements of HKFRS 15 to assess
whether sale and leaseback transaction constitutes a sale by the
Group.

The Group as a buyer-lessor

For a transfer of asset that does not satisfy the requirements of
HKFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale of asset, the Group as a
buyer-lessor does not recognise the transferred asset and
recognises a loan receivable equal to the transfer proceeds within
the scope of HKFRS 9.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remains outstanding after the related
asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included in the
general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation rate on
general borrowings. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

3.2 Material accounting policies information - continued

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred
income in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis
over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable. Such grants are
presented under “other income”.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of
interest is treated as a government grant, measured as the
difference between proceeds received and the fair value of the
loan based on prevailing market interest rates.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
including state-managed retirement benefit schemes, the
Occupational Retirement Scheme and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme, are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

3.2

Material accounting policies information - continued

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and
when employees rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an
asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such
as wages and salaries) after deducting any amount already paid.

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors and employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors, employees
and others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration all
non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of
equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment of all
relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss such that the cumulated expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred
to accumulated profits.
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146

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

3.2

Material accounting policies information - continued

Share-based payment arrangements - continued

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions - continued
Share options granted to non-employees

Equity-settled share-based payments transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at the fair value of the goods
or services received, except where that fair value cannot be
estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the date
the entity obtains the goods or the counterparty renders the
service. The fair values of the goods or services received are
recognised as expenses.

Share awards

For share award schemes, the fair value of services received,
determined by reference to the fair value of awarded shares
granted at the grant date, is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in share
award reserve. The cost of acquisition of the Company'’s shares
held for the share award schemes is recorded as treasury shares
(shares held for share award scheme). At the time when the
awarded shares are vested, the amount previously recognised in
share award reserve and the amount of the relevant treasury
shares will be transferred to accumulated profits.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revisits its
estimates of the number of awarded shares that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates during
the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share award reserve.

SKYWORTH GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

3k

BBBR o mREERE

RE
BRRRER -2

32 EXREHBEEN-#

ﬂlﬁgﬁnﬂ /jf# thn

N m G BRI BRGNS - &
BT ke S ERE

EEUHEEHZF%’]LME’\ZH*E’]HX

NERENRZEMKRRE MR
BHRAREBEEFE EEAREER
TEERI SEHb b AT B - R A9 A
BIANAREENE TRER
BSEmEF I RHAREE B
BB ERIMEHORAE
EFER BT

Bedn 28
R R A &P RERBHAQ
ﬁﬁ@%ﬂﬁﬁ@%ﬁ&ﬁ%Mi
ZAREBEREE HEBRERAE
BEHENESREE M) R
Bl {5 188 7T 1 th AR PRI h0 o BE AR (D B8
By At I B 2 AR R B B M B AR
AeR BT (D ZEE 2
FRAEZED) ERBERNDERS
B - 3B 1 B0 BRI R 4 P RE R
SRMBBNESR RGBSR E R
A o

REERE R - AN EE R EY

?%E?J%E’Uﬁiﬁbﬁ% 1&#%(9 ° 5
BHEMARBGER  B¥
EEBRPH®R Iﬁéﬂxﬁi@%ﬂﬁ%
B EREREE -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

3.2 Material accounting policies information - continued

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred
income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit and at the time of the transaction
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

3.2 Material accounting policies information - continued

Taxation - continued

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
requirements to the lease liabilities and the related assets
separately. The Group recognises a deferred tax asset related to
lease liabilities to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilised and a deferred tax liability for all taxable
temporary differences.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

3.2

Material accounting policies information - continued

Taxation - continued

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in OCI or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in OCI or directly in equity respectively. Where current
tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than construction in progress as
described below). Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes and are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management, including costs of testing whether the
related assets is functioning properly and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Sale proceeds of items that are produced while
bringing an item of property, plant and equipment to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management (such as samples produced
when testing whether the asset is functioning properly), and the
related costs of producing those items are recognised in the
profit or loss. The cost of those items are measured in accordance
with the measurement requirements of HKAS 2. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

3.2

Material accounting policies information - continued

Property, plant and equipment - continued

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which include both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably, interest
in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as "right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement
of financial position. When the consideration cannot be allocated
reliably between non-lease building element and undivided
interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
other than construction in progress, less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

If @ property becomes an investment property because its use
has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, transfer
from owner-occupied property to investment property does not
change the carrying amount of the property transferred and it
does not change the cost of that property for measurement or
disclosure purposes.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. SFRE M BEHREZHEREERE

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY REFTBERER-»#

INFORMATION - continued

3.2 Material accounting policies information - continued 32 ERSHHEER-#
Investment properties REYFE
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or BEWMEERBKIMES R HER
for capital appreciation. BEMBE S -
Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including WEMENTIERAE (BIEFANEE
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial EERS) T2 - RIS HERE - &
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less B E AR AR B8 25T E R
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated M RFREEBEIE WEHUNE
impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off BOERIEEMEMN G FT AT A FH
the cost of investment properties over their estimated useful lives R 8 B K AN R R B AT R BR (B
and after taking into account of their estimated residual value, BHER -

using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when A E R E R oK A IREE T
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and BEHERFERTEEERRLE
no future ecanomic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any PG FLAMRIETER - B IETER
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated WS T EE A 2 A T M e SRS 1B (3R 1
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the EFSREFEEEEREBE A
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in HEFH) RN R EREZ Y E 2 BEE
the period in which the property is derecognised. AB#=mA °

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment, WE BERZEH REYE - #Z
investment properties, right-of-use assets and intangible FESEREFRELE (BHEKRI)HE
assets other than goodwill EEE

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the KEBRSREPRBRELGRA
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, FRAFHNYE  BEREE &
investment properties, right-of-use assets and intangible assets BYE FTRAEEEREREEL
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any REE UWETEREENTRE
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If TREEEHRBERE WET
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant MZEDR  AehztHEEEZ
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the AlESRE - DURERESBE (1E)
impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets with indefinite useful RIRE o TaEREE A2 A F B A 1
life are tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever FWEERGF & IET —IRREAE
there is an indication that they may be impaired. HOMEERREREDREET

ZAE -

The recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment, Y - BMEREE KEME - F
investment properties, right-of-use assets and intangible assets AEEEREFEEMNTKE S
are estimated individually. When it is not possible to estimate the Th T B Rk T o & A A2 & Bl & &+
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the AR EERER  NEBEGGTZEE
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the FIBRREEABNMAKESEE -

asset belongs.
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152

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

3.2

Material accounting policies information - continued

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment,
investment properties, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets other than goodwill - continued

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to relevant cash generating units when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be established,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units to
which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the
carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the carrying
amount of a group of cash-generating units, including the
carrying amount of the corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with the
recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating units. In
allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of cash
generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The
amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of
the unit or the group of cash generating units. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

3.2

Material accounting policies information - continued

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment,
investment properties, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets other than gooadwill - continued

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of cash
generating units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

. cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash; and

. cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term (generally
with original maturity of three months or less), highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value and restricted deposits arising
from pre-sale of properties that are held for meeting short-
term cash commitments. Cash equivalents are held for the
purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather
than for investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents
as defined above.

Bank balances for which use by the Group is subject to third party
contractual restrictions are included as part of cash unless the
restrictions result in a bank balance no longer meeting the
definition of cash. Contractual restrictions affecting use of bank
balances are disclosed in notes 27 and 36.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

3.2 Material accounting policies information - continued

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted average
cost method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale. Costs necessary to make the
sale include incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and
non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to make the
sale.

Stock of properties

Properties for/under development which are intended to be sold
upon completion of development and stock of completed
properties for sale are classified as current assets. Except for the
leasehold land element which is measured at cost model in
accordance with the accounting policies of right-of-use assets,
stock of properties are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on a specific identification
basis including allocation of the related development expenditure
incurred and where appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for the
properties less estimated cost to completion and costs necessary
to make the sales. Costs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and non-
incremental costs which the Group must incur to make the sale.

Properties for/under development are transferred to completed
properties upon completion.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

3.2

Material accounting policies information - continued

Provision

Provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

The amount recognised as provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

Provisions for the expected cost of assurance-type warranty
obligations under the relevant contract for sale of goods are
recognised at the date of sale of the relevant products, at the
directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
Group's obligation.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS
15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

3.2

156

Material accounting policies information - continued

Financial instruments - continued

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income which is derived from the Group's ordinary course
of business is presented as revenue.

Financial assets

Classification and subseqguent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash

flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

SKYWORTH GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

>3

BBBR o mREERE

s
BRRRER -2

ERETHBEREN -7

LHTH-&
BERMELZRBITESHREERD
BEZEBERAREEBHRRE S
FEBWMARMBALZZHE B
FETRNSERB RS EES
¢ BB & 2 78 B HA S B S AR (0
BA) AEYIMREFARESBA
I (BEERERAREEIL D
ZAHBEENRNSBERERARIEEH X
SRR R E R BN IR) EREF
BZHE-

AEBEEEXBBIETAELNF
BWATI 2SI BEREE -

THEE
STREENDBMERGE
HEUATHRENEREERRIZE
MR E

- BATRMEEMNFEHEAMNE
BRKEEHNRER &

- AHBRTRBEBRHELN
RanAESXNARE RRE
ERGEHE -

HEUATHRIENEREERRER
REEFAEBEZEBAGE

- BATREEMEHEANE
BERRAFHERKEAHNRES
&

- BHBRTREBEBRHELN
RERnAERSNARE RAE
BAREHHME -



Notes to the Consolidated
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

3.2 Material accounting policies information - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets - continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

- continued

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value
of an equity investment in OCI if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations ("HKFRS 3") applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking,;
or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

3.2

Material accounting policies information - continued

Financial instruments - continued
Financial assets - continued
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

- continued

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that is required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI
as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch.

(i)

(ii)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and receivables subsequently measured at
FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from
the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Receivables classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for
receivables classified as at FVTOCI as a result of interest
income calculated using the effective interest method are
recognised in profit or loss. All other changes in the
carrying amount of these receivables are recognised in 0OC
and accumulated under the heading of FVTOCI reserve.
Impairment allowances are recognised in profit or loss
with corresponding adjustment to OCl without reducing the
carrying amounts of these receivables. When these
receivables are derecognised, the cumulative gains or
losses previously recognised in OCl are reclassified to profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

e MR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

3.2

Material accounting policies information - continued

Financial instruments - continued
Financial assets - continued
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

- continued

(iii)

(iv)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in 0Cl and
accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will
not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to accumulated
profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to
receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the “other income”
line item in profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the
“other gains and losses” line item.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

3.2

Material accounting policies information - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets - continued

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including loan
receivables, trade and bills receivables, other receivables, pledged
and restricted bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents)
which are subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments
are done based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3.
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

3.2 Material accounting policies information - continued 3.2

>3

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets - continued

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 - continued

0] Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument's external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in
the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for
the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor's ability
to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

. an actual or expected significant adverse change in
the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor's ability to meet
its debt obligations.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

3.2 Material accounting policies information - continued

Financial instruments - continued
Financial assets - continued
Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 - continued

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk - continued

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A
debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if (i) it
has a low risk of default, (ii) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and (iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers a
debt instrument to have low credit risk when it has an
internal or external credit rating of “investment grade” as
per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

SKYWORTH GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

>3

EX

= A
=
&=
=

MEBE S FUEERE
BE AR

EHTA-&
B E-E
SMEENMBEE BV BEHREER

F oA

TTRERY S 2 B b IH B &

ﬂ BE-4&

(i)

EERBBEE LT -&
ZuﬂﬂiLn?fE i%ﬁu{j flwl/f\
KRR tﬁﬁtﬂaolﬂ REE
BRREERR S 7T HERIA
REE L BHEZSEIEA
BAEENER AL IELL

wE WL - 1ﬁffi‘5<lﬁﬁi\\$ﬁ%
H BA# #E T 15 & Al e U J
Z’»‘g.ﬁ;ﬁgﬂ,ﬁklﬁﬁﬁ ==
AAQ%}]_LFEEWUJ’/(XIMK[I]E
J:ﬂ' cWEEBTAFEUT
& - Bl EEEERRERIE :
)2 B R B - i 8 RA R
HNEBHEENBITEESH
BEREM RN ERER
ﬁiﬁﬂ’]?ﬂ PR RIERE
BEERNEREERAET
.:.,\’Jfﬁim;&ﬁ’]abj] o ¥ BR
BERERNESR EEBIA
B AN EBEERTARER 15
BRANIF  AEERRBZE
BILEABREMEERR

AEBETEHEZERANEEEE
R EERE LFANRELE
Mt AR BREITER

VATE (R 52 1% 2 B 5014 5 IR 8 1
ZHEREERREERE L

F o



Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

e MR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

3.2 Material accounting policies information - continued

Financial instruments - continued
Financial assets - continued
Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 - continued

(ii)

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event,

. the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or

contractual reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider,

. it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

. the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

3.2

Material accounting policies information - continued

Financial instruments - continued
Financial assets - continued
Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 - continued

(iv)

(v)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
orloss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability- weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights. The
Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model
on financial assets at amortised cost individually for credit
impaired balances or collectively based on provision matrix
for the remaining balances taking into consideration
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. &
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY AN
INFORMATION - continued

3.2 Material accounting policies information - continued 32 EARGHEEER-#Z
Financial instruments - continued THITA-Z
Financial assets - continued THEE-&
Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to SREBERIBBERESVERELER
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 - continued B AEETREN G HMIBEE
BUE - &
(v Measurement and recognition of ECL - continued v FEHRERBAZFAERER-

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

e TS  AEERR
TRIBREE TR

. Internal credit ratings; . NEMEER R

. Size and background of debtors; . BEHBANBRERS =

. Business relationships with the debtors; and . HEBANEBHEER:
&

. Repayment history and/or past-due status. . BRSNS AR,

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

Except for receivables that are measured at FVTOCI, the
Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade and bills receivables,
loan receivables and other receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account. For receivables that are measured at
FVTOCI, the loss allowance is recognised in OCl and
accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve without reducing the
carrying amount of these receivables. Such amount
represents the changes in the FVTOCI reserve in relation to
accumulated loss allowance.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

3.2

Material accounting policies information - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets - continued

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assets that are denominated in
a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period.
Specifically,

. For financial assets measured at amortised cost that are
not part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the “other
gains and losses” line item (note 8) as part of the others;

. For financial assets measured at FVTPL that are not part of
a designated hedging relationship, exchange differences
are recognised in profit or loss in the “other gains and
losses” line item (note 8) as part of the gain from changes
in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL; and

. For equity instruments measured at FVTOCI, exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
in the fair value through other comprehensive income/
revaluation reserve.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing
for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

3.2 Material accounting policies information - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets - continued

Derecognition of financial assets - continued

On derecognition of receivables classified as at FVTOCI, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the FVTOCI
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the
Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOC|, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the FVTOCI
reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to
accumulated profits.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

3.2

Material accounting policies information - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
liability is (i) contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies, (i) held for trading or (iii) it
is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

. it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a financial
guarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging
instrument.

For financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
recognised in OCl, unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability's credit risk in OCl would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value
attributable to a financial liability's credit risk that are recognised
in OCl are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss; instead,
they are transferred to accumulated profits upon derecognition
of the financial liability.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and bills payables, other
payables, bank borrowings and some of other financial liabilities
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

SKYWORTH GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

®&ERBERF A
BEBHEKASIE AR BEFAER

S -

BoRnBEFABG 2 SRBEE
IERKBTRNERBEMGREE
AIF MR A G RARE
i) 5 1 B B i 5 & /IR AR EE
AAABEMERAE ANEAR
NABEFABRZEHMEE -

BEeRBECETZENR/N
REARRER

- RUOTHRE ZTBABR
EHREm T EEAN—
7 BRAKE-HEEIR
TR AR RN ERRN
%

- HATETA(EBREER
BREERBRE P T AN
TTETRRIBRSN) o

REERRANBEFAREZS
mEENS AZEREENEER
RREgHMELNAREEEZS S
BREMEEE AR HEEHEMD
PHBARRZABENEERRE
PrEeegyABEARE LMEE
SR - AERIM - REMEE IR A
ERNETRAENEERRME
ENAREEESHERTEEHND
R MEEKRLERSREA
BEREEZERFTEH -

DU R A B DB B 1
SRE M (BIEENE 508 R
B8 EALREAT R - RITIE R
ETH S BA M) Kk 6 A EEA
A R R ANE & -




Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

3.2

Material accounting policies information - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities - continued

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows
as aresult of interest rate benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows of a financial asset or financial liability to which the
amortised cost measurement applies as a result of interest rate
benchmark reform, the Group applies the practical expedient to
account for these changes by updating the effective interest rate,
such change in effective interest rate normally has no significant
effect on the carrying amount of the relevant financial asset or
financial liability.

A change in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows
is required by interest rate benchmark reform if and only if, both
these conditions are met:

. the change is necessary as a direct consequence of
interest rate benchmark reform; and

. the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is
economically equivalent to the previous basis (i.e. the basis
immediately preceding the change).

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

A derivative is presented as a non-current asset or a non-current
liability if the remaining maturity of the instrument is more than
12 months and it is not due to be realised or settled within 12
months. Other derivatives are presented as current assets or
current liabilities.
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170

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION - continued

3.2

Material accounting policies information - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Derivative financial instruments - continued

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contracts that contain financial
asset hosts within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not separated. The
entire hybrid contract is classified and subsequently measured in
its entirety as either amortised cost or fair value as appropriate.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts that are
not financial assets within the scope of HKFRS 9 are treated as
separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a
derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely related to
those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
measured at FVTPL.

Generally, multiple embedded derivatives in a single instrument
that are separated from the host contracts are treated as a single
compound embedded derivative unless those derivatives relate
to different risk exposures and are readily separable and
independent of each other.
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e MR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Write-down for inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable values. As
at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of the Group's inventories is
RMB9,894 million (2022: RMB8,947 million), of which a significant portion is
related to the Group's smart TV system business. During the year ended
31 December 2023, an expense of RMB61 million (2022: RMB33 million)
was recognised in profit or loss to write down the cost of inventories to
their net realisable values, of which a significant portion is related to the
Group's smart TV systems business.

At the end of each reporting period, management carries out the
assessment of write-down of inventories by comparing the carrying
amounts of inventories with the net realisable values. The net realisable
values are primarily made reference to the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary
to make the sale. Moreover, management also writes down for slow
moving inventories. The identification of slow moving inventories is
based on the inventory ageing and recent or subsequent usages/sales.
The assessment of write-down for inventories requires significant
management judgement in determining estimated selling prices, costs
to completion and costs necessary to make the sale. If the estimates are
inaccurate, write down for inventories may increase or decrease
accordingly.
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172

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY - continued
Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The Group's financial assets at FVTPL that are either unlisted (including
unlisted equity securities and unlisted investment funds) or listed but
with restriction for sale amount to RMB2,424 million (2022: RMB2,077
million) and unlisted equity instruments at FVTOCI amount to RMB1,094
million (2022: RMB989 million).

For listed equity securities with restriction for sale, trading of such
shares on the relevant stock exchanges is prohibited for pre-
determined periods. These shares and other unlisted financial
instruments are measured at fair values with fair value being
determined based on unobserved inputs using valuation techniques. In
estimating the fair value of unlisted equity securities, unlisted
investment funds and listed equity securities with restriction for sale,
the Group engaged independent qualified external valuers to perform
the valuation and worked with the independent qualified external
valuers to establish inputs to the valuation. The fair value of these
unlisted equity instruments and listed equity securities with restriction
for sale was mainly arrived at by using market approach. The valuations
are dependent on certain significant unobservable inputs that involve
judgements, including trading multiples of comparable companies and
discounts for lack of marketability (for unlisted equity instruments) or
discount for prohibition for trading (for listed equity securities with
restriction for sale). Judgement and estimation are required in
establishing the relevant valuation techniques and the relevant inputs
thereof. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could affect
the reported fair values of these instruments. See note 43(c) for further
disclosures.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY - continued
Estimated provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix, through grouping of various debtors
that have similar loss patterns, after considering internal credit ratings,
size and background of debtors, business relationships with the debtors
and repayment history and/or past due status of respective trade
receivables, to calculate ECL for its trade receivables. The estimated loss
rates are based on the historical default rates taking into consideration
forward-looking information that is reasonable, supportable and
available without undue costs. At every reporting date, the estimated
loss rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered. In addition, trade receivables that are
credit-impaired are assessed for ECL individually with reference to the
estimated cash flows to be recovered discounted at the original
effective interest rate of the relevant trade debts.

The aggregate carrying amount of trade receivables at amortised cost
and at FVTOCI is RMB9,698 million, net of allowance for credit losses of
RMB753 million (2022: RMB8,066 million, net of allowance for credit losses
of RMB724 million). An impairment loss of RMB53 million (2022: RMB21
million) was recognised in the profit or loss on trade receivables during
the year ended 31 December 2023.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group's trade receivables are
disclosed in notes 43(b) and 23 respectively.
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5.

174

REVENUE

(i)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers, leases and interest under effective interest

method

For the year ended 31 December 2023

EXRE

0 REFEFEHZWA - #HER

BEBRANREAEZNEDH

BZE2023F128318LLEE

Smart Smart Modern
household systems New services
appliances technology energy business
business business business and others Total
BHAS ARREE
EHREXER RITER  FERER  E£XRHEM ag
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
AREEER ARKEER ARBEn AR¥EER ARKEER
Type of goods/services ER/ SR
Sales of goods and services flote ) HEE MRS (Hitn) 29315 10383 2339 4109 67,203
Internet value-added services of Coocaa system FHARNERELERY 132 - - - 132
Contracts with customers EP&H 30637 10383 233% 4109 68,525
Leases e - 30 - 486 516
Interest under effective nterest method ote i) RERAREHEZHE WEn) - - - 139 139
Subtotal i) 30637 10413 233% 4734 69,180
Less; other business tax W EHEER (45) (22 (56) (26) (149)
Segment revenue NHEEE 3059 10391 3340 4708 69031
Timing of revenue recognition for contract REEFRHZBAERRE
with customers
Apaint n time ZERES 29795 10039 21 3617 66,372
Over time BEEH 82 34 475 m 2153
Total &3t 30637 10383 2339 4109 68,525
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5. REVENUE - continued 5. BXX &
()  Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with 0 REEFEFEHZBA - HER
customers, leases and interest under effective interest

BEBRANREAEZNE DR

method - continued -
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (restated, see note 6) BZw2F12A31BLELEE (BE
5l > RHfzEe)
Smart Smart Modern
household systems New services
appliances technology energy business
busingss busingss business and others
BRREE
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB mil
AREBEL ARERET AREBER AREAER
Type of goods/services ER/ kSR
Sales of goods and services flote () EECRREE (W) 22 11904 11944 1548 51623
Internet value-added services of Coocaa system FHARNERELERY 1365 - 1365
Contracts with customers REAH 759 11,904 11,94 1548 52988
Leases i - 51 i) 5%
Interestundereffctive nterest method e ) BERNELE L NE Witn) - - 8 63
Subtotal /J\EJF 21592 11955 11944 2099 53590
Less; other business tax W EMEER 1] 22 ] 19 [o9)
Segment revenue HHERE 27544 1193 11,934 2080 53401
Timing of revenue recognition for contract REFFANZBABARS
with customers
Apoint n time EEEHES %725 11,904 11,797 121 51637
Over time RERR 867 - 147 37 1351
Total Bt 2759 11904 11944 1548 52988
Notes: fiat
i Manufacture and sales of goods mainly include manufacture and sales of i @;ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁﬁ ' IE’E%@%&%’E
smart TV systems, home access systems (mainly digital set-top boxes), DERBERM RERARM(EER
smart white appliances, intelligent manufacturing (mainly LCD modules), %Z%%TEE)* B ?? AREE®R & EE
lighting products, automotive electronic systems, security system and other B (B RRMIRM) - WAAEmM A
electronic products, sales of properties, photovoltaic products and other BETER RHABRAMETE
products. o HEME  ARERREMER -
i Amount represents interest income from loan receivables under group i @%E?E:XE %HQE?K\ZHEW)\;E%A
entities in which the loan financing is a principal activity. NEFBEERTEXB 2 EEER -
RIEEBAERAT 2023F 3R 175
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5. REVENUE - continued

(ii)

176

Revenue recognition policies and performance
obligations for contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer. A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially the
same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one or more of the
criteria under HKFRS 15 is met. Otherwise, revenue is recognised
at a point in time when the customer obtains control of the
distinct good or service. The progress towards complete
satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured based on
output method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of
direct measurements of the value of the goods or services
transferred to the customer to date relative to the remaining
goods or services promised under the contract, that best depict
the Group's performance in transferring control of goods or
services.

For contracts that contain variable consideration (i.e. sales rebate),
the Group estimates the amount of consideration to which it will
be entitled using either (a) the expected value method or (b) the
most likely amount, depending on which method better predicts
the amount of consideration to which the Group will be entitled.
At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates the
estimated transaction price to represent faithfully the
circumstances present at the end of the reporting period and the
changes in circumstances during the reporting period.

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to
a customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its
promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified
goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange
for those goods or services to be provided by the other party (i.e.
the Group is an agent).
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5. REVENUE - continued

(ii)

Revenue recognition policies and performance
obligations for contracts with customers - continued

Manufacture and sales of goods

The Group manufactures and sells smart TV systems, home
access systems (mainly digital set-top boxes), smart white
appliances, intelligent manufacturing (mainly LCD modules),
lighting products, automotive electronic systems, security system
and other electronic products and sells photovoltaic products
and other products to the wholesale customers or directly to
retail customers either through its own retail outlets and through
internet sales.

For sales to the wholesale customers, revenue is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being when the goods have
been shipped to the customer’s specific location (delivery).
Following delivery, the customers has full discretion over the
manner of distribution and price to sell the goods, has the
primary responsibility when on selling the goods and bears the
risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods.

For sales to retail customers through the Group's own retail
outlets, revenue is recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being at the point the customer purchases the goods
at the retail outlets. Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately at the point the customer purchases the goods.

For sales to retail customers through internet sales, revenue is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred to the
customer, being at the point the goods are delivered to the
customer. Delivery occurs when the goods have been shipped to
the customer's specific location. When the customer initially
purchases the goods online, the transaction price received by the
Group is recognised as a contract liability until the goods have
been delivered to the customer.

Sales to customers are either due for payment on delivery or with
credit term of normally no more than 270 days.
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5.

178

REVENUE - continued

(ii)

Revenue recognition policies and performance
obligations for contracts with customers - continued

Manufacture and sales of goods - continued

The amount of consideration the Group receives and revenue the
Group recognises vary with changes in sales rebates the Group
offers to the customers. The Group estimates the sales rebates
based on analysis of historical experience, and adjusts for the
most likely amount of consideration to be received. Revenue from
these sales is recognised based on the price specified in the
contract, net of the estimated rebate which is estimated based on
experience. Revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur. Provision
for rebates (included in other payables) are recognised for
expected rebates to customers in relation to sales made at the
end of the reporting period.

Under the Group's standard contract terms, customers have a
right to exchange defective products within specified periods. The
Group uses its accumulated historical experience to estimate the
number of exchange on a portfolio level using the expected value
method. Revenue is recognised for sales which are considered
highly probable that a significant reversal in the cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur. A contract liability is
recognised for sales in which revenue has yet been recognised.
The directors consider that there will be no significant reversal of
revenue as of the end of the reporting period for exchange of
products.

Sales-related warranties associated with certain products that
cannot be purchased separately and serve as an assurance that
the products sold comply with agreed-upon specifications.
Accordingly, the Group accounts for warranties in accordance
with HKAS 37.
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5. REVENUE - continued

(ii)

Revenue recognition policies and performance
obligations for contracts with customers - continued

Internet value-added services of Coocaa system

Revenue from provision of content services is either recognised
based on the services transferred to date relative to the
remaining services promised under the contract or recognised
over the subscription period/contract period when the services
are provided through the online platform. The customers are
required to pay upfront for the subscription fees. The
subscription/contract periods are generally less than one year.

The Group also provides advertising services to both advertising
agencies and clients on the Coocaa system. Revenue from
provision of advertising services is recognised at a point in time
when the advertisement is displayed in the Coocaa system.

Sales of properties

For contracts entered into with customers on sales of properties,
the relevant properties specified in the contracts are based on
customers' specifications with no alternative use. Taking into
consideration of the relevant contract terms, the legal
environment and relevant legal precedent, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group does not have an enforceable
right to payment prior to transfer of the relevant properties to
customers. Revenue from sales of properties is therefore
recognised at a point in time when the completed property is
transferred to customer, being at the point that the customer
obtains the control of the completed property and the Group has
present right to payment and collection of the consideration is
probable.

The Group receives not less than 20% of the contract value as
deposits from customers for the sales of properties when they
sign the sale and purchase agreements and the remaining of the
contract value is paid before the completion of the sales of the
properties. The deposits and advance payment schemes result in
contract liabilities being recognised until the customers obtain
control of the properties.

LRE -2

RIEEEBRAF

BEFEHNZBABABRERE
WERE-4#

B B R A 1Y B AT S (B AR 5
REATRBEENRAIIRIEL
SRIEEE RS QAN R R IRY
BEAOREEIARA REBRBE
2 e 1R 4R 75 BF - B ZE 7T B AP
M,/ &R HBERBAN - FFAX
ETBI B TR K - 518, & 5 8
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ZWAEEERBER RAERZ R
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5.

180

REVENUE - continued

(ii)

(iii)

Revenue recognition policies and performance
obligations for contracts with customers - continued

Sales of properties - continued

The Group considers the advance payment scheme does not
contain significant financing component. For contracts where the
period between payment and transfer of the associated
properties is less than one year, the Group applies the practical
expedient of not adjusting the transaction price for any
significant financing component.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within one
year.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with customers

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) of sales of
properties to within one year and more than one year as at 31
December 2023 amounts to RMB250 million and RMB42 million
respectively (2022: RMB2,436 million and RMB2 million
respectively).

For other types of revenue, the expected timing of recognising
revenue on transaction price related to the performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December
2023 and 2022 are for periods of one year or less. As permitted
under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these
unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is organised into operating business units according to the
nature of the goods sold or services provided. The Group determines its
operating segments based on these business units by reference to the
goods sold or services provided, for the purpose of reporting to the
chief operating decision maker (“CODM") (i.e. the executive directors of
the Company). Individual operating segments for which discrete
financial information is available are identified by the CODM and are
operated by their respective management teams. These individual
operating segments are aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group.

In the current year, the Group reorganised its internal reporting
structure, which resulted in changes to the composition of its reportable
segments. The "Multimedia Business” segment and the “Smart
Appliances Business” segment in the previous reporting structure are
combined and presented as the "Smart Household Appliances Business”
segment to better reflect the relevant businesses of the Group,
assessments of performance across different operating units and
allocations of resources thereto. Prior year segment disclosures are

AEBIREERHEENERERRE 2 ME
DR EEXBEM - Bt AEERE
EBEBEMATHE 2 &Mk TR 2 lRER
TEHEEDE  URMEELEAREE (B
ARBZHTES) 2R -RBHBYBB
ERMENKED MO EIRLERKEE
TXAHEZENEREKKEE - ZF@5
REDHMEBBERAEERI 2RO

RAFE  AEBSHAERNIRERE
Y HRED MOAK LR EE - EATR
ERETHNIZREXRGIDHBRIELE
BEBIDMEHREREREXT]HE
NEERRAEBEWARER B TRK
BEUNEAFEREERIE - £FK
DEHBRBECENREARFENZS —5 -

restated to conform with the current year presentation.

Specifically, the Group's reportable segments under HKFRS 8 Operating

Segments in the current year are as follows:

BEEME RAFE AEBRERSY
MG EBFERE BN IHET 22D
AU

manufacture and sale of smart TV systems, smart white appliances and
other smart appliances such as smart air conditioners, smart refrigerators,
smart washing machines, smart kitchen appliances in the PRC and overseas
markets, intelligent manufacturing, provision and sales of internet value-
added services of Coocaa system in the PRC, among others

MEREITISZERBERRS  BHOREEMLAMBERE
22 (PIINE R - BeekE DA RE  BRBEEERSE) 2
UERHE  TEZERRE  ARIRHREERARSMN E B

manufacture and sale of home access systems, intelligent manufacturing,
automotive electronic systems, lighting products, security system and other

RERAZRS BRE REETER RAER THELS
REMETEMZBERHE

1. Smart Household Appliances Business
B ERES
2. Smart Systems Technology Business
B RS RMER
electronic products
g}, New Energy Business

AL IR %15

sale and installation of distributed photovoltaic power stations in the
customer-side retail sector in the PRC market for residential and commercial
uses
ERETSNEPHTEMPIHE R LK MA S REEL - 1E
EFEMBEASE
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SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Each of the operating segments under smart household appliances,
smart systems technology and new energy businesses include
operations of manufacturing and/or sales of various products under the
respective businesses. Each of these operations is considered as a
separate operating segment by the CODM. For the purpose of segment
reporting, these individual operating segments have been aggregated
into reportable segments as set out above in order to present a more
systematic and structured segment information. To give details of each
of the operating segments, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, would result in particulars of excessive length.

In addition to the above operating and reportable segments, the Group
has other operating segments, which mainly include sales of properties,
loan financing, leasing of properties and trading of other products,
among others. These operating segments individually do not meet any
of the quantitative thresholds for determining reportable segments in
both current and prior year. Accordingly, these operating segments are
grouped as "Modern Services Business and Others".

The CODM makes decisions according to operating results of each
segment. No analysis of segment asset and segment liability is
presented as the CODM no longer reviews such information for the
purposes of resources allocation and performance assessment.
Therefore, only segment revenue and segment results are presented.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 6. TEER-&
Segment revenue and results PHEEBERER
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and gross profit by REEEXEBEREFIEZERD BT :

reportable segments:

Smart Smart Modern

household systems New Total services

appliances technology energy reportable business
business business business segments and others Eliminations Total

BRAf RREHR
BRZRRE Rz WERXE 2ROTER  XERHR i A%
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
ARMEER ARMAER ARWAER ARWEEn ARWEER ARWEER ARMEER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BZunEnRANRLEE
Revenue A
Seqment revenue from external customers HNFHBRA 30592 10391 23340 64323 4708 o 69031
Inter-seqment revenue REHBHA 79 27 1 101 m (1843) -
Total segrment revenue AHNALE 3138 10658 23354 65,394 5480 (1,883 69031
Restlts E+
Segment resuits HH%E 478 511 1181 2170 873 - 3083
Interest income FEMA %9
Other gains and losses AhaREE (64
Unallocated corporate income/expenses FOELENA/ER (391)
Finance costs BERA (522
Share ofresuits of associates PEBELARRELEIEE

andjoint ventures @
Consalidated profit before taxation TEERZA R

of the Group 233
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 6. DEER-&

184

Segment revenue and results - continued

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (restated)

BZanEnpA3BLEE (BEY)

Smart
household
appliances

business

&
il

RMB milion

Smart
systems
technology
business

b
RMB million

ARH

PHERBERFE-#

Modern
New Total services
energy reportable business

business segments and others Eliminations

iR
RMB million
/‘\.Em E| = -F[

RMB milion RMB million
ARE ARBEE

RMB million

Total

ag
RMB millon
ARERET

Revene BA
Segment revenue from external customers HHAFBIA 254 1193 11,934 51411 2080 - 53401
Inter-segment revene RELELON 502 9 2 621 1085 (1,708 -
Total segrment revenue AHNALE 28046 12027 11,959 52032 3165 (1,706 53401
Results E+
Segment reslits PHEE i) m 41 1657 586 - 23
Interest income ELON 20
Other gains and losses EhERER 4
Unallocated corporate incomelexpenses RORLENA/ER B304
Finance costs BERA 3
Share ofresults of associates MBEAIRAELE R

and joint ventures 8
Consolidated profit before taxation TEERAGR T

of the 6roup 1819

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

WNEBDEBHERRITHERE -

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the EWRH Bz ST EREMFEIFMM 2 AE
Group's accounting policies described in note 3. EEstHE - -
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Other segment information
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6. DEER-#
HinpHER

Smart Smart Modern
household systems Total services
appliances technology New energy reportable business
business business business segments and others Total
gﬁb%n)b IE&EE’T%%
BHFEER RS WERER  2RAMEE R R g
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
AEEEER  AR¥EEn  ARMEER ARMEER  AREEER  AR¥EEn
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BEunEnpBnALEE
Included in measure of segment results BRATHENHEERN
Depreciation of property, piant and equipment nE BEREENE 164 7] 2 258 il m
Depreciation ofright-of-use assets FREAENE Y 10 4 il bl 62
Depreciation of investment properties REMENE - - 5 5 69 £}
Impairment loss recogised freversec) BER(BE) REERTHER
inrespect oftrade receivables at BELABEHAERZENAL
amortsed cost and at FVTOC] RUEHHEZHERE 3% ] R £2 ] 53
Impairment loss reversed in respect EERERESRERE
of loan receivables - - - - @ @
Impairment loss recognised freversec) BEARE) EhefiE
inrespect of other financial assets LRBEER ] 1 4 ] 1 ]
Write-down of inventories and stock of properties 75 RAVEF Bl (56) 66 50 0 15 75
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (restated) 2202512831 AL EE (RE7)
Included in measure of segment results; BRaTHENHFER:
Amortisation o intangible assets EVEERY 2 - - 2 = 2
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment nE - BEREENE 1 15 i 308 it} 619
Depreciation o right-of-use assets FRELENE 2 1 3 16 1 a7
Depreciation of investment properties ﬁ é%%ﬁ% - - = = 87 §7
Impairment loss recognised reversec) ER(BE) REHRATER
inrespect oftrade receivables at /Rﬁ BEGALBLZENAZ
amortised cost and at FUTOC RUEAFEZ HEER 3 9 - 6 15 il
Impairment loss reversed n respect of BADRURE HEER
bills receivables - 2 S 2 S %
Impairment loss reversed in respect of BADRREZZHESS
loan receivables = = = = 201 201
Impairment loss recognised reversec) B (R EpepEE
inrespect ofother financial assets Z,ﬁi EE& 1\ 8 ] - i 3 2
Write-down of inventories FERA - £l - £l ] B
RIEEBEERAR 2023F 5] 185
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186

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued
Geographical information

The Group's operations are located in the Mainland China, Asia (other
than the Mainland China), Europe, Americas, Africa and other regions.

For segments other than sales of properties included in modern services
business and others, the Group's geographical analysis of revenue from
external customers is determined based on the location of customers.
For sales of properties included in modern services business and others,
the Group's revenue from external customers is determined based on
the location of assets. Information about its non-current assets by
physical location of the assets is also detailed below.

Revenue from

i & & B

ARG B 2 E AL BIRRE - SR (F
REERRIN) ~ BUM ~ T - SEMRE IR

REEEIRARBEXESE REM] AN
MEHEIZDEME - AEERER
JE R 4t [ B 0 SN R UL A SR D AT ©
REEEIRARBERESE REM] AN
MEHEMS » AREOHINEFHEAR
REBEEMEWESD - FRBEERE
EHEMES NN EMFR T

Non-current assets

external customers (Note (i)
ERBEE
ESEIN—E SN (K&E )
2023 2022 2023 2022
2023 & 2022 5 2023 5 2022
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
ARBEERT AREBST AR¥®EERT AREBSEL
Mainland China el N 53,677 36,564 15,070 12,620
Asia (other than the an i (A B oK B
Mainland China (Note (i)~ BR4N) (Bt a2 (i) 8,770 9,868 183 529
Europe M 2,657 2,048 23 29
Americas EM 2,073 1,885 1 2
Africa e 1,691 1,585 41 -
Other regions H b i &= 163 1,541 = 52
69,031 53,491 15,318 13232
Notes: Btat -

(i) Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred tax assets.

(i) Asia (other than the Mainland China) mainly includes Hong Kong, Vietnam, Indonesia
and India, each of which individually contributed less than 10% of total revenue.

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2023, one (2022: one) customer has
accounted for over 10% of the Group's total revenue amounting to
RMB20,796 million (2022: RMB11,926 million).
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OTHER INCOME 7. HfU A

2023 2022
2023 FF 2022 5

RMB million RMB million
ARBEERT | AREBET

Government grants (note 30) B85 (K52 30)
— related to assets —~BEEHEH 62 76
— related to expense items - GREE 185 376
247 452
Interest income from FBU AR S
— bank deposits —R1TFER 249 245
— loan receivables - BRE K 6 8
— others - Hi 4 7
259 260
Value-added-tax ("VAT") refund BETRE 247 243
Others EAh 256 246
1,009 1,201
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. Hk=mKkEE

2023 2022
2023 2022 £

RMB million RMB million
ARBEERT | AREAETT

Included in (I0ss) gains are: (BB = E:
(Loss) gain from changes in fair value of financial BARBEFAB®RL
assets at FVTPL TREECAAEEEY
2 (E518) Was (76) 202
Changes in fair value of derivative financial MESBRTIAARBEES
instruments
— loss on derivative component —AERESRTET AL D
of convertible bonds 2 BB - (96)
— loss from changes in fair value of other -HEMiTESmIT A
derivative financial instruments ARnBEESHEE (127) 47)
Impairment loss (recognised) reversed, net, AT EIE (HR) BE 2
in respect of BEESEFEE
— trade receivables - EWE S FIE (53) (21)
— bills receivables - ERERE - 2
— loan receivables - ERE R 2 20
— other financial assets - HEthSREE 3 2)
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9. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on:
— bank borrowings
— convertible bonds
— corporate bonds
— others

9. EEKA
2023 2022
2023 FF 2022 5
RMB million RMB million
AREBERT  AREBHEL

UTEIBZHE

—IRITER 495 347
— AJEHBE A = 22
- RNEMEFH = 40
—Efb 27 23

522 432

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

10. FIB8HixxH

2023 2022
2023 FF 2022 4F
RMB million RMB million
ARBEERT | AREBET

Tax charge (credit): HIiEm (Fe) -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") FEEMEH 568 498
PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT") AR I (E A 97 5
PRC withholding tax FEIFEINR 31 89
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEFGEH 3 6
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions HMEERREENTIE 28 6
Deferred taxation JRAERTIE (170) (192)
557 412

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable
profits.

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT (the “EIT Law") and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for
the year. For those PRC subsidiaries approved as High and New
Technology Enterprise by the relevant government authorities, they are
subject to a preferential rate of 15%.

PRC LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties
less deductible expenditures including cost of land use right and all
property development expenditures.
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE - continued

According to a joint circular of Ministry of Finance and State
Administration of Taxation, Cai Shui [2008] No. 1, dividend distributed to
foreign investors out of the profits generated since 1 January 2008 by
the PRC entity shall be subject to EIT pursuant to Articles 3 and 27 of the
EIT Law of the PRC and Article 91 of the Implementation Rules of EIT Law
of the PRC. In March 2023, a new notice with the name of Cai Shui [2023]
No. 7 "Notice on Further Improvements to Policies for Weighted Pre-tax
Deduction of Research and Development Expenses” was released,
certain PRC subsidiaries are entitled to an additional 100% (2022: 100%)
tax deduction on eligible research costs incurred by them for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing
in the relevant jurisdictions.

The Group has applied the temporary exception issued by the HKICPA in
July 2023 from the accounting requirements for deferred taxes in HKAS
12. Accordingly, the Group neither recognises nor discloses information
about deferred tax assets and liabilities related to Pillar Two income
taxes.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the governments of certain
jurisdictions where the group entities are incorporated enacted the
Pillar Two income taxes legislation effective from 1 January 2024. Under
the legislation, the Group will be required to pay, in certain jurisdictions,
top-up tax on profits of the relevant subsidiaries that are taxed at an
effective tax rate of less than 15%.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s annual profits arising from these
jurisdictions mentioned above that are currently taxed lower than 15%
and might be subject to Pillar Two income taxes is insignificant.
However, this information is based on the profits and tax expense
determined as part of the preparation of the Group's consolidated
financial statements without considering adjustments that would have
been required applying the legislation. Because of the specific
adjustments envisaged in the Pillar Two legislation which may give rise
to different effective tax rates compared to those calculated based on
accounting profit, the actual impact that the Pillar Two income taxes
legislation would have had on the Group's results if it had been in effect
for the year ended 31 December 2023 may have been significantly
different.

The Group is continuing to assess the impact of the Pillar Two income
taxes legislation on its future financial performance.

10.

FREH -2

RIR AR - BB 48 BBk & M B
[2008]1 5% AN > BH20084F1 A1 HRAB AT
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F AR RS BUEE KD
LM ERBH c R2023F3 4 -
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10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE - continued

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled from the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as follows:

10. TSRt -#

AERZAGEHRLEEABREEME
ERAR Z BB A S M SRR T

2023 2022
2023 2022 4F
RMB million RMB million
ARBEERT | AREBET
Profit before taxation [ %5 B a 2,323 1,819
Tax at applicable tax rate at 25% (Note) BiEA MR %t E 2 FiIE
(Kr&t) 581 455
Tax effect of expenses not deductible FTEBIER TR N
for tax purpose ZBIRE 60 92
Tax effect of income not taxable FFEBIERARARBTWA
for tax purpose ZBIAR 2 (29) (29)
Tax effect of additional tax deduction of Ffr EE A= B 2% L% FFBINE B
research costs incurred ZBIER 2 (404) (443)
Tax effect of tax losses and deductible temporary RIERTIEEE LA R
difference not recognised el =R o ML E 403 347
Utilisation of tax losses previously not FRNRERER 2 RIBEE
recognised (24) (28)
Tax effect of share of results of associates DiEEERT REERE
and joint ventures XEHEYE 1 2)
PRC LAT B IR (E 97 5
Tax effect of PRC LAT PR HIRER AT E (24) (]
PRC withholding tax PR TER R 31 89
Effect of different tax rates applicable to subsidiaries & R &6 R/ BINES 2 2
operating in Hong Kong and overseas MBARI TR R & @ 2)
Tax effect of income tax at concessionary rate REEHEFTENMER 2
MIATE (114) (57)
Others Hb (19) (14)
Income tax expense for the year REFREHI L 557 412

Note: MiaF: BERARERAFEHLECEMESRERD
¥AMBREERKHET ZRTPBEBR X

25% °

The applicable tax rate is with reference to the prevailing PRC tax rate of 25% under
the EIT Law and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law for the year.
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11.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived at after

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

11. NEERF

2023
2023 F

RMB million
AREBER

AR B M E HER (REA) A

2022
2022 5F

RMB million
AREEHEET

charging (crediting): THEIBBER:
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense WRAZH 2 IFEXAEE
including write-down of inventories of FEMRAREaIBET
RMB61 million (2022: RMB33 million) (20225 : AREE3EE L) 57,014 44,957
Cost of stock of properties recognised as an expense  HE 3.4 Sx H 2 ¥ 5 17 G R
including write-down of stock of properties of BEVEFEMRARE
RMB14 million (2022: nil) 14 B 8T (2022 F - 4E) 2,19 112
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZTE 136 133
Less: capitalised as cost of inventories W B BT ERRA (22) (1)
capitalised as cost of construction in progress BEREBERTIEKAR (52) (85)
62 47
Depreciation of investment properties HWEMEZITE 69 87
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M- HERRBZTE 768 860
Less: capitalised as cost of inventories B BN BT EKAE (296) (241)
472 619
Amortisation of intangible assets EREEEH = 2
Staff costs: BT
— Directors’ and chief executive's emoluments -EERFETHAER
(note 12) & (MtaF12) 131 %6
— Related staff costs for research and — W EE SRR A B R
development activities 1,253 1,196
— Other staffs salaries, bonus, retirement -BEMBTZITE  #e -
benefits and others R K Aty 3,912 3577
5,296 4,869
Less: capitalised as o B
— Cost of inventories —FEKRAK (1,356) (1,137)
— Stock of properties -MERFE (16) (12)
— Property, plant and equipment -ME - BB MK (20) (5)
3,904 3,715
Auditors' remunerations BRI B & 9 9
Provision for warranty (note 28) RIEEEAE (Mt 28) 283 272
Rental income from leases less related outgoings AR S W AR AE
of RMB176 million (2022: RMB215 million) A AR®176 BB T
(20225 : AR
2158 T) (340) (328)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 HIF F /&

12. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS 12 EERFETHAEMS
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET ARET T
Directors' fees =Rk 4,285 4293
Other emoluments: HEM e :
Basic salaries and allowances HAH 4 MEBRL 13,092 14,222
performance related incentive payments (Note) BB E 2 588 (M) 44,870 46,463
Retirement benefits scheme contributions R ET 8 2 R 431 373
Share-based payments % 7 B FE 45 1 68,415 30,770
131,093 96,121
Note:  The performance related incentive payments are determined based on the results of MaF : REWGHEZ HBRRIEAEE 28R
the Group and/or the performance of the directors. EERBERETE -
There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief executive MMEEE M BEFEHEFEESS T
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments for any of the current or ETBABREXRERECANHSHL
prior year. HE -
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors and the chief RAFIENKENSEEREIZTHAE
executive of the Company are set out below: eI W

Basic Retirement Performance
salaries benefits related Share-
Directors' and scheme incentive based
fees allowances contributions payments payments Total

EfXFe BHE EER Kt
EZfs REE  HEzfR GEZER ERRf &zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARMTRT  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARETR  AR%TR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BEunF1RANALEE
Executive directors (ote (i} ROER (M) -
LinJin HE 620 253 % 14,209 15920 3383
LiuTangzhi Eletse 620 3,048 109 3,184 - 6,961
Shi Chi (ote fi) 1658 (B2 ) 620 2725 114 19,108 50653 73220
Lin Wei Ping WEE 500 2543 9% 3,184 - 6,321
Lam Shing Choi, Eric PR Bt 500 2240 16 5,185 1882 9783
2,860 13092 01 44870 68,415 129,668
Independent non-executive directors ote i B I {TE B (ki) -
LiWeibin TER 475 - - - - 475
Cheong Ying Chew, Henry REH 475 - - - - 475
Hung Ka Hai, Clement HRE 475 s S = 5 475
1425 - - - - 1,425
Total directors' emoluments EZieaE 4285 13092 031 44870 68,415 131,093
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EMOLUMENTS - 12. EERFETHRAEME =

continued

Basic Retirement Performance
salaries benefits related
Directors' and scheme incentive
fees allowances payments
55 JEE LA B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT T ARETT
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZunFnAnALEE
Executive directors fUote () BOTES (W) -
LinJin %) 622 249 62 11303 - 14479
LiuTangzhi 2% 622 3056 109 2753 - 6540
Shi Chi fuote (i) Hest (At ) 3% 1913 CE 18948 30770 52122
Lin Wei Ping T 502 2552 9% 3493 - 6641
Lam Shing Choi, Erc MR 502 1770 15 1,789 - 4076
Lai Weide fote i) BEE (Witw) 268 2439 - 8177 - 10904
2934 14222 373 46,463 30770 94,762
Independent non-executive directors Mote il B FFHITEE (Kt i) -
Li Weibin FEW 453 - - - - 453
Cheong Ying Chew, Henry RAH 453 - - - - 453
Hung Ka Hai, Clement HEE 453 - - - - 453
1359 - - - = 1359
Total directors' emoluments ExfienE 4293 14222 n 46463 30770 9,121
Notes: Kt
(i The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services in (i NERIZHTEESME HIEEREERER
connection with the management of the Group. EEIREARTE T UCH 2 B & ©
(il Shi Chi is the Chief Executive Officer of the Group and his emoluments disclosed (il M AREBEITHEH  ERIBEEFEIHe
above include those for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive Officer and BERREARARARITREH RAITESRME
executive director of the Company. PR %5 FT U ER 2 B & o
(i) The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their (i) AE2ANZBIRNTESTHE DIREIERAE
services as directors of the Company. NEEEREREMBKER S -
(iv) Lai Weide retired as an executive director of the Company on 7 July 2022. (iv) BIEERR202F7 A7 ARERNRBRITES
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 HIF F /&

13. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 13. EEME
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included AEEBARFEESMEMEES BRFEA
four existing directors (2022: two existing directors and one retired RAEE = (2022 ¢ MBEEERIMAR
director), details of whose emoluments are set out in note 12 above. FESE) - %@H LB LB
Details of the emoluments of the remaining highest paid employee who R-#HTIHEEMEZREE GEARRRE
is neither an existing director nor chief executive of the Company are as EFNERTHRAR) 2MEFFIBY RN
follows: N
2023 £
RMB million RMB millio_n
ARBEER | AREKBETT
Basic salaries, allowances and benefitsinkind ~ E A ¥ %  ZBE R EY A 1 3
Performance related incentive payments (Note) %48 305+ & 2 528 (K 2F) 6 15
Share-based payments A& 1D B 45 1~ 1 1
8 19
Note:  The performance related incentive payments are determined based on the results of Kt ?;zi BB RERBBEAEE ZEER X
the Group and/or the performance of the individual. AR AL+ 2 RIBREE °
The number of the highest paid employee who is not a director of the ARaEEENERaMEEEFNTUT
Company whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as FNEEABLT
follows:
2023 2022
2023 FF 2022 4F
No. of employee No. of employee
EEAE EE A
HK$8,500,001 to HK$9,000,000 75 8,500,001 7L = 7 #5 9,000,000 7T 1 -
HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000 7 % 10,000,001 7T = /8 # 10,500,000 7T - 1
HKS$11,500,001 to HK$12,000,000 B 11,500,001 7T £ /8 e 12,000,000 7T - 1
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors or the five RWEFER - $$§§ﬂﬁﬂ%§$§2@ﬂ
highest paid individuals (including directors and employee) as an TREISMAL (BREFLES) XN
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for B ARSI H B EEMBARE - %
loss of office for both years. ERHEEERMEESR -
14. DIVIDEND 14. BRE
2023 2022
2023 FF 2022 F
RMB million RMB million
ARBEERT | AREEETT
Dividend recognised as distribution REEBRDIKZKRE :
during the year: o
2023 interim dividend — 3 HK cents 2023 F R HARR B — = RS 341l
(2022; 3 HK cents) per share (2022 4F : B 3L) 65 69
2022 final dividend — nil (2022: 2021 final 2022 % R HAB B — & (2022 FF : 2021
dividend — 23 HK cents) per share FRARE - FRABE 2310) - 497
65 566
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final cash dividend in RIFEBRRE - A 7?%@%9&%@:
respect of the year ended 31 December 2023 of 5 HK cents per ordinary 202312 A 31 H Jtif_z?ﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬁx 85
share, in an aggregate amount of approximately RMB108 million, has been Jﬂg%@ﬂﬁ% Mol AR AR 18 E &
proposed by the directors of the Company and is subject to approval by TC - WRBRAR TR BN G AR R
the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting. BAERg EHbE -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

Earnings ZF|
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the

Company for the purpose of basic and diluted

15. BREF

ZAW/N 7Hﬂ%%ﬁ/\f‘f£2tﬂx%$&%7§
BNTIRIBATERFE

2023
2023 F

2022

2022 5F

RMB million
AREEHEET

RMB million
AREBER

AR EESRERNNEE
Bz RABIRERAA

earnings per share JE(RAREE 5 7 1,069 827
2023 2022
2023 FF 2022 F
Number of shares B4 EE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for ARETEERERARNZ
the purpose of basic earnings per share T imAR i B 2,477,189,606 2,586,593,994
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares in respect ZFA A2 RIT(EREAR 1
of outstanding share options of the Company EEBEL R 343,922 2,056,943
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for ARETESREERT
the purpose of diluted earnings per share 2B A N 19 2,477,533,528 2,588,650,937

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not assume the
exercise of certain of the Company's outstanding share options as the
exercise prices are higher than the average market price per share for
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. The computation of
diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2022 does
not assume the conversion of convertible bonds of Skyworth Digital Co,,
Ltd. (“Skywaorth Digital"), an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company established in the PRC whose shares are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, as the conversion of convertible bonds would
result in an increase in earnings per share of the Company for year
ended 31 December 2022.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares shown above has
been adjusted for the repurchase of shares.

HE2023F K2022%F12 A3 BIEFE @ &+
EERBERASTERITEARRAS
FEaRTEZEBRE  RAATEERE
RFHEMISERES - #iZ2 2022612 A31H
IEFE  fEESREERMN ST ERRE

REIBHEFTRMDERAR ([BIEST]) (K
AEIEFBR 2B EWB AR
HEBRMDRFINFEHFZ S L) Al i
% FRAAEMRAIERESBERARNT
HZE2022F12 AN B ILFE 2 BREF
hne

ERATEBRNELSEE SRER K S
TR R
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 HIF F /&

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

196

16. Y% BERRE

Furniture,
Leasehold equipment,
land and Construction Plant and motor vehicles
buildings in progress machinery and others Total
HELT#H BE RE-
REF ERIR BERKE ERIARHM Mt
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
AR¥EER AREEER AREEER AREBEER AREEER
cosT A
At1January 2022 R02F1A1H 5071 1739 2,937 1,403 11,150
Additions RE 399 1,402 271 166 2238
Reclassification BEFDE 995 (1,002 1 6 -
Transfer to investment properties ~ EEZ R B W% (18) 6) - - (24)
Disposals & (149) - 201) (76) (426)
Exchange realignment R ERHE 12 - - 2 14
At 31 December 2022 Ra22E12A318 6310 2133 3,008 1501 12,952
Additions RE 424 1,443 297 376 2,540
Reclassification Ex k] 1,020 (1,093) 58 15 =
Transfer to investment properties ~ EREREME 5) - - - )
Disposals HE (92) - (208) (54) (354)
Exchange realignment R EHHE (23) - (29 59 17
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12 A31H 7,634 2,483 3,136 1,897 15,150
DEPRECIATION &
At1 January 2022 RarE1ALR 1,900 - 1,667 964 4531
Provided for the year AEEEE 427 - 274 159 860
Transfer to investment properties ~ BEE R B FE (14) - - - (14)
Eliminated on disposals HE s (86) - (178) (65) (329
Exchange realignment BENAE 7 - - 9 16
At 31 December 2022 Ra22F12A31A 2,234 - 1,763 1,067 5,064
Provided for the year KEERME 316 - 293 159 768
Transfer to investment properties ~ EEE R B @ - - - @
Disposals & (64) - (186) (42) (292)
Exchange realignment R EFAE 1 - 6] 34 3
At 31 December 2023 R2023%F12 A31H 2,495 - 1,861 1218 5574
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2023 R2023%F12 A31H 5139 2,483 1,275 679 9,576
At 31 December 2022 R2022F12 A31H 4076 2133 1,245 434 7,888
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - continued

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the

following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings

HE LT RETF

Plant and machinery

T B5 Kt 25

Furniture, equipment, motor vehicles and others
RIE - REB EWIAREM

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

16.

W% BERRE- =

NEM%E BELRRERE (RERIR
S TESFRT I RUBERETE -

Over the shorter of the terms of the leases or 20 to 50 years

MEMRF20E50F AREE RE)

10% to 50%
10% % 50%
20% to 50%
20% 2 50%

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group leases
various offices, warehouses and retail stores for its operations. Lease
contracts for leased properties are entered into for fixed term of 1 to 15
years, and majority of the contracts have no extension or termination
option. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a
wide range of different terms and conditions. In determining the lease
term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the period for which

the contract is enforceable.

As at 31 December 2023

R2023F12 A31 H

17.

Leasehold
lands

HE+H

RMB million
AREBER

EHEEE

HE2023F K022 12 A3 BIEFE * K
EEHEZENRIE EERTEREEN
MIEERLE  HAMERSEA WA
WMETHRAI1EISFE  AZHAHTA
BEERRKIEHR - HE R ER EE
- BRESZBETRAEREEE - R
EE T T R B N AT S B HA PR B - AR
EEIRAAHNTE LTS LR85 H
TTHIHEARS -

Leased
properties

H AR 3

RMB million
AR¥BEETRT

Total

et

RMB million
ARBBEETR

Carrying amount BREE 2,589 139 2,728
As at 31 December 2022 R2022F12 A31 H
Carrying amount BREE 2,449 92 2541

2023 2022

2023 F 2022 &

RMB million RMB million

AREBERT  AREBEIL

Expense relating to short-term leases WA ERECER 84 69

Total cash outflow for leases HERS R LA 174 276

Additions to right-of-use assets NEFRAEEE 355 180
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17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS - continued 17. FREEE-~&

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases mainly for buildings,
motor vehicles, office equipment and properties. As at 31 December
2023 and 2022, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the
portfolio of short-term leases to which the short-term lease expense
disclosed above.

Details of the depreciation charges of the Group's right-of-use assets
are setoutin note 11.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

Lease liabilities of RMB144 million (2022: RMB100 million) are recognised
with related right-of-use assets of RMB139 million (2022: RMB92 million)
as at 31 December 2023. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that are
held by the lessor. Save as set out in note 36, leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

REBFEREF  BEHTE  HAKRE
EWMETHIITRBERE - R2023F &
2022F12A31H - B HIMHEREHRSE
BB EERN EXMBECRHEE
REBREEM -

AEBEFEREEETEEBNFBEHAK
FF11e

HERBIHEY

R2023F 12 A3 H EABAHEEEBEAR
144 B E T (2022F - AR 10088 7T)
LigBEFEREEEAR 1398 &It (2022
FARBREHESE L) BB AMFERE
EBEZERERIN  BEHEIEEM
E 2L - BT MEEN  HEEE

O FBERERZER -
Details of the lease maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in HMEaBEZHEERTBHE ST IEFHNM T
note 29. 29 °
18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REWYHE
RMB million

ARBBET
cosT BN
At 1 January 2022 M2022F1H1H 1,746
Transfer from property, plant and equipment HEAME  WEREHE 24
At 31 December 2022 M2022F 12 A318 1,770
Additions NE 4
Transfer from property, plant and equipment HEOYE BWENLERE 5
Transfer from stock of properties HEEOMEFE 169
At 31 December 2023 202312 A 318 1,948
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2022 m2022F1H1H 259
Provided for the year NEERE 87
Transfer from property, plant and equipment EREME  HEMEHE 14
At 31 December 2022 2022512 A31H 360
Provided for the year NFE 69
Transfer from property, plant and equipment EEAYE BB REE 2
At 31 December 2023 M 202312 A31H 431
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2023 202312 A31 8 1,517
At 31 December 2022 202212 H31H 1,410
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the terms of the leases or 20 to 50 years.

The investment properties shown above represent leasehold land and
buildings in Hong Kong and the PRC.

The Group leases out various offices under operating leases with rentals
payable monthly. The leases typically run for an initial period of 5 to 20
years.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the lease
arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the respective
functional currencies of group entities. The lease contracts do not
contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee's option to purchase the
property at the end of lease term.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's investment
properties amounting to RMB3 million (2022: RMB10 million) were
transferred from property, plant and equipment as a result of end of
owner-occupation and represent leasehold land and buildings in the
PRC.

Fair value of investment properties

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31 December 2023
was RMB4,919 million (2022: RMB4,834 million). The fair value of 11
properties at 31 December 2023 amounted to RMB4,687 million have
been arrived at based on valuations carried out by ValQuest Advisory
(Hong Kong) Limited, an independent valuer not connected with the
Group. The fair value of another 10 properties amounted to RMB232
million were determined by the management of the Group by using
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs. The fair value of all
properties at 31 December 2022 were arrived at based on valuations
carried out by ValQuest Advisory (Hong Kong) Limited, an independent
valuer not connected with the Group.

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the fair value of the investment
properties located in Hong Kong is determined based on direct
comparison method whereby comparison based on price information
of comparable properties is obtained. Comparable properties of similar
size, types of properties and location are analysed and carefully
weighed against all the respective advantages and disadvantages of
each property in order to arrive at a fair comparison of capital values
and the valuation is classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

18. REWXE-#

A EIREWF LA EHR K20 E 50F (A
RIEERE) ANEREFE -

FRREVER/URBERTEZHES
o R 1B T

AEERBEEHELEZEARAE H
SRAXM - HEBENT BYsE20F -

HRAEHEONSEERSANIIREE
BEtE  SAKEYEFNBE P EE R
KRk HEANLE TR ERBREERE
R/ SEBAREERRBEDENER
1 o

HZE2023F12A31HILEFE AEFEKE
MEAREIBET (2022F : ARE10H
BT RALREAMAEME  BERE&E
A BURFEZHAELMRIETF -

BREMELAALEE
REBHIREYER2023F12 A31HZA
hAEBEAARK49AE T (20225 : A
R¥4834 BB T) c 11EWER2023F 12
A31BZzARBEAARE4687EET
THAR i B AN 55 [ 4R R 2 98 N (A (B R AP ARk
EZT (BB BRRARMEZEESH - E
MHI0IENE L AR EBEEREARE22EE
T HAASEEREERABENEE
iR ASBIBRER - FTBWHER2022F
1RAJNBZARBEYBREENEEER
HEBUAEMREET (BB BRA
AIFTEZ HEBE -

R2023F K 2022F 12 A31 H @ N BB
KREMEN DA BEDIBRBEEZLEAE
EENRIBE A ERERER#ETE
tb - RN - W EER K b ER 5 AR R L
WAL EETONM T BEESSWEZ
HEES  UREREEERA T
WEFIEBRNIZ AR BEER -
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued 18. REWE -7
Fair value of investment properties - continued REMEIAREBE-&
At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the valuation of the industrial properties 2023 F K 2022F 12 A31H - AL AR Y
and commercial properties located in the PRC are arrived at using TEMEREEDMENGHEDFAKRAE
income capitalisation method, by capitalising the estimated market TAEEGFE - N2EEZENMEE ALY
rents of the property by referring to the rentals of comparable ¥MEe FABENERNEEXBEEY
properties in the subject locality using appropriate capitalisation rates, ¥MEFTmEHEe TUERL  BEFE
and is classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. BRABZARBEER -
Carrying amount Level 3 fair value
31 December 31 December
BREE HBI3AREE
12A31H 12A31H
2023 2022 2023 2022
2023 2022 FF 2023 2022 FF
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
AREBEERT  ARBEETL ARBEER | AREAETT
Industrial properties located in the PRC 1,350 1,406 4,713 4,796
URPRBEMTEME
Commercial properties located in the PRC 163 - 172 -
(RNl S
Industrial properties located in Hong Kong 4 4 34 38
URBEBHNTEME
1,517 1,410 4919 4,834
In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of B BT % 2 feim R ERGE R HYE
the properties is their current use. ZANREE-
19. GOODWILL 19. BE

2023 2022
2023 FF 2022 £

RMB million RMB million
AR¥BERT  AKEBST

Arising from acquisition of; R BRI
— Skyworth Digital (Vote (i) —Blss T (Batn) 286 286
— Strong Media Group Limited — Strong Media Group Limited
(Strong Media") (Note (ii) (['strong Media |) (7% (i) 85 79
— others —Hfb 102 102
473 467
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to RTETHENR BESEZ@FR S
individual cash-generating units ("CGUs"). EEAEEN -
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GOODWILL - continued

During the year ended 31 December 2023, management of the Group
determines that there is no impairment of any of its CGUs containing
goodwill (2022: nil).

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the CGUs of Skyworth Digital
and Strong Media and their major underlying assumptions are
summarised below:

(i) For the purpose of impairment testing on the goodwill arising
from acquisition of Skyworth Digital for the operation of digital
set-top boxes business for the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022, the recoverable amount of the CGU has been
determined by the fair value less cost of disposal. The fair value
less cost of disposal of the CGU is determined with reference to
the share price of Skyworth Digital at 31 December 2023 and 2022,
less the transaction costs for disposing these shares.

(ii) For the purpose of impairment testing on the goodwill arising
from acquisition of Strong Media and intangible assets with
indefinite useful life as disclosed in note 20 have been principally
allocated to this CGU, the recoverable amount has been
determined by a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period, and a pre-tax discount
rate of 15.3% (2022: 15.4%). Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated with zero (2022: zero) growth. Expected cash
inflows/outflows, which include budgeted sales, gross margin and
raw material price inflation, have been determined based on past
performance and management's expectations for the market
development. Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the carrying
amount of the CGU to exceed the recoverable amount of the CGU.

19. BHE &

HE2023F12A31HILFE  AEBZE
BERABIMNEHEZREELEMBE
EE (20226 - &) -

Bl 4 215 K Strong Media 3R & = 4 B8 67 2 7]
el ¢ s LA R E F 2EA R
™

0 REE2023F K2022F12 H31 8 IE
FERLEHTHRIBSERMKE
Bl TRELERE 2 RENRAT
T REEASBUZAUKLESER
DAEBBEBRHEKRAEE REE
EBEMNZAARBERDERA K
2 Bl B F 2023 F K 2022 F 12
A3a1BZ2REBRELEELEENZ

SR 2 X BHABE -

i) AEWF20FFAEEDETEHIE
E%R @ EE BN A EYEE strong
Media FIT 72 4 7 2 I TN RERE E A] {3
FHMEFLAEREITRERNS 7]
Wbl &R EREENEET -
FETERBAERNEREERERESF
By %REE 2H 2% B A &15.3%
(2022 FF : 154%) Z BiATALIR K - {BiA
SEHMZBEEREE AT (2022F -
TR - BAZRERARE (B
FEREAZEESRE TRENEMN
BHERBR) BEBFRELETERE
HMpRE BHET -EEER
Ao BRI A A A 2 o AR
TreEHRBcELENZRAER
BE Y El £ 58 -
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20. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

20, HithEEEE

Patents Trademarks Total
RMB million RMB million RMB million
=R BE et
ARBERT AR®EERT AR¥XEBEER
(Note (i) (Note (ii))
(KraEam) (Bt 72 i)
CARRYING VALUES E\Eﬁ@
At 31 December 2023 R2023F 12 A31H 6 98 104
At 31 December 2022 R2022F 12 A31 H 4 97 101
Notes: KaE -

(0] The patents have finite useful lives and are amortised at 10% to 20% on a straight-line 0]

basis.
(ii) Trademarks were purchased as part of a business combinations in previous years (ii)
and have legal lives ranging from 10 to 21 years but are renewable upon expiration
at minimal cost. The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group has
the intention and ability to renew the trademarks continuously. As a result, the
management of the Group considers that the trademarks have no foreseeable limit
to the period over which the trademarked products are expected to generate net
cash flows to the Group. The trademarks will not be amortised until their useful lives
are determined to be finite. Instead they will be tested for impairment annually and
whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.
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21.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
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21 BMEQNTARAELEES

2023
2023 F

2022
2022 5F

RMB million
ARBEET

RMB million
AREBER

Interests in associates (Note (i) By N R (et a) 453 272
Interests in joint ventures (Note (ii) EEDEER (W) 13 15
466 287

Notes:

(i)

All of the Group's associates are accounted for using the equity method in these 0]
consolidated financial statements. The Group considers none of its associates is
individually material nor principally affected the results or net assets of the Group.
The aggregate information of associates that are not individually material is as

follows:

it -

REBH AR ERBRANGRE M HERERA
BERANRR - ARERSEE 2 R R EESR
BEARTEFEAREMEGELEETE -
BRI TEARBERRZHGEEERNT

2023

2023

RMB million
ARBEETR

AREBET

The Group's share of profit and total comprehensive
(expense) income for the year

AEENMERFEHEFREH
(B W ABEE @ 9

(ii) The Group's joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in these (i)
consolidated financial statements. The Group considers none of its joint ventures is
individually material nor principally affected the results or net assets of the Group.
The aggregate information of joint ventures that are not individually material is as
follows:

The Group's share of loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year

REBMDIEAFEEBERER2ER A

AEBSGECERAGEMBIRRRBEDE
AR - AKERRESGECEHMEENBEX
REBYEAEEMNEELEEFE - @R
EREELEZGEERNT

2023
2023 F

2022
2022 FF

RMB million
ARBEET

RMB million
ARBEETR

) 1

RIEEEBRAF
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22. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

22.

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, financial assets at FVTPL and equity instrument at
FVTOCI have been combined into other financial assets. The following is
the analysis of the financial assets at FVTPL and equity instrument at

FVTOCI for financial reporting purposes:

Financial assets at FVTPL

Listed equity securities, at fair values

HitEMEE
REAMBRRERZ2IIME - RARME
B AR SBAERRAABETA
Htp2ERANRETACAHER LS
MARE - UTRIFAMBREMAR KA
ABEFABRZ SRAERIRAR EE
SEARRERANRET ASH

2023
2023 F

2022

2022 F

RMB million
AREEHEET

RMB million
AREBER

BAABEFABEZERHEE
EmiiERE S AR EETIR)

—inthe PRC — 586 917

— in Hong Kong -REE 12 30
Unlisted equity securities, at fair values FLmRERS AR EBETER)

—inthe PRC — 2,205 1,951
Unlisted securities, at fair values FELEMES(URAAREBETYEE)

— Investment funds -EEHES 149 112
Derivative financial instruments (note 43(c)) TSR T A (Mt 4300)) 1 19

2,953 3,029

Analysed for reporting purpose as BREREMONT A

Non-current assets EMBEE 2,241 1,987

Current assets MENEE 712 1,042

2,953 3,029
Equity instruments at FUTOCI (Vote) BAREBETFAHEMEZEKAZR
IR (WE)

Unlisted equity securities, at fair values FLmREZRS AR EBEYER)

—inthe PRC —H 1,094 989
Listed equity securities, at fair values EmRERES (ARAREBEYIER)

— in Hong Kong —REB 281 421
Analysed for reporting purpose as BREREMOMAIEREBEE

non-current assets 1,375 1,410

Note:  The directors of the Company have elected to designate these investments in equity

instruments as at FVTOCI as they believe that recognising short-term fluctuations in

these investments' fair value in profit or loss would not be consistent with the
Group's strategy of holding these investments for long-term purposes and realising

their performance potential in the long run.
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. BWEZRIEREMEKRKE

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of MEEVBRAKRNEIME BKES
financial position, trade and bills receivables, other receivables, deposits HEREWEE  EMEWRGRIE -Zek
and prepayments and loan receivables have been combined into trade FERFUREREREAHERRE SR
and other receivables. The following is the analysis of the trade and bills AN EAMEWEIE - st B mEm s - A
receivables, other receivables, deposits and prepayments and loan TREKEZFAREWEE - HitEI
receivables for financial reporting purposes: A Be RFENFTUAREBRERE DT :

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 FF

RMB million RMB million
ARBBERT  AR®BEET

Trade and bills receivables (Note (i) JEUE 5308 & e W = ik
(HtaEm) 11,467 10,056
Loan receivables (Note (ii)) JEURE ZX (KT & i) 895 778
purchase deposits paid for materials REEM RS 1,686 1,302
Deposit placed with a financial institution for potential /72 /£ U B I /B A B %8 I ME S
acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary AT IR & B RS Y 17 30 - 1,516
VAT and other tax recoverables AT U [E138 (8 7 & H Ath B TE 1,576 1,485
Consideration receivables for disposal of a subsidiary & — &K B A 7] fE WK (B 366 366
Other deposits paid and prepayments HEiBEiEe RERAK 761 789
Other receivables H b W s 8 829 729
17,580 17,021
Analysed for reporting purpose as RWMEREMONA
Current assets MEEE 17,015 16,429
Non-current assets EMENEE 565 592
17,580 17,021
Notes: Bfat -
i. Trade and bills receivables i e U 52 5 5008 % R L SR A )
The following set out the details of the Group's trade and bills receivables at AL ERH R AT B RIZA BER A
amortised cost and at FVTOC: ZHEBAZ EWE 5508 & EWEE BN
T
2023 2022
2023 FF 2022 4F
RMB million RMB million
ARBEER AREBEET
Trade receivables at amortised cost REER A2
FEUE 55818
— goods and services - EmM R 10,073 8,197
— lease receivables - HEEKREA 163 143
10,236 8340
Less: allowance for credit losses W EREREE (753) (724)
9,483 7616
Trade receivables at FVTOCI BAABEFAEMEERA
Z W E 5RIE 215 450
9,698 8,066
Bills receivables BWREE 1,769 1,990
11,467 10,056
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - continued

Notes: - continued

i. Trade and bills receivables - continued
As at 1 January 2022, trade receivables from contracts with customers amounted to
RMB8,589 million.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables at amortised cost and at
FVTOCI before allowance for doubtful debt:

23.

W E 5 AR H M E KRR

=

- A8
ffet - - &
i BREZRERERRE - &

R2022F1A18 - REFFPEHANEKESHK
HAARE8S8IE BT °

REEBERR B A G ERZ AR BEA
Hitb 2ERAZ EWE HHRBRRANIT

2023 2022
2023 & 2022 £F

RMB miillion RMB million

ARBEER ARBEET

within 30 days 30 KA 4,608 3830
31-60 days 31 REE0KR 1,841 1575
61-90 days 61 K E 90K 1,079 666
91-180 days 91 RE 180K 1,105 1,101
181-270 days 181 K& 270K 338 367
271-365 days 271 RE 365K 185 173
Over 365 days 365 KA E 1,295 1,078
10,451 8790

As at 31 December 2023, included in the Group's trade receivables balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of RMB2,006 million (2022: RMB2,368 million)
which are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due balances, RMB880
million (2022: RMB276 million) has been past due 90 days or more and is not
considered as in default based on historical experience. Other than two land parcels
(2022: two land parcels) pledged for security of certain trade receivables, the Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

As at 31 December 2023, included in the Group's trade receivables are amounts due
from an associate and related parties (as at 31 December 2022: a related party) of
RMB202 million (2022: RMB223 million) and RMB10 million (2022: RMB10 million)
respectively. The credit period is 45 days. No allowance for credit losses is made for
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. The following is an aged analysis
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

R2023F 128318 AEEBZEWE 5 HIELE
BN RIREEA AR 2006 B & T (2022 F ¢
AR 2368E BT MEREREZINRE AHE
B EEBPZEHRRN AR¥e0EE T
(2022%F : ANR# 276 B & T) B8 B0 R 5 A
b BERBACHRITTHERELN - HREK
WIERE TERKE 5K EERMMIE L o
(2022F - MELH) AEEWERZSFEH
AT -

R2023F 12 A31 8 - fEUR—FEEEE A E) K
7 (R2022F12 A31H : —REE ) HBAR
#2002 B BT (2022F : ARM23EETT) KA
R¥1088T (2022F : AR¥E10BETT) 9 5l
FAASENERESRIE - EAHRsX -
REZE2023F N2022F12 A3 B ILFE - &
HIEABRELEE RBESHRZREZAH

2 ZREBEAITIAT -
2023 2022
2023 2022 FF
RMB miillion RMB million
ARBEER ARBEET
Within 30 days 30K AR 113 168
31to 60 days 31 RE60K 89 65
61 to 90 days 61 RE K 10 -
212 233

For customers who used bills to settle their trade receivables upon the expiry of the
initial credit period, the ageing analysis of bills receivables at the end of the reporting
period was presented based on the date of issuance of the bills. The dates of
issuance of all bills receivables are within one year at the end of the reporting period.
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - continued 23. BWESRIERHtEWRKIE
-E
Notes: - continued Hiat - - &
i. Trade and bills receivables - continued i. ERESREREBEWRERE - &
The maturity dates of bills receivables at the end of the reporting period are RBEPARERERZINBAAITAT -

analysed as follows:

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 4F
RMB million RMB million
AREBEER AREBET
Within 30 days 30K AR 254 172
31-60 days 31 RE60K 225 273
61-90 days [AFNEEIFN 364 669
91 days or over 91Kk A 926 864
Bills endorsed to suppliers with recourse BEEGHER L MERERRE - 12
1,769 1,990

Details of impairment assessment of trade and bills receivables are set out in note EREWE S8R ERER 2 AEFEFE

43(). AT E4300) ©
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - continued

Notes: - continued

208

Loan receivables

The following set out the details of the Group's loan receivables:

23.

W E 5 AR H M E KRR

=

-8

it -

-

EHREX
REE B EFFBRINAT

2023 2022
2023 2022 4F
RMB million RMB million
ARBEETR ARBBET
Fixed-rate loan receivables FEUE E AR E R

Secured [z 829 724
Unsecured 4 R 66 54
895 778

Analysed for reporting purpose as BRERBRMANA
Non-current assets EMEEE 77 289
Current assets MENEAE 818 489
895 778

As at 31 December 2023, loan receivables of RMB814 million (2022: RMB636 million)
are advanced by certain subsidiaries of the Company with principal activity of loan
financing, in which the corresponding interest income is included as revenue. The
remaining balances of RMB81 million (2022: RMB82 million) are advanced by other
subsidiaries, the related interest income is included as other income.

Included in the carrying amount of loan receivables as at 31 December 2023 is
allowance for credit losses of RMB60 million (2022: RMB62 million). Details of the
impairment assessment are set out in note 43(b).

As at 31 December 2023, included in the Group's loan receivables balance are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of RMB70 million (2022: RMB70 million) which has
been past due 90 days or more as at the reporting date and are secured by equity
instruments of an entity related to the relevant loan debtor and properties. The
directors of the Company consider credit risks have increased significantly and
those with evidence indicating that these debtors are in severe financial difficulties
and are considered as credit-impaired.

The secured portion of the Group's loan receivables are secured by borrowers’
charges over equity instruments, trade receivables, motor vehicles, properties, land
use rights and plant and machineries.
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Notes to the Consolidated

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - continued

Notes: - continued

Loan receivables - continued

Included in the carrying amount of loan receivables as at 31 December 2023 is an
amount of RMB241 million (2022: RMB302 million) due from certain related parties
controlled by a substantial shareholder of the Company which is secured by
equipment and motor vehicles of the said party and guaranteed by the said
substantial shareholder of the Company, interest bearing at 7% (2022: 7% to 8%) per
annum and repayable by instalments up to 2025 (2022: up to 2025).

Included in the carrying amounts of loan receivables as at 31 December 2023 of
RMB105 million (2022: RMB141 million) due from third parties and are secured by
motor vehicles of these third parties and guaranteed by related parties controlled
by a substantial shareholder of the Company in respect of amounts owed to the
Group, interest-bearing at 7% to 8% (2022: 7% to 8%) per annum and repayable in
instalments up to final maturity dates ranging from 2024 to 2025 (2022: ranging from
2023 to 2025).

The exposure of the Group's fixed-rate loan receivables to interest rate risks and
their contractual maturity dates are as follows:

R e B E )R K

Fixed-rate loan receivables:

Financial Statements

e MR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

W E 5 AR H M E KK

=

-8

it -

-E

BRER-&

R2023F 12 A AMEKRERREESIEEK
RAR—BEERBEAIESE THREALREA
AR 20 BEIT (2022F : A\REE3EETT) -
NZHEATHRERAEERRTHAAR
Ll F ZARRAERR - IRFFIE 7% (20226 1 7%
Ze%) 5t 2 B AR 2025 4 (2022 4F © 2025 5F) RIIR
B HiEiE -

2023 12 A3 HAEWE R EREE R IE B
E=FFBEARBI105BETT (2022F : ARW
IAET)  UZRFE=FHABEERI A
RRR—BEERFMEGIBEATHRERR
SEEEERER  RFFE7%E8%(2022F : 7%
Zex) i S EARKEINEA (N FouFzE
2025 4F (2022 4F © /2023 F & 20254F ) ) A1 5 £
B -

7 £ [ P MR ) E 1) o B RRAAT T B 0 N R R B
HenmzBemT :

2023 2022
2023

2022 5F
RMB million
ARBEET

RMB million
AR¥BEER

Within one year 1F AR 818 489
More than one year but not exceeding two years 1FAFBTEBB2F 60 246
More than two years but not exceeding five years 2FA BB F 17 43

895 778

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are equal to contractual interest rates)
on the Group's loan receivables are as follows:

AT AAEEREEFHERNE (EBRRE
RIFE) EE

2023 2022
2023 2022 4F
Effective interest rate: BERRFE
Fixed-rate loan receivables FE U B TE R R E R 4.20%-12.00% 4.80%-12.00%
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24. DEFERRED TAXATION 24.

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been
offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

IEE TR

A BRRKRZ2IME - BoRT
BMREENBEREEERE - L NEERE
BlE G ZBIEHRIBER DN -

2023 2022

2023 2022 5

RMB million RMB million

AREBERT  AREBHEL

Deferred tax assets RIEFHIBEE E (1,019) (877)
Deferred tax liabilities EEIBEE 338 353
(681) (524)

The balances of the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised are
as follows:

Fair value adjustments on financial assets BAR

UTREERTBEECEHARE (BE)
E’Jnlﬂﬁ% :

2023 2022
2023 £

2022 F
RMB million
ARBEBETT

RMB million
ARBBEETRT

(BEABRZEREE

at FVTPL and equity instruments at FVTOCI

KA EBEF AEBEEEK

ABBREIAZ AR BEARE 255 286
Accrued sales rebate TEIRHERF (107) (190)
Provision of ECL on financial assets TREEZTEREREBRER (110) (136)
Provision of write-down of inventories FEMRE S (62) (59)
Deferred income WA (52) (37)
Provision for warranty RIEBEE (77) (91)
Tax losses BIgEE (380) (253)

Deferred taxation has not been fully provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to
accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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INVENTORIES AND OTHER CONTRACT COSTS

25. 78

SR EMEHRAE

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 5F
RMB million RMB million
ARBEERT  AREEEL
Inventories FE

- Raw materials - R 3,088 2,659
- Work in progress -EESR 2,888 2,908
- Finished goods - E K i 3,918 3380
9,894 8,947
Other contract costs H & 8RR 311 =
10,205 8,947

STOCK OF PROPERTIES 26. MERE
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 5F
RMB million RMB million
AREBERT  AREBHEL
Under development 2 R 5,277 7,015
Completed AR 756 334
6,033 7,349

Stock of properties amounting to RMB4,011 million (2022: RMB1,492
million) as at 31 December 2023 is not expected to be substantially
realised within one year from the end of the reporting period. Sales
deposits received from purchasers at the end of the reporting period
are included in contract liabilities as disclosed in note 28.

Analysis of leasehold lands:

Carrying amount of leasehold lands included in

AALEXMEFENTEE

R2023F 12318 YWEFESCBEARE
4011 B & T (20225 AR¥ 14928 &
7T EERBRESRRE—FRNTE KB
REE - PIREHRDWERE H 2 HER
AR BE (P28 FE) -

HETH AT -

2023 2022
2023 £

2022 F
RMB million
ARBEBETT

RMB million
AREBER

&3

the stock of properties above Z RmE 4,229 5,337
Total cash outflow for the year AEEReRTE 608 667
Additions for the year KEEARE 608 667

The carrying amount of leasehold lands is measured at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The residual
values are determined as the estimated disposal value of the leasehold
land component. No depreciation charge is made on the leasehold lands
during the year taking into account the estimated residual values as at
the end of the reporting period.

HE T 100 R E R AR Rt E
MERERKRGE - RIREEEE /A
Lo e s hEEE - & RRHR
SHRMMGARSRER FANEREE
THEHRITEEM -
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27.

212

PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS, CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or
less, which carry interest at variable market rates ranging from
0.01% to 1.15% per annum (2022: 0.01% to 2.75% per annum).

Pledged bank deposit is pledged to secure certain bank borrowings and
carries interest at market rate 2.85% per annum (2022: 2.2% per annum).

Included in pledged and restricted bank deposits are balances which, in
accordance with the applicable prevailing government regulations, are
placed in restricted bank accounts, amounting to RMB236 million (2022:
RMB266 million), which can only be applied in the designated property
development projects.

Pursuant to agreements entered into by the Group and several
counterparties, a total amount of RMB1,866 million (2022: RMB1,710
million) has been placed with a designated bank account where any
withdrawal is restricted. The amount is therefore included in the pledged
and restricted bank deposits on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In addition, restricted bank deposits amounting to RMB353 million (2022:
RMB297 million) represent reserve deposits placed with the People’s
Bank of China (“PBOC") by a subsidiary of the Company registered as a
non-bank financial institution with limited liability established under the
relevant PRC law. The balances of these reserve deposits were
calculated at certain percentage of qualified deposits placed by
customers of that finance company as determined by the PBOC against
unexpected events such as unusually large net withdrawal by
customers. These reserve deposits are required by local regulation and
not available for the Group's daily operations.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 43(b).
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ZTISF R A -

EHEBELIRETERPEEREERR
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28.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

e MR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

28.

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, trade and bills payables, other payables, contract
liabilities and provision have been combined into trade and other
payables. The following is the analysis of trade and bills payables, other
payables, contract liabilities and provision for financial reporting

ENEZREREtENFIR

A BRAKRNEINME  BNES
RELENRER HEMRENKIE  AHEA
BERBBEAHERNESRIALEME
MR- AP BHREMS - AT RENE
SHRERENRE  HMENHE 44

purposes: BERBENDN
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 FF
RMB million RMB million
ARBEERT | AREAETT
Trade payables (Note (i) FENTE 5308 (KTt ) 11,531 8,650
Bills payables (Note (i) FET =8 (B At i) 5,423 3820
Provision for warranty (Note (iii) RIS BB (I 2 i) 474 510
Provision for rebates (Note (iv)) O] 078 (AT 2t v) 858 1,269
Contract liabilities (Vote (v)) aRaEHWTEw) 1,544 4928
Accrued staff costs TEIR B TR A 1,251 1,102
Accrued selling and distribution expenses TERRHE R D HE A 391 291
Deposits received from sub-contractors B D BEEES 2,634 1,513
Payables for purchase of property, BEWE BER
plant and equipment R FERT FRIE 707 362
Rental deposits received Bl HeEe 178 161
VAT and other tax payables JETIBER & B A7 IR 572 764
Other deposits received Hib B Wiz & 62 290
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A M A e 58 1,960 1,977
27,585 25,637
Analysed for reporting propose as HERENSTA
Current liabilities MENBE 26,566 25,283
Non-current liabilities ERBEaE 1,019 354
27,585 25,637

Notes:

i Trade payables

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on invoice date at the end

Pt
i ENE SRR

NBEHMRZEZAH2INZENESHHIALZ

of the reporting period: BREDTMT :
2023 2022
2023 2022 FF
RMB million RMB million
ARBEER AREBET
Within 30 days 30 RARA 5,012 4611
31-60 days 31 RE60K 2,146 1,437
61-90 days IPNEIPN 1,247 948
91 days or over 91 KAk 3,126 1,654
11,531 8,650

The credit periods of trade payables ranged from 30 days to 90 days. ENEBESHENERENFI0XENEK
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES - continued

214

Notes: - continued

Bills payables

The maturity dates of bills payables at the end of the reporting period are analysed
as follows:

28.

BN E S FHERHMENFKE

-E
Wiat - &
i FE RIK

RBERR - BANRBEZIHEIMOT

2023 2022
2023 & 2022 FF
RMB million RMB million

ARBEER
Within 30 days EVENPG 726 661
31-60 days 31 RE0R 1,041 695
61-90 days 61 RE 90K 1,076 561
91 days or over 91 Kk 2,580 1,903
5,423 3,820

All bills payables at the end of reporting period are not yet due.

Provision for warranty

The Group provides product warranty to its customers depending on the product
type, under which faulty products are repaired or replaced. The estimate of the
provision for the warranty is based on sales volumes and past experience of the
level of repairs and returns. The Group also provides guarantee for the performance
of the photovoltaic power stations sold based on the sales volumes and past
experiences of levels of non-performance. These estimations are reviewed on an
ongoing basis and revised by reference to the current defective/non-performance
rates of products sold.
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES - continued 28.

BN ESFRERHMEMNKE

-4E
Notes: - continued Hiat - -4&
iv. The amounts represent outstanding rebates in relation to the goods sold to certain iv. ZESHEARBEHENETEFPHEERARE L
customers. RAEE -
V. Contract liabilities v. aHEaE
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
RMB million RMB million
ARBEHER
Deposits received for: BT EBEREIRS -
— sales of goods and provision of services —HEE M MEHRS 1,268 2,596
— sales of properties —HEWE 276 2332
1,544 4,928
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract REVERTAG DB BEHRA
liabilities at the beginning of the year 4,804 3270
As at 1 January 2022, contract liabilities amounted to RMB3,291 million. Re02F1A18  &HNBEAARE3201H
BT e
When the Group receives deposits from customers for the sales of goods and EAEERHEEE D RRERBE AR P KRR
provision of services, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a contract, T HERANREREESNERE EEF
until the revenue recognised on the relevant contract exceeds the amount of the BENERNEETRBBAZRBAL - K&
deposits. The Group receives 10% to 100% deposit on acceptance of orders from ERENE TR B IRET 10% 2 100% (IS ©

certain customers.

The Group receives not less than 20% of the contract value as deposits from
customers for the sales of properties when they sign the sale and purchase
agreements and the remaining of the contract value is paid before the completion
of the sales of the properties. The deposits and advance payment schemes result in
contract liabilities being recognised until the customers obtain control of the
properties.

ERTEERAR AKERNEHEERETS
WL RAEKNEBEZ20%ERZE - &
AHEERRDEHE TR - BRERR
BANKABEHERADARE EERFFPM
ShEZENREAL -
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29. LEASE LIABILITIES 29. HEEE
2023 2022
2023 2022 FF
RMB million RMB million
AREBERT  AREBHEL
Within one year 1FR 74 46
More than one year but not exceeding two years 1F A FETBE2F 45 18
More than two years but not exceeding five years 2FLN AT BESF 25 32
over five years 5L F - 4
144 100
Less: amount due for settlement with 12 months B AR R B EIL R
shown under current liabilities 1218 A AR ER4EE 2 5108 (74) (46)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months shown  ZI/RRIER BB FI R
under non-current liabilities REABIIEEE 2B 70 54
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to lease HARHEEB G THIESERFI=X
liabilities range from 2% to 12% (2022: 2% to 5%. N 2% = 12% (2022 4F : 2% E5%) ©
30. DEFERRED INCOME 30. EFEWA
Deferred income consists of government grants provided by the PEIEW A T BB 7B B R B BT 2B P HE £ 2 IR
relevant PRC government authorities for the purposes of financing the FaEbe REEWMENMMEKE  FREHE
purchase of plant and machinery and the related expenses to be MmEBEMREES - ZFERABLEEEH
incurred for the development of new products or technology. The 37 Bk A Z A B A AR B BT 2B P SERK
amounts are recognised as income to match with related expenses or R 18 IR MR B E R RS A F ERER AU
on systematic basis over the useful lives of the relevant assets upon A e

completing inspection by the related government authorities.
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31. SRITER

2023 2022
2023 FF 2022 5

RMB million RMB million
AR¥BER  AKEBBHET

Bank borrowings comprise the following:

RITERBEATRIEA

Secured [REei 5,355 5758
Unsecured 45 35 9,960 9,499
15,315 15,257
Fixed-rate borrowings ERER 7,878 12,254
Floating-rate borrowings SN 7,437 3,003
15,315 15,257

Carrying amount of bank borrowings repayable
based on scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements:

IBRBERIBHE 5T BIERK
BEEE ZRITIEFIREE

Within one year 1F AR 8,218 9,404
More than one year but not exceeding 1F U EEREB2F
two years 2,955 2,051
More than two years but not exceeding 2FM BB F
five years 2,247 1,709
over five years 5 E 1,895 2,093
15,315 15,257

Less: Amounts due within one year shown

B SRR RS REL R —FR

under current liabilities EHR 2 k18 (8,218) (9,404)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities FIRRIEMB A E 2K 7,097 5,853
The Group's variable-rate borrowings carry interest at Secured Overnight REBEBF REHTIZPEMERBR
Financing Rate ("SOFR”) or Loan Prime Rate (“LPR”) in the PRC (2022: Euro BE %IJ Ko B REGEF K (2022 : BT
Interbank Offered Rate (“EURIBOR"), London Interbank Offered Rate IRITRIZERE - BBIRTRZEF B

(“LIBOR") or LPR in the PRC) plus specific margins.

BB IR A ) AR A R MBE AT o
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31.

32.

218

BANK BORROWINGS - continuied 31. RITHEM-#
The range of effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted REBEREEFNE (FEREHF )
interest rates) on the Group's borrowings are as follows: HEWT -
2023
2023 2022 4F
Effective interest rate: =
Fixed-rate borrowings EEMEK 0.55%-6.45% 0.50%-6.50%
Floating-rate borrowings FEER 2.95%-4.90% 1.11%-7.00%
The Group's borrowings that are denominated in currencies other than REBIREBSEERBNEEEUINCE
functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out below: BEEHE 2 EREIN T -
usD EUR
Ep & T
RMB million RMB million
AREBBEET ARKBAET
As at 31 December 2023 2023412 A31 A 381 37
As at 31 December 2022 2022412 A31H 1,968 100
SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY 32. XATRAE
Number of
shares Share capital
& E S
RMB million
ARE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FRFB 01T LER
Authorised: EIE
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 and 31 December R2022F1R18 ~2022F12 A
2023 31H NM2023% 12 A31H 10,000,000,000 1,063
Issued and fully paid: BRTRAE
At 1January 2022 M2022F1A1H 2,667,229,420 273
Purchase of own shares for cancellation (Vote) BEAGS RO S (W) (107,232,000) (9)
Issue of shares upon exercise of share RITE AR B B RRER
options of the Company BITRMD 25,204,000 2
At 31 December 2022 Re022F12 H31H 2,585,201,420 266
Purchase of own shares for cancellation (Vote) BEARF MM A (HF) (179,548,000) (16)
At 31 December 2023 202312 A31 H 2,405,653,420 250

SKYWORTH GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023



32.

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

e MR MR
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SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY - continued 32. ARBERAE -
Note: Bt -
The Group has completed the conditional cash offer to buy-back for cancellation 100,000,000 AEBEBER203FsATKEERGERSEZLOABEE
of its own ordinary shares of HK$5.0 each in May 2023 for a total consideration of RMB464 100000000 R T AR E B B ¥ s0T i B & TR AERE
million. i ARERSARKw6ITET -
During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Company repurchased its own RBZE2023F K2022F12 AVBILFE - ARFIEHR
ordinary shares through the Stock Exchange as follows: B FTRE R A 5 T mARan T -
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BZ203F12A31ALFEE
Number of ordinary Aggregate
shares of HK$0.1 each Price per share consideration paid
BREBITZ
Month of repurchase & [E A 3 LERHAE BREE EFREARE
Highest Lowest
BS B
HKS HKS RMB million
B il AR¥EER
August 2023 20238 A 8,000,000 2.90 2.67 21
September 2023 20239 A 34,604,000 343 2.90 107
November 2023 202311 8 8,544,000 3.08 2.84 23
December 2023 2023%F 12 8 31,250,000 3.10 2.81 84
82,398,000 235
Other than 2,850,000 ordinary shares of the Company being repurchased in late December & 74 20234 12 A T~ &) B [51 19 2,850,000 B 28 A 7] E 38 %
2023, 179,548,000 shares repurchased during the year ended 31 December 2023 were SN - B 2= 2023F 12 A 31 B 1 F £ #& B A9 179,548,000 %
cancelled during the year. The said 2,850,000 shares were included as treasury shares as at & BERE R - R2023F 12 A31 8 + kit 2850000
31 December 2023 and being cancelled during January 2024. RRAR D P AN EETF AR + WA 2024 6F 1 AEH ©
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE202F12 ABHILEE
Number of ordinary Aggregate
shares of HK$0.1 each Price per share consideration paid
RS 01ITTZ
Month of repurchase B8 [E A5 TimARE E FRARE
Highest Lowest
&= i
HKS HKS RMB million
S ok ARBEET
January 2022 20221 A 23,554,000 550 495 108
April 2022 20224 4 A 896,000 397 386 3
May 2022 20225 A 39,634,000 450 418 159
August 2022 20228 A 6,000,000 395 383 21
September 2022 20229 A 17,980,000 4.00 3.46 59
October 2022 2022F 108 17,126,000 296 281 45
November 2022 2022F 11 A 2,042,000 2.98 290 5
107,232,000 400
The above ordinary shares were cancelled during the year ended 31 December 2022. LAl EEREREE 2022912 A3 B ILFEFH
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33.

220

SHARE OPTIONS

The existing Share Option Scheme (the “2014 Share Option Scheme”) was
approved by the shareholders on 20 August 2014 for the purpose of
providing incentives to directors, eligible employees and selected
eligible persons. Under the 2014 Share Option Scheme, the directors of
the Company may grant options to eligible person, including any
directors, whether executive or non-executive (including any
independent non-executive directors), and any employees, whether full
time or part time, of any members of the Group. All of the options, if not
otherwise exercised, amended or cancelled, lapsed on 20 August 2024
under the 2014 Share Option Scheme.

Under the 2014 Share Option Scheme, the maximum number of shares
issuable upon exercise of all options to be granted under the aforesaid
scheme of the Company as from the commencement of the scheme
period, excluding those options which have lapsed in accordance with
the terms of the 2014 Share Option Scheme of the Company, if any, must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Company's shares in issue as at the
date of adoption of the 2014 Share Option Scheme or exceed any of the
refreshed limit.

No option shall be granted to an eligible person which would cause the
aggregate number of shares already issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted to such eligible person under the 2014 Share
Option Scheme of the Company (including cancelled, exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period up to the date of grant
exceeding 1% of the shares in issue. Any further grant of options in
excess of this limit may be made only with the separate approval of the
shareholders in general meeting with that eligible person and his
associates abstaining from voting.

The total number of share options that were granted and remained
outstanding under the 2014 Share Option Scheme of the Company is
24,328,000 (2022: 24,328,000), representing approximately 1.01% (2022:
0.94%) of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December
2023.
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RiF2014 FRBAEFEI TR ONAREBE
PRAEZEE RN TR -

33. SHARE OPTIONS - continued 33.

The following tables show the movements in the Company's share
options granted under the 2014 Share Option Scheme:

Outstanding
at
Outstanding 31 December
at Exercised Lapsed 2022 and
Exercise 1January during during 31 December
Date of grant price Vesting period Exercisable period 2022 the year the year 2023
Ra022 5
12A318
Rz Rao23
1A1H 12A31H
TEE A{TEER HARTHE REEETHE HRITE
HKS
B
22 January 2016 4.226 22 January 2016 to 1 September 2016 to 14,178,000 (154,000 (8,430,000) 5,594,000
30 August 2016 20 August 2024
01617228 WF1A2AE WIEFIAIEE
2016%F8A30H 2024%F8F 208
22 January 2016 to 1 September 2017 to 15,780,000 (104,000) (9,146,000) 6,530,000
30 August 2017 20 August 2024
Wi6F1A2AE WI7FIALIEE
017%F8FA 308 02458 A 2008
22 January 2016 to 1 September 2018 to 25,404,000 (236,000) 14,184,000) 10,984,000
30 August 2018 20 August 2024
Wi6F1A2AE WBFIA1HE
20188 A30A 0248 A 2008
8 July 2016 6320 8July 2016 t0 1 September 2017 to 2500000 - 2,500,000) -
31 August 2017 20 August 2024
0167 H8H W6FTABHEE WI7EIAIEE
01768A31AH 20248 A20A
8 July 2016 to 1 September 2018 to 2,500,000 - 2,500,000) -
31 August 2018 20 August 2024
N6FTABHEE WBFIA1HE
20188 A31AH 0248 A20A
8 July 2016 to 1 September 2019 to 2,500,000 - (2,500,000) -
31 August 2019 20 August 2024
W6FTABHEE W19F9A1HE
0198 A31AH 0248 A 2008
8 July 2016 to 1 September 2020 to 2500000 - 2,500,000) -
31 August 2020 20 August 2024
N6FTABHEE W0F9R1HE
20208 A31AH 2024F8A20A
RIESEBEBERDAE 2023F K 221
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33. SHARE OPTIONS - continued

222

Exercise
Date of grant price

Vesting period

Exercisable period

AfTEHR

33 BRE- -2

Outstanding
at

1 January
2022

Rz &
1A1H
iel RATE

Exercised
during
the year

AEEBRITE

Lapsed
during
the year

FEERY

Outstanding
at

31 December
2022 and

31 December
2023
Rao22 &
12A31H
Ra023 &
12A31H
e RAT B

9 August 2017 4090 9 August 2017 to 1 September 2018 to 500,000 - (500,000) -
31 August 2018 20 August 2024
20178 A9H 017F8A9HE 018F9A1HE
20188 A31H 024F8 A 208
9 August 2017 to 1 September 2019 to 500,000 - (500,000) =
31 August 2019 20 August 2024
017F8A9HE 019F9A1HE
20198 A31H 2024F8 A 208
9 August 2017 to 1 September 2020 to 500,000 - (500,000) =
31 August 2020 20 August 2024
017F8A9HE W0FIA1HE
20208 A31H 2024F8 A 208
9 August 2017 to 1 September 2021 to 500,000 - (500,000) =
31 August 2021 20 August 2024
017F8AIHE W1F9IA1IHE
20218 A31H 2024%F8 A 208
15 April 2019 2680 15 April 2019 to 30September 2019 to 9,948,000 9,536,000 (20,000) 392,000
29 September 2019 20 August 2024
201948158 W19F4F158F 019F9A30HZE
201998 29A 2024%F8 A 208
15 April 2019 to 30 September 2020 to 7,696,000 (7,387,000 (15,000) 294,000
29 September 2020 20 August 2024
W19F4F158F 00F9A30HE
20209 A 29H 2024%F8 A 208
15 April 2019 to 30 September 2021 to 8,336,000 (7,787,000 (15,000) 534,000
29 September 2021 20 August 2024
W19F4F158F 020F9A30HE
202198290 20248 A 208
93,342,000 (25,204,000) (43810,000) 24,328,000
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 3. ROERGBH

The Company has applied HKFRS 2 to account for its share options and RAFEFEMEAY B REERE 2905

share awards, as well as Skyworth Digital's share awards. A PR 2 i 1 32 B DA 2 Bl 4 B iR 1 8%
EJJ o

2023 2022
2023 FF 2022 5

RMB million RMB million
ARBEERT | AREBET

The Group's share-based payment expenses are AEERNERGFHERANT
as follows:

Share awards of the Company KR AR 528 47 51

Share incentive plans of subsidiaries of the Company 72 &) i B 2 A1 8% 15 & B 51 2 51 14
98 65

Share options of the Company N TR R

The particulars of the share option scheme of the Company, and the BE0nER0nE R ANELER &

details of and the movements in share options during the years ended NI EIRES - PRSI S S

31 December 2023 and 2022 are disclosed in note 33. A summary is EE RN M S 3 E - AT

presented below:

2023 2022
2023 FF 2022 &
Number of Weighted Number of Weighted
share average share average
options exercise price options  exercise price
hn#EF 15 N#EF 5
BRERE TEE | BERESE 1IfEE
HKS$ HKS
it S K
Outstanding at the beginning of REF W ARITEE
the year 24,328,000 4.148 93,342,000 4017
Exercised during the year RERNTTE - - (25,204,000) 2710
Lapsed during the year G = = (43,810,000 4696
Outstanding at the end of the year RERMAKRITE 24,328,000 4148 24,328,000 4148
Exercisable at the end of the year RERAITE 24,328,000 24,328,000
In respect of the share options exercised during the year ended MBZE2022F12 A BIEFEADITEE
31 December 2022, the weighted average share price at dates of BiEmE  NTEBHONEFEIRER
exercise was HK$4.890. 75 #4890 7T ©
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34.

35.

224

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS - continued

The share options outstanding as at 31 December 2023 have a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 0.64 years (2022: 1.64 years) and
the exercise prices of which range from HK$2.680 to HK$4.226 (2022:
HK$2.680 to HK$4.226).

Share awards of the Company

On 21 October 2020, an employees’ share award scheme (the “2020
Share Award Scheme”) was adopted by the Company. The 2020 Share
Award Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing from 21 October 2020. Pursuant to the rules of this scheme,
the Group has set up a trust for the purpose of administering the 2020
Share Award Scheme and holding the awarded shares before they vest.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, 10,000,000 shares of the
Company were acquired through the 2020 Share Award Scheme at a
total consideration of RMB33 million. No share has been acquired under
the 2020 Share Award Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2023.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, 10,930,000 (2022: 31,284,000)
awarded shares of the Company under the 2020 Share Award Scheme
were granted. 14,784,000 awarded shares (2022: 9,000,000) were vested
during the year, and 17,930,000 awarded shares (2022: 14,284,000) and
500,000 awarded shares (2022: 8,000,000) will be vested in 2024 and 2025
respectively.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The employees of the Company's Hong Kong subsidiaries participate in
a defined contribution scheme which is registered under the
Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the "ORSO Scheme”) or a
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the "MPF Scheme") established
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance in December
2000. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees. Certain employees who
were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the
MPF Scheme remained with the ORSO Scheme, whereas all new
employees joining the Group on or after 1 December 2000 are required
to join the MPF Scheme.

Under the rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees' relevant income capped at HK$1,500 per month. The ORSO
Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from both employees and
the Group at 5% of the employees’ basic salary. The pension costs
charged to profit or loss represent contributions payable to these funds
by the Group at rates specified in the rules of these schemes.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES - continued

The employees of the Company's PRC subsidiaries are members of the
state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC
government. The Company's PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their employees’ payroll to the retirement
benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

The aggregate retirement benefits scheme contributions and pension
costs for the Group's employees, net of forfeited contributions, which
have been dealt with in profit or loss, are as follows:

Retirement benefit scheme contributions

35.

RIKBERGTE -2
ARBIFEMBARZIEES BT EBNE
E2BRERBRAKBAFEKE - XQA]
TEMBAREAREBEEFCZETED
Lo BRI AE A AT B FUAIR L B T8 A
AEBAEBRERRENFE 2 -—RERR
B E AT IR o

MR RWIERE - ZEBES 2 EIKE
FlstaltE R R EREX ALE (BEAEER
R

2023
2023 £

2022

2022 F

RMB million
AREBETT

RMB million
ARBEBEETRT

FRBRKBHGET IR

in Hong Kong 1 .
Pension costs in the PRC B R IRE AR 422 393
Total retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKNEFE B A% 423 393

At both 31 December 2023 and 2022, there were no forfeited
contributions can be used to offset future employers’ contributions.

PLEDGE OF AND RESTRICTION ON ASSETS

At 31 December 2023, the Group's borrowings were pledged and secured
by the following:

36.

R2023FE K 2022F 12 318 - HED B
AT AR SE B & B E 2 K o
EEEAKRZR

R2023F12 A31 8 REEZEFTADT
BEERBRER

2023
2023 £

2022

2022

RMB million
ARBBHETT

RMB million
ARBBEET

Right-of-use assets, leasehold land and buildings and £ FH#EEE « HE b K

construction in progress BFRERETRE 4,805 3129
Investment properties B 1,082 1,135
Stock of properties mMEFE 1,673 328
Trade and bills receivables FEUNE 5 78 K BN E I 213 61

7,773 4653

The pledged and restricted bank deposits as set out in the consolidated
statement of financial position are pledged to secure bank borrowings
or placed in restricted bank accounts in accordance with the applicable
regulations and requirements. Details of these bank deposits are set out
innote 27.

In addition to the above, the shareholding of a subsidiary as at 31
December 2023 was also pledged to a bank for a bank facility provided
to the Group.

FRFEaMBARKRZEBMMZRIERT
FRRBERROILAEE TERAES
RITERIFRRNZRIBITERST - %F
RITFERZF BN E27

Br _ESCRTaiSAh - — KK B A Bl R 2023 F 12
A3 B EINE A BE IR A RTT
BB IR T ERT -
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37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There are individual patent disputes which arise from time to time in the
ordinary course of the business of the Group. The Group is in the course
of processing these matters. The directors of the Company are of the
view that these patent disputes will not have a material adverse impact
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

38. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
The Group as lessor

During the year, the Group earned rental income from the lease of the
Group's properties. The leased properties have committed tenants for
terms ranging from one to twenty years.

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

37.

38.

HREE

AEERAELLEEP IR HRMER
ERdsm MAKREEETREZSTS
HARRAEERR ZEEMNUHTE
BASEZRAMBRREBREATNE

£ o

RERERH
AEEFERLAS

RAERE - AREHEE R ERRE

A LR ZBERN T —FE
—tFETF-

FHEEENERSEEENREOT

2023 2022

2023 2022 F

RMB million RMB million

ARBEBEERT  AREBEEL

Within one year —F R 441 247
In the second year B 4F 330 179
In the third year E=F 212 144
In the fourth year FEYF 212 9%
In the fifth year FRF 84 62
After five years hFE 207 236
1,486 964

39. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following capital
commitments:

Contracted but not provided for, in respect of
acquisition of property, plant and equipment

39.

B AR
RI|EIR - AEEZEAFREMT

2023
2023 F

2022
2022 5F

RMB million
AREBETT

RMB million
ARBBEET

REBEYE  BERREBDE
E A KMERIER B2 AR 957

1,610
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FINANCING ACTIVITIES
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40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

Dividend

payables

Other
financial
liabilities

excluding
derivative
Interest financial

payables

40.

Lease
liabilities

BRERHELE 2REHER

TRHAINAEEEREADHELCBEE
B EERReMFReEH - ARELY
ELZBBERAEREIARAREEREZ
BE YRAKBZEEHSRERTR
THRRERMEEHELZRERE -

Debt
component Derivative
of component
convertible  of convertible
bonds

Bank
borrowings

Corporate
bonds

FEfiHE v HERE ATt NGIEE
RMB million RMB mi RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
. A\R¥EET ARKEET AR¥EET A T AREEET ARKEER ARKEER ARKAEET
At1 January 2022 RanF1A1A - 3 a7 151 14262 96 172 875 16899
Non cash transactions and FEERSREH
movements:
Dividend recognised as distribution 32 571K 2 f% & 683 - B B B B B B 83
Finance costs fote 9) BB AR (Hts) . - 16 7 7 2 B 0 32
Newleases entered SNHHAE B B B 3 B B B B 3
Termination of lease BIEHE - - B 25) B _ B _ 5
Changeinfair value of derivative T4 4F T ARL
financialinstrumentsnoted) - EEEH) (fi7+8) - - - - - - % - %
Conversion of convertible bonds 82782 &) — ]
isstied by a subsidiary of HBARETZ
the Company TARES - - - - - 701 ) . .23
Exchange realignment EHEHEE B - B 1 8 _ B _ 9
Financing cash flows: RERETRE.
Dividend paid EfRE 1663 - - - - - - - 663
Inerest peid ERFHE - ) - m A1 9 - B9 a9
Repayments of lease iabilites ~ (EETHE & E B - B ) B B B B )
New bank borrowings raised HRBTER - S s e 12672 = - - 12672
Repayments of bank borrowings {5 B R(TET . e - - (12,718) - - - [11,718)
Decrease in other financial liabiliies E 41 S B & B0
lexcluding derivative financial ~ (REEFTHEL R
instruments) T8) - - 8 - . . . - 82
Redemption of corporatebonds & 1A Bl % - s = - - - - (876 (876)
Redemption of convertible bonds & [2] o & 41 (%5 B s B B B g B B 6
At31 December 2022 RanE1rAA - - m 10 15257 - - - 15728
RIEEBEERAR 2023F 5] 227
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40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES - continued

4]1.

228

40.

BERMETHELE2AEBYHER &

Other financial
liabilities (excluding
Dividend derivative financial Lease Bank
payables instruments) liabilities borrowings
HtdRaRs
(T RETE
EfRE $RIE) HEakE RITER @it
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
AR¥BER ARMEER AR%EER AR%BEER AR%EER
At 31 December 2022 Ra2E12 4310 - 3 100 15,257 15,728
Non cash transactions and FRERERET
movements;
Dividend recognised as distribution REDEZIRE 296 - - - 29
Finance costs (note 9 BERK (W1it9) - 2 6 495 522
New leases entered and ATUHAE
termination of lease RRIFHE - - 83 - 83
New bank borrowings raised for MIERITETNER
settlement of trade payables RITEREERR
directly via banks ES55E - - - 174 174
Exchange realignment 5 B - - - 3 3
Financing cash flows: RERLRE:
Dividend paid ERKRE (296) - - - (296)
Interest paid ERFIE - 21 - (506) (527)
Repayments of lease liabilities EEHEAE - - (45) - (45)
New bank borrowings raised MERITER - - - 14,501 14,501
Repayments of bank borrowings BERTER - - - (14,609) (14,609)
Decrease in other financial liabiites ~ E M4 B & B4
(excluding derivative (TMeETE
financial instruments) £RIA) - (100) - - (100
At 31 December 2023 nanFrANA - 271 144 15,315 15,730
NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 4. kRERH

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group entered into new
lease agreements for the use of leased properties for 2 years to 5 years
(2022: 2 years to 5 years). On the lease commencement, the Group
recognised RMB135 million right-of-use assets and RMB135 million lease
liabilities (2022: RMB38 million right-of-use assets and RMB38 million

lease liabilities).
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt which includes
lease liabilities and bank borrowings disclosed in notes 29 and 31,
respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents, and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure periodically.
As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The Group will
also balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of
new debt or the redemption of existing debt, if necessary.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Categories of financial instruments

42.

43,

ETRERER

FERERHESABRAEEAANSER
BEEMARER 2T A2 E  RKIER
EYEBERE  ARETENA/BRE
BEAER - AEB 2 BRRBHEFE

AEENEARARBHFED  SEIHN
Mo kT2 HERBRRITER
FHRELREFEARKRBRERAA
fEh L (BIED BITIRA R FHE) SHEK -

ARBIEFTHRTEERNRE - ERIL
Bz —80  ARREFTEEEETAAN
REERHESHBNERR - AEREZEBIK
B - BITHBREEBES  RAETE
BOUMEBEBRBELORBES (WFE) U
FEHHEBBENRRE -

¢HMIA
@ SEIEKNEH

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 FF
RMB million RMB million
ARBEBEERT  AREEEL
Financial assets SRMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost BEHEK AT ENEREE 25,976 25381
Trade receivables at FVTOC EARBEFAEMET
WA Z FEWE 578 215 450
Financial assets at FVTPL RAREBEITAEBRZ
CREE 2,953 3029
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BEARBEFAEMETE
WAZRETE 1,375 1,410
Financial liabilities cMERE
Amortised cost [z 319N 38,057 31,775
Derivative financial instruments PTEERmTE - 68
RIEEBAERAT 2023F 3R 229
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

230

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include financial assets
at FVTPL, equity instruments at FVTOCI, loan receivables, trade and
bills receivables, trade receivables at FVTOCI, other receivables,
pledged and restricted bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
trade and bills payables, other payables, lease liabilities, derivative
financial instruments, bank borrowings, and other financial
liabilities. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (i.e. currency risk, interest rate
risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

(]

Market risk
The Group's activities expose it primarily to the financial
risks of changes in foreign exchange rate, interest rate and
other price.

Currency risk

Majority of the subsidiaries of the Company operate in
Mainland China and most of their transactions are
denominated in USS, HKS, EUR and RMB. The Group is
exposed to foreign exchange risk primarily through sales
and purchases, capital expenditure and expenses
transactions that are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the subsidiaries. The Group
considers its foreign currency exposure is mainly arising
from the exposure of RMB against USS, RMB against HKS,
EUR against HKS and HKS against RMB. The Group manages
its exposures to foreign currency transactions by
monitoring the level of foreign currency receipts and
payments. The Group ensures that the net exposure to
foreign exchange risk is kept to an acceptable level from
time to time.

The Group also regularly monitors its portfolio of customers
and the currencies in which the transactions are
denominated so as to minimise the Group’s exposure to
foreign exchange risk.
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 43. @I H &
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies b SHEKREEEERBK-#£
- continued
i) Market risk - continued W HEEE-E
Currency risk - continued EE R - &
In addition, the Group enters into foreign currency forward AN - NEE RTINS R B A
contracts and cross currency swap contracts to eliminate BRI N EEBBAE N AER
the currency risk exposure. The management of the Group EERR AEEEEEER
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider SNERBE - WKNEERERE
hedging significant foreign exchange exposure should the HHPERINERR ©
need arises.
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency RE B R RS B RAINE TI{E
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at CEBEERERAGBZER
the end of the reporting period are as follows: [ER NN
Assets Liabilities
EE =L
2023 2022 2023 2022
2023 2022 F 2023 2022 FF
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
ARBEERT ARBBEEL AR¥®BET ARBEET
uss x7T 2,902 1,581 1,810 2,487
HKS & 32 360 3 7
EUR BT 32 140 4 108
RMB AR 272 19 26 46
IDR EERE 29 19 109 46
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies
- continued

(i) Market risk - continued
Currency risk - continued
Currency risk sensitivity analysis
The directors of the Company considered that the Group's
exposure of currency risks on HKS against RMB, US$ against
HKS, IDR against USS and EUR against HKS are limited as
amounts involved are immaterial. Accordingly, no
sensitivity to fluctuation in HKS against RMB, USS against
HKS, IDR against USS or EUR against HKS is presented.

The Group exposes to fluctuations in USS and EUR against
RMB. The following table only details the Group's sensitivity
to a 5% (2022: 5%) increase and decrease in USS$ and EUR
against RMB. 5% (2022: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used when
it represents management's assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the year end for a 5% (2022: 5%) change in foreign
currency rates. The foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and monetary liabilities mainly include
trade and bills receivables, other receivables, bank balances
and cash, trade payables, other payables, as well as bank
borrowings. A positive number below indicates an increase
in profit for the year where US$ and EUR weakens 5% (2022:
5% against RMB. For a 5% (2022: 5%) strengthening of US$
and EUR against RMB, there would be equal and opposite
impact on the profit for the year.

43. @I H &

(b)

Profit for the year AEERER
USS against RMB ETLH AR
EUR against RMB BT AR

TREAREEEERBE-&

W HEEE-E
EE - &
HNEE [ B U E 0 AT
RABESERARSEMER
B ARE T H B
ENE & 726 T R BT W OB Y
HERRER A RO
AR A WERABER
AR - ETHBE - HERE
HETTHREILH BB HE K
ENERURE DT ©

AEBAZETEBRITEAR
KB R F B ER - TRE
METRE TR ARBER
TR &% (2022 6F : 5%) 2 BURK
& o BURE T B 5% (2022 FF 1 5%)
Th%E 18 8 S [E R 1] g A 12

ZEHE c URE DT EBEI
INBETE B M AREE 2 EIR
B UREFERABREBEUR
B [E R 7 5% (20224 @ 5%) &
B o IINETIBEvEBEER
EEAEETZAERRE SN
AR EW R & - B b E UK
B RTEHBRERS  ENE
S FE - HAth BT ROE RIRTT
ke TRMIEHBETR  EXE
To R BT H A REE T 5% (2022
Fooy)  RNEE ZREFIEM e
B E T MBUT R AR T 5%
(20224 :5%) - Q@Y AFEE
A EEESEARZFE -

2023 2022
2023 2022 &

RMB million RMB million
AREBEET AREBESTT
(13) 22

(1) (1)
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies
- continued

(i

Market risk - continued

Currency risk - continued

Currency risk sensitivity analysis - continued

In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the foreign exchange risk inherent in
the financial assets and liabilities, as the exposure at the
end of the reporting period does not represent the
exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk as
certain of its pledged and restricted bank deposits, bank
balances and bank borrowings are subject to floating
interest rates (see note 31 for details of the bank
borrowings).

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to certain of its pledged and restricted bank
deposits, loan receivables, other financial liabilities, lease
liabilities and bank borrowings which are interest bearing
at fixed rates.

The Group manages its interest rate exposures by
assessing the potential impact arising from any interest
rate movements based on interest rate level and outlook
and by entering into interest rate swap contracts to
minimise the interest rate risk exposures. The management
will review the proportion of borrowings in fixed and
floating rates and ensure they are within reasonable range.

The management considers that the exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to pledged and restricted bank
deposits, and bank balances is minimal, accordingly, no
sensitivity analysis is presented for both years.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly related to
the fluctuation of SOFR and LPR (2022: EURIBOR, LIBOR and
LPR) against the Group's bank borrowings.

43. @I H &
b SHRERETEEERBE-&
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

234

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
- continued

(i

Market risk - continued

Interest rate risk - continued

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to floating interest rates for bank
borrowings at the end of the reporting period and
assumed the amounts outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year and
held constant throughout the financial year. If interest
rates on floating-rate bank borrowings had been 50 basis
points higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the post-tax profit for the year would decrease/
increase by RMB28 million (2022: RMB15 million).

Other price risk
0] Price risk on listed and unlisted equity securities and
unlisted investment funds

The Group is exposed to other price risk through its
investments in listed and unlisted equity securities
and unlisted investment funds (as disclosed in note
22). In addition, the Group has appointed the
management to monitor the price risk and will
consider hedging the risk exposure should the need
arise.

Price risk sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risks at the end of the reporting period.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had
been 10% (2022: 10%) higher/lower:

. post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2023 would increase/decrease by
RMB72 million (2022: RMB110 million) as a
result of the changes in fair value of financial
assets at FVTPL; and

. FVTOCI reserve would increase/decrease by
RMB47 million (2022: RMB61 million) as a result
of the changes in fair value of equity
instruments at FVTOCI.
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

e MR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies
- continued

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk management

As at 31 December 2023, the maximum exposure to credit
risk by the Group which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position and taking
into consideration of the collaterals, if any, from the
counterparties.

In order to minimise the credit risk of trade receivables, the
management of the Group has certain procedures for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals. Before
accepting any new customer, the sales department of the
Group performs assessments on the potential customer's
credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. Other
maonitoring procedures are in place to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced.

In order to minimise the credit risk on bills received from
customers, the Group will only accept settlement by
acceptance bills issued by certain banks with high credit
ratings for certain larger customers of the Group, up to pre-
determined credit limits set out by the Group. Acceptance
bills issued by certain banks in the PRC with lower credit
ratings are generally not accepted by the Group. The Group
will also monitor and update the credit limits of individual
customers by taking into consideration of their credit
ratings from time to time. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group's credit risk
associated with its bills receivable is limited.

The credit risk on other receivables is limited because the
directors of the Company closely monitor the settlement
therefrom and expect that the general economic
conditions will not be significantly changed within 12
months after the reporting date.

43. @I H &
b SHRERETEEERBE-&

(i)

RIEEEBRAF

=B R R E TS
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R2023F 12 A31H  AEEE
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r&EeEERERR (GEER
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 HIF F /&

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

236

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
- continued

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment - continued

Credit risk management - continued

For loan receivables, the management estimates the
estimated loss rates of loan receivables based on historical
credit loss experience of the debtors as well as the fair
value of the collateral pledged by the customers to the loan
receivables. Based on assessment by the management, the
credit risk for loan receivables is minimised taking into
consideration of the estimated values of the collaterals
held by the Group and the credit quality of the borrowers.

The pledged and restricted bank deposits and bank
balances are placed in a number of counterparties, most of
which are licensed banks with high credit ratings. As such,
the credit risk on liquid funds is limited.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in PRC, which accounted for 76% (2022:
79%) and 99% (2022: 100%) of the total trade and bills
receivables and loan receivables respectively at the end of
the reporting period. The Group has concentration of credit
risk as 20% (2022: 28%) of its loan receivables were due from
a related party controlled by a substantial shareholder of
the Company. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits and credit
approvals.

The Group has no other significant concentration of credit
risk with exposure spread over a number of counterparties,
customers and industries.

SKYWORTH GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 43. & BTHR &
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies b SHEKREEEERBK-#£

- continued

(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment - continued i) EEREERBEEFG-E
Impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 BB HREERFEIFIAT

R EFE

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment AEBZ AEEERR D REFF
comprises the following categories: fH B A T RIAR :

Internal
credit Other
rating Description Trade receivables financial assets

Po s
fEa
R BRESHE  HtemAE

P1 The counterparty has no history of default or has alow Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL (Note)
risk of default and is considered to have the strongest  not credit-impaired
financial strength. Typical counterparties include state
owned enterprises, listed companies, subsidiaries of
listed companies and large private companies with
over 3 years business relationship
HFEFERVELIENRBRELERSESRS 2HEHEREX +EAEBRER
BYNVBES  HENHFHFEERF=F —KRELEEERE BXRWIT)
NEXBRERNBARE  EHARF - EHR
G PN N NN

P2 The counterparty has no history of default or has alow Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL (Note)
risk of default and is financially strong. Typical not credit-impaired
counterparties include large private companies with
less than 3 years business relationship and small
private companies with over 3 years business
relationship
HFEFEBEHNEIBNRBRRERT HES - 2HBHEAELX T-EAREHER
HAUNBFHBEEE=FURNEBBERERORN —RBEEEFERE BERHT)
B E R REB = F A LEBBERN/NETL

NG

P3 The counterparty has no history of default or has alow Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL (Note)
risk of default but is not included in categories P1 or P2 not credit-impaired
above. Typical counterparties include small private
companies with less than 3 years business relationship
HFEFBEHNEIBNRRREETEN EX 2HBHEAREL T-@AREHER
PLE PSR - MEIMHFHEEEB=FIARN —REEEERE BXHT)
EBAEN/NERLERT]
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
- continued

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment - continued
Impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 - continued

43. €I A &

b)) SELERE

EERBERBE-#

i) 15 EE R T -
BB HREERFE ISR T
BB - A

Internal

credit Other

rating Description Trade receivables financial assets

A &R

=&

AR i W E 5 KA HittemEE

P4 There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired but the Group has realistic prospect of  credit-impaired credit-impaired
recovery
ERBRAEECELEERE BEAKEE 2HEHEREL ZHEHBEHEX
BB # R W Bl R —DEALFEERE -SELFEERE

P5 There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —

credit-impaired for more than 12 months

and the Group has less prospect of recovery

credit-impaired

credit-impaired

FEBXRPEECRACEEREBBT @R - 2HEHEREEL 2HEHEHEX
B 7R &R B 78 B Bl FRIA M R —DEALFEERE -SELFEERE
P6 There is evidence indicating that the debtor Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
is in severe financial difficulty credit-impaired credit-impaired
FEBRPABE AAYREMGERH THEBMEREXL 2HEBEREX
—DELFEERE -CSELFEERE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor

Amount is written off

Amount is written off

is in severe financial difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery

s ERBRABKADUERENBRHE  BAE COMEHEUTHE EMEEESR
] 78 B 4 [B] FRIB Y = TN K
Note: In cases where evidences show significant increase in credit risk BiEE : %A 385 8 R B ok 4 2 3k 8

since initial recognition through information developed internally or
external sources, these other financial assets would be assessed on
the basis of lifetime ECL (not credit impaired).

ESNEMBREERRAEN
IR MR KRN 25 H
CRMEERER2PEDERE
R ORBEEEERE) < BAETHE -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 43. E@IT H &
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies b SHEKREEEERBK-#£

- continued

(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment - continued i)  EEEBEREEFE-Z
Impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 - continued BB HREEREIRIAT

Z BT - &

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the AT REFIIAEEAEITTE
Group's financial assets at amortised cost and FVTOCI B B R AT 2 IR BESH A AR
which are subject to ECL assessment: FEREAABEFAEME

ERANEBEEZEERR

2023 2022
Internal 03%F 2002 F
creditrating  12m or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount 6ross carrying amount

ABEETR T-BARHEEERARL BEEE BEmE
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
ARBEEL ARXEER AREEER ARKEER

Trade and bills receivables 23 Pl Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired 1074 6,709
BB S RERERRE LHEBERELR-RREEENE
p2 Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired 1,786 1,057
HEBEREA-REEEERE
P3 Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired 1,762 1342
PHEHEREA-RELEERNE
P4 Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 614 686
LHEBERELX-BREEENE
P5 Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 416 403
HEBEREA-CREEERE
P6 Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 568 12,220 583 10,780

PHEYERAR-BREEERE

Loan receivables 23 Pl 12mECL 241 489
s TZEARBERE
P2 12mECL 89
TZEAESEREX
P3 12mECL 513 238
TZARRSEERER
P5 Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 50 65
LHEBEREL -CREREERE
P6 Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 62 955 48 840

PHEAGRAL -CREEERE

BIBEEBEBRAR 2023F 3R 239
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies

- continued

(i)  Credit risk and impairment assessment - continued
Impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 - continued

Internal
credit rating

12m or lifetime ECL

RBEEFR T BARZHRAERARA

43. @I H &
b LHREREEEERBE-&

i) 15 EE R T -
BB HREERFE ISR T
BB -4

2023 2022
W3 E 2002F
Gross carrying amount 6ross carrying amount
BEEE EfE
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
ARBEEL AR¥EER AREEER ARKEER

Other receivables 23 P 12mECL 815 2443
H it R TZEARBEREX
p2 12mECL 2 54
TZEARESEREX
P3 12mECL 399 82
TEARBEREA
P4 Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 1 7
SHEBERELX-BRERERE
P5 Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 5 13
2HEHEREA-CBEEEERAE
P6 Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 86 1348 134 2733
PHEHEREA-CEEEERE
Pledged and restricted
bank deposits 271 (Note) 12mECL 3,461 3461 3353 3353
BERRRRRETHER (Hit) TZEAESEREX
Bank balances and cash 21 (Note) 12mECL 9114 9114 9,054 9,054
RITEHRE (Hit) TZEARBEREA
Note:  The counterparties are licensed banks with high credit ratings and Mit: HF T EBEEFROFER

the risk of default on liquid funds is limited.

240
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 43. EMIA-#

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies b SHEKREEEERBK-#£
- continued
(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment - continued i)  EEEBEREEFE-Z

BB HREEREIRIAT
ZREFL - &
AEBEREEPREMKZGH
ERABEETRIEAEEE
BEREEN - - TRIER
BHAEERRBRZEMN (KRS
HRIEBEBEETME) - ©
202312 A1 BARKEEESD 7
BARB1sB8EE T AR
IMEEBETERARBR2EE T
(2022%F : DRI B AR®E1672
HEL ARBI1B3HEELK
ARBE1sa BT WE LR
BB E R FE U E 5 5RIA KOE IR
B E USSR H b K
JHE T BRI -

Impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 - continued

As part of the credit risk management, the Group applies
internal credit rating to its customers and other
counterparties. The following table provides information
about the exposure to credit risk which is assessed based
on provision matrix as at the end of the reporting period.
Credit-impaired trade and bills receivables, loan
receivables, other receivables with gross carrying amounts
of RMB1,598 million, RMB112 million and RMB92 million,
respectively as at 31 December 2023 (2022: RMB1,672
million, RMB113 million and RMB154 million, respectively)
were assessed individually.

Gross carrying amount
AR {E
Average Trade and bills Loan Other
Internal credit rating loss rate receivables receivables receivables
REBIEE TR W E 5 7oA

FHBRRR REWEE BRER HitEKHE
RMB million RMB million RMB million
ARBEEL ARWEHERT ARBEER

Asat31December2023 A 2023%12H31H
P1 P1 0.04% 1,074 241 815
P2 p2 2.44% 1,786 89 42
P3 P3 3.94% 1,762 513 399
10,622 843 1,256

Asat31December2022 1202212 A31 A
P1 P1 0.06% 6,709 489 2,443
P2 p2 2.36% 1,057 = 54
P3 P3 4.98% 1,342 238 82
9,108 727 2,579

RIEEBEERAR 2023F 5] 241
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 HIF F /&

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b)

242

Financial risk management objectives and policies
- continued

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment - continued
Impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 - continued

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on average
of market corporate default rates and are adjusted for
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure relevant information about specific
debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, impairment
allowance of RMB53 million (2022: RMB21 million) for trade
receivables at amortised cost and no impairment
allowance for bills receivables (2022: reversal of impairment
allowance of RMB2 million) has been made.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL
that has been recognised for trade and bills receivables
under the simplified approach.

43. @I H &
b LHREREEEERBE-&

(i)

=B AR B EFE - A
BB HREERFE ISR T
BB -4
RETBRAREDERTIZEFRE
KR FHRKFREE - WIRE
FEEBEZRALENAIRE
MATEMEER B -EEESR
EHEHZDE  NEREHR
AR EES ANHERESR -

HZ2023F12A31B8ILFE
REBRIRBEHEK AT 2N E
WE SHEELRERBAR
Bo3m &I (2022 - AR
AFE L) AERERER
VB H B E B 5 (20224F - B [@
BEBREARE2AET) -

TRETCREBETEME
WE 5 R R EREERER

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired)
ZHIfEHA ZHIFEHA
FHEX EHEBX
(RBEEFEFE (BRERFE
wAE) BAE) e
RMB million RMB million RMB million
AREEBEET ARBEET AR®EER
As at 1 January 2022 R2022%F1A1H 55 656 711
Transfer to credit-impaired EEEOREEER
(Note (a)) WAE (B i () (20) 20 =
Impairment loss (reversed) B (&) R 2 RIE
recognised, net (Note (b)) BB FEE (Kt m) (11) 30 19
Written-off (Note (c) s (ff a7 ) - 6) 6)
As at 31 December 2022 R2022F12 A31 H 24 700 724
Transfer from credit-impaired ERADBEEER
(Note (a)) B (et @) 3 3) -
Impairment loss recognised, EERZREEE
net (Note (b)) FE8 (Ft a7 ) 4 49 53
Written-off (Note (c)) #isE (M aE ) (1 (23) (24)
As at 31 December 2023 R2023F12 A31 H 30 723 753
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies
- continued

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment - continued
Impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 - continued

Notes:

(@ Certain trade receivables are defaulted and transferred to credit-
impaired during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

(b) The Group reversed certain impairment loss due to settlement in
full of the relevant trade receivables during the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.

© The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is information

indicating that the borrower is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the borrower
has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL
and 12m ECL that has been recognised for loan receivables.

43. E@IT H &
b) SREMREEEERKE-£

i) 15EE R BEFG - &
BB HREERFE ISR T
BB - B
Kt -

(@) B 2= 20234 202212 A31H
IEFE  ETRKESHIEEDE
FENVTEBECOREEERE -

(b) RE E 20234 k202212 A31
AILFE  AEERBEEE
BREWRESRBELZETRE
E18 -

© MEEMRAERABEHRE
B 75 IR B B U IR 3ROIR O A R R
R (B0 fE 3R B 2 SR B B
ERF)  AIRSE S MR %E
WE 538 °

FRERE SRR
2 WA ERR = A
HHEAIELED -

Lifetime ECL
(credit-
impaired)

= HIEH
FRRX
(BERERFE
A=)

RMB million
ARB®BEET

12m ECL

+=EAFES
SRBRX
RMB million
ARBBETRT

i
RMB million
ARBEBEETRT

As at 1 January 2022 20221 A1H 25 99 124
Impairment loss reversed, net B E ZRE

B H R (19) (1) (20)
Written-off 1 3E (2) (40) (42)
As at 31 December 2022 R2022%F12 A31H 4 58 62
Transfer to credit-impaired EEEEERE @ 4 -
Impairment loss reversed, net B E 2 REEE

ikl - 2 (P}
As at 31 December 2023 202312 A31H = 60 60

RIESEBEBERDAE 2023F K 243
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

244

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
- continued

(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment - continued
Impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 - continued

The Group writes off a loan receivable when there is
information indicating that the borrower is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery such as when the borrower has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. The Group has taken legal action against the

borrowers to recover the amount due.

In addition, the Group recognised impairment for credit
losses for its credit-impaired other receivables amounted
to RMB14 million (2022: RMB3 million) and reversed
impairment for not credit-impaired other receivables
amounted to RMB17 million (2022: reversed RMB1 million)
for the year ended 31 December 2023 under lifetime ECL
and 12m ECL respectively. The Group wrote off amounted
to RMB51 million (2022: nil) impairment for credit losses for
its credit-impaired other receivables for the year ended 31

December 2023 under lifetime ECL.

(iii)  Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group's remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from prevailing market

interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

SKYWORTH GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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(b)

(i)

(iii)
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 43. E@IT H &
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies b SHEKREEEERBK-#£

- continued

(i) Liquidity risk - continued i)  EEEE - &
In addition, the following table details the Group's liquidity o - TRFANAEEITES
analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The tables BTEMRBESIT T&
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted DIREBETEeM T EFEAR
contractual net cash outflows (inflows) on derivative FERELHREFmE CRA)
financial instruments that settle on a net basis. The liquidity R - AEETAESMITA
analysis for the Group's derivative financial instruments ZmEBES M IHIRIEBEE LT
are prepared based on the contractual maturities as the HAGR REEERAEGH
management considers that the contractual maturities are FHEEERITAETER SR
essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash HSREE+SEE -

flows of derivatives.

Liquidity and interest risk tables TEE) R T 3 2 g

Weighted Repayable Over (arrying
average on demand 3 months but Total amount at
effective orless than 1t03  notmore than undiscounted 31 December
interest rate 1month months Lyear 1toSyears  Over5years cash flows 023

REX AR Rang

ik £ & BB=fA BeRE  12AuA
ERFE JR-BR -E=fA {EIHR-F -Eif BBIE 4% BEE
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million

AR¥EER ARMAEER ARMEER ARMAER ARMAER ARMAER ARMEER

31 December 2023 03F 128310
Non-gerivative financial fabilites  FAT4£2 BB E
Trade and bil payables ERBHFER

eSS - 9667 3289 3966 7 5 16,954 16954
Other payables AR - 2409 566 2089 - 15 5517 5517
Other financialabilies AfteRAR - - - 4 51 2 61 il
Other financial fabilties AteRaR 8% 20 - - - - 20 20
Bankborrowings —firedrate  SRITER-E S 291% 1) 1685 4881 1162 - 8050 7878
Bankborrowings —variablerate  SRATER—F 8 28%% 3 308 137 4609 un 844 2437
Leaselabilties HEEE 5.86% 9 12 7 76 1 17 144

12,648 5,860 1239 5931 2581 39410 38201
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 HIF F /&

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 43. EMIHE-#
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies b SHEKREEEERBK-#£
- continued
(i) Liquidity risk - continued i)  EEEE -
Weighted Repayable Over (arrying
EEN ondemand 3months but Total amount at
effective or less than 1to3  notmorethan undiscounted 31 December
interest rate 1 month months Lto5years Over 5 years cash flows 202
ST ey
T‘:if M
12A31A
—E0% BERE H /
RMB million RMB million RMB millon RMB million
/A\E _ ,r‘“\ LA / /A\E% /}\F%‘E%T_[
31 December 2022 W2 E12BnA
Non-derivative financial labiltes — F{7£ £ BB E
Trade and bils payables ERESHER
[ES - 531 3625 3151 n - 12470 12470
Other payables EftERTE - 2187 i3 112 - - 358 354
Other fnancial abiltes Etedak - % 4 2 6l - 161 161
Other financial iabltes EweRak & 20 - - - - 20 20
Bank borrowings — fived rate FET-E8 3263 595 1451 6646 2956 1083 12761 12254
Bankborrowings —variablerate  $R{TEFH-F 8 362 75 151 686 1046 1552 3510 3003
Lease iabiles HE8E 485% 3 8 S 0 5 u1 100
863 5474 1164 4445 2570 nm 3746
Derivative financialinstruments net - #7428 T A%48
Foreign currency forward contracts SN iR A 4 8 3 % 1 - 8 66
2 3 % 1 - 58 5
The amounts included above for variable interest rate fin)) 2 B 2 & B B3R &5 HA R P4
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are SrZ M EANE EXESTAES
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ BEEMZETAEFERGTI
to those estimates of interest rates determined at the end Bk

of the reporting period.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(c)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The accounting team
works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The
fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and liabilities are
explained to the board of directors of the Company.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in
determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities is
disclosed below.

No changes in the business or economic circumstances that
significantly affect the fair value of financial instruments are
considered by the directors of the Company.

43. @I H &

(c)

RIEEEBRAF

EMITARMAEBENE

A EEXABNARBER
AEERATERATREEATS
ABREE - HEXESEM 1BA
B ARESEREF=NAER
MEMETHE - @tEKESE
AN L ERDZ L) & 1F - AR
FARZEER R S E B R A BUR
BENMABNHAABELERZIES
AIRARAREEGRE -

AMEETRAAERE®AAME
T R 0 1 (BT T B A B 0
HER EXHE -

ARABEERL HELREESH
TAZARBEELEEAFEZE

BREHEER -

2023 3R 247
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 HIF F /&

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 43. E@IT H &
(0 Fair value measurements of financial instruments 0 EMIAEAAEBEFTE-#
- continued
(il Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial il BEEMBEEUAAEBEIE
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring rEFHWEHEERLHBERE
basis BREE

TREHRIAEEZEFERE
ENEREBEANEBEZEH
(LHR - HESMEAER
BARIE)

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of these financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and
inputs used).

TREVWEAABEEBRY
20234 f2022F 12 A31 B A%
BizAREBEFEZEmTA:

The following tables present the Group's financial
instruments that are measured at fair value at 31
December 2023 and 2022 by fair value hierarchy:

248

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Al Al2 A3 @t
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
AREEET AREEET AREEET AREEET
At 31 December 2023 a3 F12A31H
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FUTPL BRLEBEARR
LEREE 528 1 2424 2953
Equity instruments at FyTOCI BAABERA
Hp2EBAZ
RiETA 281 S 1,094 1375
Trade receivables at FVTOC] BRAREBEI; AR
2EMAZEKE
PHE - - 25 215
809 1 3733 4543
Financial liabilities tRARE
Derivative financialinstruments ~ #T£ £ BT A - - - -
At 31 December 2022 ma2E12A31H
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTPL ROABETARR
LEREE 933 19 2077 3029
Equity instruments at FyTOCI RARBETA
HpzEBAZ
RETA 421 - 989 1410
Trade receivables at FVTOCI BRAREBE; AL
2EMBAZEK
BHFE - - 450 450
1,354 19 3516 4889
Financial liabilities SRAR
Derivative financialinstruments ~ $TE 4RI A - (68) - (68)
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 43. EMIA-#

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments 0 SMIBEQAAEBEE-#
- continued
i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial il BEEMBEEUAAEBEIE
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring rEFHEHEERLHERE
basis - continued BAREE-Z

Fair value

as at 31 December Fair value hierarchy Valuation techniquels) and key input(s)

RERHREIERALE

RrBuAARNARER DAEEER

Financial assets/(financial
liabilities) 2023 2022
SREE/(SRER) WBE W05
RMB million RMB million
AREEER ARBEST

Financial assets at FUTPL

BRABENARREL
SREE
Listed equity Securities 528 933 Levell Quoted bid prices in an active market
FTREE S Al ERETHZEARE
Unlisted equity securities 2,205 1951 Level3fNote (@) Market approach
I L REES B33 (Hit) k2
Valuations are derived by the earnings attributable to owners of the investments,
trading multiples of comparable companies and discounts for lack of
marketability.
REDRERERBARGRT  TELRRANRHRE IR T
SRBILETHERSL -
Unlisted investment funds 149 112 Level 3(Note (b)) Discounted cash flow
HETREES BA3(Hrztw) BHAER
Future cash flows are estimated based on expected applicable yield of the
underlying investment portfolios and adjustments of related expenses,
discounted at rates that reflect the credit risk of various counterparties.
ARASRIREEEREAANERERREE AR BR AR -
BREARREHTFHEERROM KRS -
Listed equity securities with 70 14 Level3{Note(c) Quoted bid prices of the same listed entities in an active market and adjusted for
restriction for sale the factor of trading restrictions.
BHER e E ke B3 (M) BRLTEREARTSZEARBRARZBAETHHERSL -
&5

2,952

3010
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 43. & BTHR &
(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments 0 SMIEQAAEBEE-#
- continued
i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial il BEEMBEEUAAEBEIE
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring rEFNEHEERLHERE
basis - continued BRAREE-Z

Fair value
as at 31 December Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)

RRANBHAAER DAEEER RERTREEBARE

Financial assets/(financial
liabilities) 2023 2022
SREE/(SRER) WBE WRE
RMB million RMB million
AR¥EER ARBEET

Equity instruments at FUTOCI

BROABEGARMREE
WAZRETIR
Unlisted equity securities 1,094 989 Level 3/Note (d) Market approach
FEmREES B3 (Wit ) M
Valuations are derived by the earnings attributable to owners of the investments,
trading multiples of comparable companies and discounts for lack of
marketability.
REDRERERBARGRT  AELRRAANRHRERRET
SRBILETHEREN -
Listed equity securities 281 21 Levell Quoted bid prices in an active market
kRS RN ERETHZEARE
1375 1410
Trade receivables at FUTOCI
RAABEFAEME2E
WAZEWEZHE
Trade receivables 215 450 Level3 Discounted cash flow
e E 5508 RA3 BRAER

Future cash flows are estimated based on expected settlement and discounted at
rates that reflect the credit risk of the counterparties.
ARREERIRERAEE SN CREHRRZFETFEERROA
RAEH o
Al
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43. @I H &

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments 0 SMIBEQAAEBEE-#
- continued
i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial )l HEEMEELUAALEETE

liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring

basis - continued

Fair value
as at 31 December
RizAnANAAEE

Financial assets/(financial
liabilities) 2023 2022

SREE/(SRER) WBE WRE
RMB million RMB million
AR¥EER ARBEST
Derivative financial
instruments
fESMIA
Foreign currency forward 1 19

contracts —assets
included in financial assets
atFvTPL
IMNEEBEN-AE
GTARRAEE
STARRZEREE)
Foreign currency forward - (68)
contracts — liabilities
fincluded in other
financial liabilities)
WNEERBEN-BE
GrAEHERER)

FEENEHEERETHBERE
IR MBI - &

Fair value hierarchy

DAEEER

Valuation techniquels) and key input(s)

RERTREEBARE

Level2 Discounted cash flow

B3z ERALR

Level2 Future cash flows are estimated based on forward exchange rates (from
observable forward exchange rates at the end of the reporting period) and
contracted forward rates, discounted at rates that reflect the credit risk of
various counterparties.

H72 ARBERNIBREERER (RERERRNIBHRERER) RET

WEBTIEME  DREWRBEHT HEERROFIERS -

1 (49
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

252

(c)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

- continued

i)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis - continued

Notes:

(@)

(o)

(©

(d)

Discount for lack of marketability of 25% (2022: 25%) is the key
unobservable input used in the valuation. A slight decrease in
discount for lack of marketability used in valuation would resultin a
significant increase in the fair value measurement of the unlisted
equity securities at FVTPL, and vice versa. A 5% (2022: 5%) decrease in
the discount for lack of marketability holding all other variables
constant would increase the carrying amount of the unlisted equity
securities at FVTPL by RMB30 million (2022: RMB27 million).

Expected yield of 5% (2022: 5%) is the key unobservable input used in
the valuation. A slight increase in the expected yield would result in
a significant increase in the fair value measurement of the unlisted
investment fund, and vice versa. A 5% (2022: 5%) increase in the
expected yield holding all other variables constant would increase
the carrying amount of the unlisted investment funds by RMB2
million (2022: RMB2 million).

Discount for prohibition of trading on the same listed entities of 3%
and 12% (2022: 6%) is the key unobservable input used in the
valuation. A slight decrease in discount for prohibition of trading
used in valuation would result in a significant increase in the fair
value measurement of the listed equity securities with restriction
for sale at FVTPL, and vice versa. A 5% (2022: 5%) decrease in the
discount for prohibition of trading holding all other variables
constant would increase the carrying amount of the listed equity
securities with restriction for sale at FVTPL by RMB4 million (2022:
RMB1 million).

Discount for lack of marketability of 12% (2022: 14%) is the key
unobservable input used in the valuation. A slight decrease in
discount for lack of marketability used in valuation would resultin a
significant increase in the fair value measurement of the unlisted
equity securities at FVTOCI, and vice versa. A 5% (2022: 5%) decrease
in the discount for lack of marketability holding all other variables
constant would increase the carrying amount of the unlisted equity
securities at FVTOCI by RMB20 million (2022: RMB20 million).
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43. @I H &
SRMIAAAEENE &

(c)

1]

BEEMBEELUR L EEE
FEENEHEEREHBEE
B R RMEE -2

et -

(a) BR = T O B M A B IR R 25%
(20224 : 25%) BEEFEAD
FETAERGAZE - E(5E
B TISRBIEEITOR
FEMTRE - SRR AR EE
FTABEHZIELETREZFSRD
ARBENEBRZE LA RZT
R A MG R EITHEL
I /0 5% (2022 F = 5%) T H b
FIEBERETE  BEREZEA
REEFTABZEZIF LEHRE
BHOETDESNEMARE
0EB T (2022F : AR¥E2TE

BIT) °

(b) T8 B U %5 3R 5% (2022 F © 5%) Afh
BREANEZTAIHEREA
IR - EE RS KM L -
BYFLETREESHDOAE

U 25 R | Tt 5% (2022 4F < 5%) -
mEAMTEEESRTTE - 158
BELTREESHREE Y
MAR# 2BEE T (20225 : AR
¥oBET) °

(c) HAER LM EBR SR H 8 R
R 3y fL12% (20226 - 6%) BfE
BEFEANEETAERHA
i - EEERERNHZZ R
WAL E TR - IEBUR AR
BETABEHNAELERHZ
FTREEFOAAEAETE
BELA RZITA-RZXZR
il 3 17 /9 B BR0R > 5% (2022 FF -
5%) - MEMAEZEERFTE
EEBIRAREBEFABEN
ALERSZ EMREZESFHN
EEEEMARE 4T E T (2022
F:ARB158T)

(d) BREMBRBMERNRR E12%
(2022%F : 14%) RIEEFRERH
FERABRGARE - EHE
BB TS B I T A AL
MM TR BERIRAAEE
FFAEMEEKAZIE ETR
BEHFNARNBEFEEE
Ft - R2ZINVAR - SR Z 57 iR
M 3 1T 1) BE B R > 5% (2022 4F ¢
s%) @ MEMAASZSRF[FTE
BEBRAABETAEME
E WAz 3 £ ik i 3 5 0 BR
HEEMARE 208 & T (2022
F: AR¥B20EHET) °



43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(c)

Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements

e MR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
- continued

(i

Fair value of the Group'’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis - continued

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of
financial assets

Equity instruments

43. @I H &

0 TMIAQNAEETE-£

) BEEMEELURL(EEE
FEENEHEERETHBERE
HIRRMEE -
EREERFZAAEETE
LR

at FuTocl Financial assets at FVTPL
BRARERSTA
Hit2 KA
ZREIR ROABES ARG EREE
Unlisted Unlisted Listed equity
equity equity Unlisted securities with
securities securities funds restriction for sale
FLmRE LR ZRARZRHZ
#5 #5 FLmES EiRkERS
RMB million RMB million RMB million
AREBETL AREEETL AREEEL
At 1 January 2022 RazE1A1H 1470 1316 28 1,101
Gain (loss) from changes in fair value 22 1t BB A B 2
ofequityinstrumentsat FVIPL  REELE@I A BE
BEMELNNE
(B#) - 32 - 91)
Fairvalue gainon investmentsin -~ A/ BB AEMZE
equity instruments at FYTOC WAZBETERE
WK BERS (506) - - -
Transfer out of level 3 fNote/ BRAI3EL (f1) - - - (839)
Investments RE& Pk 356 821 -
Disposals & - (45) (991) (157)
At 31 December 2022 Raunf12A310 989 1,951 112 14
Gain {loss) from changes in fair value A 7t BB ABE 2%
of equityinstrumentsatVIPL T AR EEE
FEEN S (B8) - 131 - 6)
Farvaluelossoninvestmentsin -~ AR BEGFAEHZE
equityinstrumentsatviodl WA ZRIETERER
MEBEER 75 - - -
Transfer g5 - (32) - 32
Transfer out of level 3ot/ BRRI & () - - - (14
Investments RE 30 169 108 4
Disposals mE - (14 ) -
At 31 December 2023 R 12A31R 1,094 2,205 149 70
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 HIF F /&

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 43. TETH &
EMIAAAEETE-#

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments
- continued

i) Fair value of the Group'’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis - continued
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of

financial assets - continued

Note:  During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, certain equity
securities were transferred out of Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
upon the listing of the equity securities or expiration of the period
that trading of the relevant shares was prohibited on the relevant
stock exchanges.

All gains and losses included in OCl relate to equity
instruments at FVTOCI held at the end of the reporting
period and are reported as changes of "FVTOCI reserve”.

(i) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that
are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Except for bank borrowings at fixed rates, the directors of
the Company consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

The fair values of the bank borrowings (categorised with
Level 2 hierarchy) have been determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on a
discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant
inputs being the discount rates that reflects the credit risk
of the relevant entities of the Group.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 4. BEANTZRS

During the year, in addition to the related party transactions disclosed REE  BREGVBREE b0 AEE
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the Group also has MEATZRSIN REENEBEALT
the following transactions with related parties: ETUATRS

2023 2022
2023 FF 2022 5

RMB million RMB million
AR¥BEERT  AKEBBHET

Associates i /N

Sales of finished goods EXmEE 546 567

Joint ventures cELE

Repair and maintenance service fee income HIERRERBERA 4 -

Sales of finished goods EXmEE 1 1

IT services fee expense BB EREERS - 2

Other related parties HtBEEAL

Sale of automobile components to a related party HEABEZHHT—H

(Note (i) BAEANL (Btatm) 9 10

Sale of electronic products to a related party (Note (i) $HEZTEm T — %

B At (HfE ) 92 126

Interest income arising from loan receivables from KRB @ A TR E 2 5| 8

related parties (Note (i) LN 20 16

Consultancy fee paid to a substantial shareholder of S FA QR A — (I EBRRE 2

the Company BEfZ& A 3 3
Service fees paid for the development of a software 37 {5 B 25 81 (4 R 475 2 AR 7% &

system (Note (i) (HiaEa) 8 3
Provision of rental and property management MEBATRHEEREE

services to related parties 12 PR 7% 3 =

Notes: Htat -

(i The relevant related parties are controlled by a substantial shareholder of the (i HEBEALTHARA (I EZREES - F
Company. Please refer to sections headed “Connected Transactions/contracts of BZZXINEE F2lEFeRE(HER
Significance with Controlling Shareholder” in the Directors’ Report for the details. 5/ BERBERNERAR]—& -

(i) The relevant related party is controlled by the spouse of a director of the Company. (ii) HEEBEEATHARRR —RES ZRBIEH -
Please refer to the section headed “Connected Transactions/contracts of Significance BHZRXHNFHE F2HESTeRE M2
with Controlling Shareholder” in the Directors’ Report for details. RS/ BERBRAEAREGR]—E -
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44. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES - continued 4. BEALTZRG -#
Compensation of key management personnel FTEEEAEME
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management AR EEREMETEZEEKERTETE
including chief executive of the Company during the year was as follows: TERAEBERAEERNZHEMT ¢
2023 2022
2023 FF 2022 F
RMB million RMB million
ARMEER | ARBEST
Short-term benefits SRR 69 89
Post-employment benefits BB 14 43 A1 1 1
Share-based payments A% 10 B 45 < 69 31
139 121
The remuneration of directors and key management is reviewed by the FINZEeK2ERREANAT ZEAR
Remuneration Committee having regard to the responsibilities and FEUEMIZBE HEERFTEEEA
performance of the relevant individuals and market trends. B2 M ETERH -
45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 45. TEHBARER
The following lists the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December THRAA B 2023 F K 2022 F 12 A31 H
2023 and 2022 which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, ZBRA RRAREZEZTRAEZEWBR
principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details of AEAEBXENEERTETE X
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in RHEMMB AR ESERER LK °

particulars of excessive length.

Place of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid share capital/ Effective interest held by
Name of subsidiaries establishment/operation paid up registered capital the Company (Note (al) Principal activities
BRARARRE/ FRRBAE BB RS
WEAREE /Ry /Behs  HREMER (M=) TEEHR
2023 2022
WBF W2
Skyworth Holdings Limited Samoa/Hong Kong Ordinary share USS1 100% 100%  Investmentholding
flEERER AR RETG/EE ERRIET REER
Skyworth Enterprises Limited Samoa/Hong Kong Ordinary share USS1 100% 100%  Investmentholding
HAEXARLA RETG/EE LRRIET REER
Skyworth Investment (Holdings) The British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary shares HK$893 100% 100%  Investmentholding
Limited Hong Kong Preference shares HK$990
Bl RE TR BRAR ABATEE/BE  LTRREWenT REER
EERBE 9907
Winform Inc. The British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary share USS1 100% 100%  Property holding
Hong Kong
KERZEE/EE LTBRIET MEZR
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued 45. FTEMBRARER -#
Place of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid share capital/ Effective interest held by
Name of subsidiaries establishment/operation paid up registered capital the Company (Note (al) Principal activities
BRTRBERE FAARECERER
WEAREE B/ 8 HEEMER (M) TR
2023 2022
uBF 2025
Skyworth Display Technology Bermuda/Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$100,000 100% 100%  Investmentholding
Holdings Limited
R BRBER ARE/EH LR 100000 T REER
ERDA
Skyworth Electronic Appliance Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$93,114,000 100% 100%  Investmentholding
Limited
AN BE LREREE 93114000 T REER
Skyworth TV Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$30,600,000 100% 100%  Investmentholding
Non-voting deferred shares
HKS2,500,000 Note (b)
B ERIERERRA 7R BRI 30600000 T REER
BERRETHEN
7 2500000 7T (A7 (0
Weirong International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$10,000 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of consumer
(previously known as Skyworth electronic products
Multimedia Interational Limited )
ERERARAR BE EERA% 100007 HEREFEMIEEREE
(RIElE L ERERE
RAF)
Skyworth Overseas Development Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$10,000 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of consumer
Limited electronic products
BN ERERAT 7R EERA% 100007 HEREFEM EEREE
Skyworth Overseas Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HKS2 100% 100%  Trading of consumer electronic
products
Bl ERAR BE EERAES T HERETERMZES
Skyworth Financial Management Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$500,000,000 100% 100%  Treasury managementand
Company Limited investment holding
Bl A EBEER AT BE TR % 500000000 T B ERRREER
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued 5. FEMELATER -#

Place of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid share capital/ Effective interest held by

Name of subsidiaries establishment/operation paid up registered capital

BRIRBERE/
AREMES

the Company (Note (al)
FAARECERER
(GET)

Principal activities

il R

/AL R

FEER

2023
03

022
plireg:3

FIEI% -rBETHERAA PRCNote (c) Registered capital 100% 1005  Manufacture and sale of consumer
RMB700,000,000 electronic products
B (Hizt o) & A A K 7000000007 HEFREFERIEERKE
HEBES (R BERAR PRC (Note (d) Registered capital 100% 1005 Manufacture of consumer electronic
1S521,180,000 products and property holding
RE (et AR 21180000 F T HEFETERIEER
HERMEER
WAEEmelREERERAT PRCNote (c) Registered capital 100% 1005  Manufacture and sale of consumer
1US$24,400,000 electronic products
B (M) & A 244000003 T HEFREFERIEERKE
Bl EENEEERERAA PRCNote (c) Registered capital 100% 1005 Manufacture of consumer electronic
15539,500,000 products and property holding
B (M) & 45 395000003 7T HEFETERIEER
HERMEER
Bl EEERAF PRCNote (c) Registered capital 100% 100%  Investment holding
HK$1,830,000,000
B (Hizt o) & A 18300000007 REER
Skyworth Digital PRC/Note (f) Registered capital 52.55% 5255%  Investment holding
RMB1,063,237,105 (Note (g)) (Note ()
(Kiztw) (Hiti)
ElEET B (et FMERARE 1063237105 T REER
A e ST RIMER AR PRCNote fe) Registered capital 5255% 5255%  Manufacture and sale of consumer
RMB300,000,000 (Note (g (Note (g) electronic products and research
(HeEw)  (Wiw) and products development
HEl (Hiite) AR A R 300000000 7T HEREETERZEER
HERMARERAE
Strong Media Group Limited The British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary shares a2% 42%  Saleand distribution of reception
Austria EURB4 (Note (g (Note (g)) facilities of digital televisions
(Kiztw) (Hiti)
RERLHS/RF LERET UTERBWRELHERD
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Name of subsidiaries

il R

FITERBERER G PRC MNote (e) Registered capital 57.0% 570%  Manufacturing and sale of consumer
A2 7 (Coocaa Technology’) RMB360,009,000 electronic products
FYMERBENERS B (i ) B A B 360,009,000 T HEBRETERZAERYE
BRAR(TBRANE])
BlERESRE (RINERAR PRC (Note (c) Registered capital 5255% 5255%  Manufacture and sale of consumer
HK$25,000000 (Note (g (Note (g) electronic products and research
(HeEw)  (Wiw) and products development
BB (M3 o) A 2R 25000000 7T HEBETERIAEREE
RIREREMFAE
BIERBRHERATF PRC fNote (e) Registered capital 747% 747%  Manufacture and sale of consumer
RMB193,500,000 electronic products and research
and products development
BB (i e A AR AR 193500000 70 HEBETER AEREE
RIREREMFAE
REl g R ER A PRC Registered capital 0% 7% Investment holding and trading of
RMB50,000,000 photovoltaic products
i & R AR 500000007 REBRREEXRER
HREIEN KRR BRAR PRC Registered capital 0% 72%  Trading of photovoltaic products
RMB10,000,000
i & AR AR % 100000007 EEAREM
B ERREERERAR PRC Registered capital 100% 100%  Investment holding and property
RMB675,000,000 developments
i T E AR AR 675000000 7T REERENERRE
B ERNBERAR PRC Mote (d) Registered capital 97.3% 973%  Financing
RMB1,152,670000
BB (M3 o) AR AR 1152670000 70 BE
AEER A RERAF PRC Note (d)) Registered capital 100% 100%  Investmentholding
RMB100,000,000
BB (M3 o) & A AR 10000000070 REER
RlESLEEBRAT 20235F R 259

Place of incorporation/
establishment/operation

/AL R

Issued and fully paid share capital/
paid up registered capital
BRTRBERE
BREMER

Effective interest held by
the Company (Note (al)
FAARECERER
(GET)
2023 2022
uBF 2025

45. FEMBARER -#

Principal activities

FEER
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 HIF F /&

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Notes:

(@

(o)

(©

(d

(e)

()

(@)

The Company directly holds the entire interest in Skyworth Holdings Limited. The
interests of all other companies are indirectly held by the Company.

The non-voting deferred shares practically carry no rights to dividends nor receive
notice of nor to attend or vote at any general meeting of the relevant company nor
to participate in any distribution on winding up.

The subsidiaries are sino-foreign equity joint ventures registered in the PRC.

The subsidiaries are wholly foreign owned enterprises registered in the PRC.

The subsidiary is a joint stock limited company registered in the PRC.

The subsidiary is a joint stock limited company established under the law of the PRC
whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

The effective interest held by the Company included 0.01% (2022: 0.01%) equity interest
held under treasury shares of a subsidiary of the Company for the purpose of the
restricted share incentive scheme of Skyworth Digital as set out in note 34.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities outstanding at
31 December 2023 and 2022 or at any time during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other subsidiaries
that are considered to be not material to the Group. A majority of these
subsidiaries operate in the PRC.
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45. FENBARER -#

Mt

(@

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

()

(@
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46. NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE 4. SEEARTEEZFILERZF
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS EEMBRARZHFE
The table below shows details of non wholly-owned subsidiaries of the TRINETARBEBERT AT ) #
Company that have material non-controlling interests: mIEREMBRRZFFE

Place of incorporation/  Proportion of ownership interests

establishment/ and voting rights held Profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiaries operation by non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
WEAREH /R RABHNRERED RABHNRE

ey BERRRZELA AME2EN A PABHNRR

03 02 03 022 03 022
WBE W2 wWE wWE W3E WE
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million

AREEET AREEET AREEET AREEER

Skyworth Digital ElEgT PRCPE 4745% 1745 i 374 303 2861
Coocaa Technology R PR 130% B 9 104 1,09 1057
Individually immaterial subsidiaries EBTAES nER
with non-controling interest BHERME
AEEHHERT 30 108 4% 109
697 586 4618 4027
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's subsidiaries REBEBERATAES EZ 2 HBA
that have material non-controlling interests is set out below. The BB ERBEZSNT o Tl /B 7%
summarised financial information below represents amounts before BERMEREBAKERISE -

intragroup eliminations.
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46. NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE 4. SEEATEZFILERZF
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS - continued EMBRARZHE-#
Skyworth Digital Coocaa Technology
YT BN
2023 2022 2023 2022
2023 F 2022 2023 FF 2022
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
AREBER AREBET AREBER AREBET
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,044 1542 1,129 1461
Current assets MEEE 9,403 9269 2,002 1636
Current liabilities nEEE (4913) (4,641) (535) (609)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (165) (155) (74) (73)
6,369 6,015 2522 2415
Equity attributable to owners NAFIRIESE AE
of the Company (e 5 3,346 3154 1423 1358
Non-controlling interests of Skyworth &l 4 81 % /Bt F Rl
Digital/Coocaa Technology ZAEES R 3,022 2847 1,075 1026
Non-controlling interest of subsidiaries &4 &1 % /B F Rl
of Skyworth Digital/Coocaa BETHBATZAR
Technology Bt hREs 1 14 24 31
6,369 6,015 2522 2415
Revenue WA 10,592 12,009 1,562 1,500
Expenses F i (10,001) (11,203) (1,359) 1,267)
Profit for the year KREBHF 591 806 203 233
Profit (loss) attributable to: FEME R A (B18) -
Owners of the Company RARIRERE A 316 432 111 129
Non-controlling interests of BlgEy B
Skyworth Digital/Coocaa R 7R A
Technology 2| g 286 391 84 %8
Non-controlling interests of Bl sy B
subsidiaries of Skyworth REETHE
Digital/Coocaa Technology NEZ A
EH R (11 (17) 8 6
Profit for the year NEE 591 806 203 233
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NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE 4. SEEARTEEZFILERZF
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS - continued REWBARZHE-#

Skyworth Digital Coocaa Technology
AlERT BB R

2023 2022 2023 2022

2023 F 2022 F 2023 20224
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
ARBEER AREBET ARBEER AREBET

Other comprehensive income (expense) [&(5 E /2 [

attributable to: WA (L) :
Owners of the Company AREREZE A 1 17 - .
Non-controlling interests of Skyworth &4 &( % /B f &
Digital/Coocaa Technology Rz TNEEE 5
i 1 (15) - -
Other comprehensive income (expense) A& v E 2 E Uk
for the year A(FH) 2 (32) = S
Total comprehensive income (expense) fE{E 2 @A (7 H)
attributable to: 4R
Owners of the Company KARIREZEE A 317 415 111 129
Non-controlling interests of Skyworth & 4 &( % /B B &
Digital/Coocaa Technology RZTAEE N
B 287 376 84 98
Non-controlling interests of Blegy BHE
subsidiaries of Skyworth Digital/ HETWHEB AR
Coocaa Technology 7 RES
ﬁT’z (11 (17) 8 6
Total comprehensive income AEEZZ2EUBA
for the year ek 593 774 203 233

Dividends paid to non controlling EREfE T BER
interest of Skyworth Digital/Coocaa  Rl3 N By il 14

Technology [ 4} 107 46 39 21
Net cash inflow (outflow) from: BeEmACEL)
A
Operating activities e E S 475 1610 164 305
Investing activities HEER (560) (153) 226 216
Financing activities BEXH (340) (916) (97) (72)
Net cash (outflow) inflow HeGRE) ik
FE (425) 541 203 449
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47. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY 47. XA EER
The following is the statement of financial position of the Company: KRB ZHFBERRAFTIAT -

2023 2022
2023 FF 2022 5

RMB million RMB million
AR¥BERT  AKEBBHET

Non-current Asset FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries B 28 2 &) Y 2 7,369 7356
Current Assets REEE
Other receivables H {th & kI8 1 4
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE UL B B A R FKIB 15 14
Bank balances and cash RITEBRNES 92 1
108 19
Current Liabilities REBAE
Other payables H fth fE AT 5018 98 94
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE TR B A B FRIA 1,794 3,585
1,892 3,679
Net Current Liabilities FEREBEE (1,784) (3,660)
Total Assets less Current Liabilities HEERRBERS 5,585 3,696
Non-current Liability FRBEME
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE BB A Rl k18 1,079 -
Net Assets FEE 4,506 3696
Capital and Reserves AR #E
Share capital A& A 250 266
Reserves 1 4,256 3430
4,506 3,696
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47. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY - continued

The followings are the movements in reserves of the Company for both

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

e MR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023  #L 2 2023 12 A 31 H IF F/&

47.

EARMBER-&
ARAZHERBEFEOBGNT

years:
Shares held
for share
Share Share option Share award award Surplus Accumulated
premium reserve reserve scheme account profits
AROZE
BiRE Ro%R  EkEN
R fife fife Rt BRE Epy ag
RMB million RMBmwlhon RMBmwlhon RMBm\H\on RMB million RMB million RMB million
AREBETL ) 2L ) =pli ] \REBET AREEETL AREEER
Balance at 1 January 2022 RanF1A182
G 239 i - (19 1006 1245 4593
Lossand total comprehensive ~~ AEEHER
expense for the year PERTEE - - - - - (255) (255)
Recognition of equity-settled BRNERESH
share-tased payments RAEBRGH
Ihote 34 \/f/fiﬂzx/ - - 51 - - - 51
Purchase of shares for RERLARMEE
unvested shares under #ﬂ?ﬁﬁ?ﬁ Rire
share award scheme of the Bt
Company - - - 33 - - 33
Exercise of share options TEERE 59 (it - - il
Alotment of share awards Rin e R - - 31 A - - (10)
Repurchase of shares BORR 391 - - - - 391)
Lapse of share option BREXT - B4 - - - 3 =
Dividend recognised as distribution A& 2 R E - - - - - (566) (566)
Balanceat3lecember 2022 R0 F12A31A
LR 1998 3 0 (o) 1006 458 3430
Profitand total comprehensive ~ AEERF L2
income for the year ARAEE - - - - - 1524 1524
Recognition of equitysettled  BERRMERLEEH
share-tased payments RERER (i 3)
fnote 34) - - 50 - - - 50
Exercise of share options B RE - - - - - - -
Allotment of share awards S - - ] 3% - u -
Repurchase of shares Bk (683) - - - - - (683)
Dividend recognised as distribution #2572 B 5 - - - - - (65) (65)
Balnceat3lDecember 203 RABERANAEH 1315 3 3 (55) 1006 1928 4256
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Financial Summary

M HE

RESULTS

E

For the year ended 31 December

BZ1Rz A BLEEE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
2023 5 20224 2021 £ 20204 20194
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
AREEER AREBEL AREBEL AREBETLT AREBETL
Revenue ] 69,031 53491 50,928 40,093 37,277
Cost of sales HEMAK (59,386) (45,284) (42:380) (32,929) (29,775)
Gross profit EH 9,645 8,207 8,548 7,164 7,502
Other income Hepdg A 1,009 1,201 1,284 1,233 1,071
Other gains and losses H s K g 1R (64) 44 724 965 52
Selling and distribution expenses  $5% M2 5 & (3,695) (3439) (3981) (3477) (3757)
General and administrative —RRITEER
expenses (1,921) (1,654) (1,479) (1,415) (1,014)
Research and development WEER
expenses 2,127 (2116) (2,097) (1,865) (1,843)
Finance costs BB A (522) (432) (461) (440) (484)
Share of results of associates DIRBERNE A ED
and joint ventures Epd 4 @ 8 14 15 26
Prafit before taxation B %4 B v A 2323 1819 2,552 2,180 1,553
Income tax expense FrisHi &R (557) (412) (587) (345) (522)
Profit for the year RE R 7 1,766 1,407 1,965 1,835 1,031
Attributable to; N
owners of the Company ERNE)REFE A 1,069 827 1634 1,440 747
Non-controlling interests MRS NER 697 580 331 395 284
1,766 1,407 1,965 1,835 1,031
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE

As at 31 December

R12A31H

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

2023 F 2022 F 2021 2020 F 20194F

RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million

ARETEET AREBERL AREKEBEET AREBEET AREKBETL

Total cansalidated assets REEERE 67,161 64,410 60,881 53684 47538

Total consolidated liabilities REREEE (44,404) (42516) (39,795) (34,693) (29,395)

Net assets FEE 22,757 21,894 21,086 18,991 18,143
Attributable to: BB :

Owners of the Company RARIREREA 18,139 17,867 18,045 16310 15992

Non-controlling interests DA = 4618 4027 3041 2,681 2151

22,757 21,894 21,086 18991 18143
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Financial Review

By %55 [0 B8

AMOUNTS EXPRESSED IN RMB MILLIONS (EXCEPT FOR SHARE DATA AND ITEMS SPECIFICALLY STATED)
UAREEETIIE (FRRGENRZEZIHEER )

Year ended 31 December

BZR AN BLEE

2023 2022 2021 2020
2023 20226 2021 ¢ 20204F
OPERATING RESULTS RExE
Revenue EER 69,031 53491 50,928 40,093 37277
EBIT 182 5 7
(RIOBRF B R FIE) 2,845 2,251 3013 2620 2,023
Profit attributable to owners RAFIRERFEA
of the Company FEA & T 1,069 827 1,634 1,440 747
DATA PER SHARE sREHN
Earnings per share — Basic BRAF -ER
(RMB cents) (AR®AL) 4315 31.97 62.11 4923 2461
Dividend per share (HK cents) B (GBI 8.0 30 230 - .
Dividend payout ratio EE L& 16.2% 85% 304% 0.0% 0.0%
KEY STATISTICS TERFHT
Equity attributable to owners RRTREREA
of the Company el 2 s 18,139 17,867 18045 16,310 15,992
Working capital BIEE G oo 11,249 10,899 13725 11,410 7,388
Cash position* Wa k= 12,575 12,407 12,739 9,841 6,102
Borrowings EE 15315 15,257 14262 11,387 8,177
Corporate bonds (inclusive of interest) ‘A A& % (& F8.) - - 921 920 2029
Convertible bands linclusive of interest) B] &3 (& % (& F.8.) - - 962 917 907
Bills receivables M EE 1,769 1,990 2,99 4,489 4835
Trade receivables W E 5508 9,698 8,066 9,146 9,162 9,430
Inventories "E 9,894 8,947 7,791 6,004 4,909
Depreciation and amortisation &R 973 1,082 906 917 870
KEY RATIOS FEHER
ROE (% RARIRERBA
B#HE(BDL) 5.9 46 95 89 47
ROA (%) BEEDHE(FEOL) 27 22 34 36 22
Debt to equity (%)** & EER L &
(BDt) = 67.3 69.7 7656 696 614
Current ratio (times) TENEL K (fF) 13 13 14 14 13
Trade receivables turnover period EWE S EAEE -
excluding portion arising from BREEEME
discounted bills receivables (days)**  JEURZE & (B ) =+ 57 76 92 127 150
Inventories turnover period (daysi* 17 & JE 5 Hf (B #1) == 60 71 64 64 72
Gross profit margin (%) EFE(EHL) 140 153 168 179 201
EBITDA margin (%) RIMBFE - FBIE -
EREHE R X
(BH) 50 56 7.1 8.1 78
EBIT margin (%) R TR (R
FERBIE) (BAL) 41 42 59 6.5 55
Profits margin (%) fMREAEIEL) 26 26 39 46 28
* Cash position refers to pledged and restricted bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents * RefREEERRZRRTER BekRe&EE
wox (Borrowings + corporate bonds + convertible bonds)/total equity o (B +RRIEFH+ AT EIRES) TS EE
*+  Calculation based on average inventory; average sum of bills receivables and trade ~ *»*  RIEFHEFE - FHEWEZE K ERE 5508 2 n4a
receivables S E
=% Excluding assets and liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale e NEESRRRKIELHEEERENEEREE
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Completed Properties for Sale

B ZIFEY =

Property name Location
L3 B
1 Skyworth Lehuocheng No. 26, Tuanshan West Road, Lishui Economic Development Zone,
Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province
Bl K445 TLARA R TR KA B 3 ) L P R 26 5%
2 Skyworth Wenhuiyuan (Phases 1 to 5) No. 1 Qunli Road, Lishui Economic Development Zone, Nanjing City,
Jiangsu Province
Bl B (F—=0H) ILERA R TORKAC BB B R B B8 198
3 Phase 1 of Chuangwei Jingyuan Plot 2-1, No. 29 Jingfa Avenue, Yichun City, Jiangxi Province
BlMEIRE— 5 IPHE HA S KRB 295 2-1103R
4 Phase 2 of Chuangwei Jingyuan Plot 2-2, No. 29 Jingfa Avenue, Yichun City, Jiangxi Province
BlMEIRE — 5 TPHA A LS KRB 295 2-2310 3R
5 Phase 1 of Ruyi Shijia South of Chenguang Street and East of Keergin South Road,
Saihan District, Hohhot, Inner Mongolia
MEHR—H AREHWAERTEFRENEURE BRI EEIAR
6 Ningbo Skyworth Shuangzhi Shuangchuang East of Zhaolong Road, South of Planned First Road and West of
Industrial Park Planned Second Road, Zhuangshi Street, Zhenhai District, Ningbo City,
Zhejiang Province
BERAIGERERIEXE AT AERTEGRETEBIERRMA - A8 —KmAl -
& — R
7 Ningbo Chongwen Garden East of Zhaolong Road, South of Qingquan Road, West of Planned

Second Road and North of Planned First Road, Zhuangshi Street,
Zhenhai District, Ningbo City, Zhejiang Province

BN SRXAEE AIRERMEERATHBICERRA  BREBA -
HEIBERAR - AR B —&ILA
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Group's
interest
-3
Frib 22
Year of

lease expiry (%)

ki)
2082 100%
2056/2086 100%
2082 100%
2082 100%
2090 100%
2059 100%
2089 100%

Gross floor area
attributable to

the Group
-3
Frie 8 m

[EEFSE 4

(square metre)
(FFHK)
8,475.40

18,618.88

647272
9,759.19

141,086.62

112,415.05

136,887.62

Residential

=

988.43

567.10

100,955.90

85,263.23

Completed Properties for Sale

EERZGENF

Attributable gross floor area
(square metre)

8 180 5 4418 D L A 2
(F7K)

Others

H

Commercial Kindergarten

GRS 4 %2 E

Carpark
EE5

Land lot No.
°R tth 45 5%

- - 847540 - 24108005054-1\241080054-2
551.77 - 1707868 - 320117103021GB00014\
3201171030216B00015
3136.72 - 333600 - 3609020020016B00108
7,828.09 - 1,36400 - 3609020020016B00233
1,369.04 - 3105972  7,701.96 150105401002GB0O00S6
75,481.29 - 3488149 205227 330211004007GB00350
1,900.70 401797 3951427 619145 330211004007GB00349
RIESEBEBERDAE 2023F K
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Properties under Development

ERIEEE S

270

Location

st

No. 1 Qunli Road, Lishui Economic Development Zone,
Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province
IEEERT R EERIRR NS
Skyworth Guanhuyuan Project,
Quanjiao County Development Zone,
Chuzhou City, Anhui Province
REL RN REREE
EleBmaR
North of Qingnian Road and West of Zhongling North Road in Yongyang Street,
Lishui District, Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province
TR PARAGEERFRINL - BRIBIA
South of Chenguang Street and East of Keergin South Road, Sainan District,
Hohhat, Inner Mongolia
AREHMERTEFRRAANE - MELERNR
South of Jinyuan Road and West of Jingdu Road, Yichun Economic and
Technological Development Zone, Jiangxi Province
IEEEREERIRSRSRRAR  SHRRAMR
South of Yuanshan East Road and East of Duoshenglou Road,
Yichun City, Jiangxi Province
IEEERTRILRARE - SHEERALR
West of Xincheng 14th Road and North of Jinshan Avenue in Dongxihu District, Wuhan City,
Hubei Province
R EREDREMEH IR - RILAEML
Plot ZKC-063-16, East of Wucun River Area, Tonghu Ecological and Smart Zone,
Zhongkai District High-Tech Zone, Huizhou City, Guangdang Province
EREEMTIMERIE BN REEREN TR RNC-06- 1650

Property name

LS
Skywarth Wenhuiyuan (Phase 6}

HEYER (378

Skyworth Guanhuyuan

BB
Skyworth Wenyuefu

Bl
Phase 2 of Ruyi Shijia

mELZ-H
Skywarth Yuyuan

fieBRE
Skyworth Yunxitai
2B

MM H

Wuhan Hanhua Shijia

RERELR
Huizhou Skyworth Wenyuefu
Garden

NS BRTE

SKYWORTH GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Year of lease expiry

ARER

2%

205812088

2091

2090

2088

2090

2092

20931209

Group's interest
REf{ERE
#

100%

100%

90%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Site area
HEEROY

[square metre]

216373

49755900

4253994

6742700

5940700

26,865.00

11391700

5644700



Properties under Development

EREEE S

Gross floor area Attributable gross floor area
attributable to (square metre/
the Group SEFEEEERAY
[square metre]
5 - Stageof Estimated
ity A Residential Commercial Carpark  Kindergarten Others  completion completion date Land ot No.
HRAY
) % 2 B i TRER fhst e B A &S
238468 - 238468 - - - Planning and design stage Completion date 3201171030216800015
undetermined
RERER TIABAE
76300257 69700957 2384700 4214600 - - The projectis divided into Completion date 3411240130106800001
eight phases, with phase 1 Undetermined 00008100010100011
Under construction
BRSNS —HE TIABEE
i
9768022 8804113 84035 8.246.00 - 55274 The above works are currently  March 2025 3201171000396800026
Lnder construction
TRTIERERT 0553F
179936.02 11629702 830283 317047 34386.90 1777880  The above works are currently  July 2026 1501054010026800056
under construction
TRTERERT WFIF
13160100 11592300 - 1567800 - - Theabove works are currently  September 2024 3609020020016800235
Lnder construction
TRTERERT 459F
50066.12 4584112 - 422500 - - Theaboveworksare currently  September 2024 3609020060076800611
under construction
THTRRIERT 0459
34187194 23334790 460000 7512783 360000 2519621 The above works are currently  Completion date 4201124090036800068
Lnder construction undetermined
HATERERT TIASAE
25011174 17933687 397866 2492400 - 4187221 Planning and design stage Completion date 44130201500806810839
undetermined
RERHER TLAHRE
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Investor Relations

REABE

CALENDAR OF MAJOR IR ACTIVITIES

TEREERMREHAE
January — December 2023
2023F1HE12A
Date Events
A SEE
March . 2022 Annual Results Announcement
3A . 0R2FREEENM
May . Special General Meeting
5A . RERFRIAE
. Annual General Meeting
- KREREAFXE
June . 2023 Mid-Year Conference, arranged by China International Capital Corporation Limited
6 A . 3FHHPRBE  HTEBERSREROBRAFLHE
August . 2023 Interim Results Announcement
8 A . 203FFREEELM
. 2023 Interim Results Investor Briefing (Conference Call)
- 0BFPHEEREEIRE (EREGE)
September . 2023 Interim Results Roadshow
EDs . 2023 F P ERRE IR R
. Investor's Company Visit
- REEZWD
October . Photovoltaic Power Station Visit
10H . 2B KRB UL
December . Investor's Company Visit
128 - KREEZH
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Lin Jin (Chairman of the Board)

Mr. Liu Tangzhi (Vice Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Shi Chi (Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Lin Wei Ping

Mr. Lam Shing Choi, Eric

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Weibin
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew, Henry
Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement

MEMBERS OF COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

Mr. Cheong Ying Chew, Henry (Chairperson)
Mr. Li Weibin
Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement

Executive Committee

Mr. Lin Jin (Chairman of the Board)

Mr. Liu Tangzhi (Vice Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Shi Chi (Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Lin Wei Ping

Mr. Lam Shing Choi, Eric

Mr. Wu Wei

Mr. Ying Yiming

Nomination Committee

Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement (Chairperson)
Mr. Li Weibin

Mr. Cheong Ying Chew, Henry

Ms. Lin Wei Ping

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Li Weibin (Chairperson)
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew, Henry
Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement

Ms. Lin Wei Ping

Corporate Information
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Corporate Information

NEER

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lam Shing Choi, Eric

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Ms. Lin Wei Ping
Mr. Lam Shing Choi, Eric

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditors

LEGAL ADVISOR

Reed Smith Richards Butler LLP

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China Limited

Bank of Communications Co,, Ltd.

China CITIC Bank International Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation

China Development Bank

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Postal Savings Bank of China Co,, Ltd.

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

274 SKYWORTH GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

NEME
PRAK BT 55 2
REAR
WET L+
PRBL BT 56

BB B

w8 BWERT GHETT
HFE R A
AR B AR LA

B

BRERERMITAREIZELAR

FEFERBRIT
PERITRIDERAT
RBIRITRIGBRAF
RERTT (R BRAF
RERRIRTREG BRAF
B BB 1T
ERR(T(FE) BRAA
BT ERTRGBRAF

PEBRFEERITERNDER QA

BITRT (B8) BRAT
AP

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda



PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Rooms 1601-04 Westlands Centre
20 Westlands Road

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

BERMUDA PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Hong Kong Registrars Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor Hopewell Centre
183 Queen's Road East

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

SHARES LISTING

Shares of the Company are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 00751

IMPORTANT INFORMATION FOR 2023

Results Announcement Date
Annual Results: 26 March 2024

DIVIDEND PER SHARE

Final dividend: 5 HK cents

Corporate Information
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& 208

IR 2058
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Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda
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Corporate Information

NEER

DIVIDEND PAYMENT DATE

Final dividend: 13 June 2024

CLOSING PERIOD OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

Final dividend: From 30 May 2024 to 3 June 2024
(both dates inclusive)

COMPANY WEBSITE

http://www.skyworth.com
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SKYWORTH
RlESEBEBRA T
Skyworth Group Limited

Stock Code B #4155 : 00751.HK

1601-04 Westlands Centre
20 Westlands Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

H B8 AR ERK 2058
ERTPO1601-04F

Tel E5E : (852) 2856 3138
Fax {§K : (852) 2856 3590

www.skyworth.com
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